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% UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20460

OFFICE OF
SOLID WASTE AND EMERGENCY
RESPONSE

MEMORANDUM

DATE:

SUBJECT:

TO:

cc:
FROM:

March 11, 2004

Additional documentation, EPA Inspector General investigation
into fallure to prevent consultant conflicts of interest in:

1. External peer review panel for EPA ORD NCEA human health risk
assessment for the aftermath of the WTC collapse

2. EPA Region | external consultants for risk assessment for asbestos
contamination in Brookfield, CT school system

3. EPA and ATSDR external consultants on peer panels for the asbestos fiber
size and toxicity reassessments

EPA IG WTC Team: Nikki Tinsley, Chris Dunlap, Sarah Fabirkiewicz, Dana
Gilmore, Jim Hatfield, Geoff Pierce, Steve Schanamann

Affected parties and responsible officials

Cate Jenkins, Ph.D." Q *
Environmental Scientist, Waste Identification Branch
Hazardous Waste Identification Division (Mail Code 5304 W)

Office of Solid Waste

This memorandum supplements the potential Conflict of Interest (COI) allegations provided
to the Inspector General's (IG) office on 7/16/03" as well as in my 7/4/03 rt.aporL2 It also
brings to the IG's attention an addition COI issue in Region 1's use of consultants for an
asbestos contamination problem in Brookfield, CT.

" The conclusions and apinions in this memorandum are those of the author and do not necessarily reflect those
of the U.S, Environmental Protection Agency.
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On 2/3/04, 1 was contacted by the IG's office, and informed that they had opened an
investigation into the COI concerns I had raised on 7/16/03. I agreed to participate in a
conference call interview on 2/4/04 regarding the investigation. As a result of this
interview, in early February, I forwarded some new documentation to the IG. During the
summer of 2003, | had forwarded other additional documents to the IG.

Additional documents are being supplied, and this memorandum both summarizes these new
documents as well as providing explanatory information. This memorandum also reiterates
the other documents of which I am aware that relate to the current IG investigation.

These potential COI problems concern EPA's use of outside consultants to advise EPA on

asbestos. The three particular EPA asbestos-related efforts, and a summary of the concerns
and available documentation are given below. The conclusion section of this memorandum
attempts to describe the endemic problem of improper influence on governmental decisions.

1. Peer review panelists, ORD NCEA human health risk assessment for WTC fallont

The composition of an external expert peer review panel for the EPA human health
assessment for fallout from the collapse of the World Trade Center (WTC) was addressed in
my 7/16/03 charges to the IG office. The EPA document under review by the peer panel is
dated October, 2002, a draft by the Office of Research and Development (ORD), National
Center for Environmental Assessment (NCEA).

The new decumentation and issues are as follows:

Eric Chatfield, Ph.D. work on behalf of defendants (including WR Grace) being sued
by the Port Authority for[asbestos| contamination inside the World Trade Center
before the 9/11/01 disaster

Chatfield's consultancy to Union Carbide (a Dow Chemical Co. subsidiary) whase
|asbestos producta would have been used in the WTC towers, and whose asbestos is
similar in composition to that typically found in WTC fallout. UC is defending itself
ciaiming its particular asbestos is safe, and Chatfield has even called the UC
asbestos "innoccuous” and a "nuisance dust.”

The problems with EPA's favoring panelists with other governmental studies on WTC
contamination, Documentation that Aian Gerson, a NYC Councilmember,
recommended Chatfield and ligren 1o perform the post §/11 study of two apartments
for the Ground Zero Task Force of Elected Officials without proper COI scrutiny, thus
rendering invalid EPA’s favoritism for those with prior WTC governmental work. This
was despite fact Gerson knew of potential COI problems of Chatfield and ilgren,
because Gerson was UC's attorney up until severat months before he was elected to
the NYC Council. Chatfiekt and ligren were expert witnesses for UC on the same
case. Garson did not alert NYC officials of these potential COI problems either in the
early days after 8/11 or to this date, based on my limited inquiry. In past, Gerson
worked closely with Union Carbide officials by directing them how to oversee the
change of a key death certificate of a Union Carbide employee.

Additional documentation of prejudicial statements by Alison Geyh and Patrick
Kinney.
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EPA Region I consultants for_ in Brookfield, CT public schools

The second COI issue in need of examination by the 1G is the consultation by EPA Region 1
of Chatfield for a risk assessment of asbestos that was used in the Brookfield, CT school
system. Region 1 apparently circumvented COI procedures in doing so.

Documentation includes a recent 2/10/04 investigation by the Connecticut Attorney General
that specifically faults EPA's role in the flawed, biased risk assessment by Region
1/Chatfield/Beard, and the townships rejection of Region 1's unsafe benchmark for asbestos.

Peer panels for EPA and ATSDR reassessment of ashestos toxicity

Section U of my 7/4/03 report‘ brought to the attention of the IG COI issues in two other peer

panel participating in both the EPA and ATSDR recassessment of asbestos fiber toxicity. This

memorandum supplements the 7/4/03 information with additional documentation of asbestos
try| financial ties of the peer panel members.
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1.

COl issues - peer panelists for EPA's WTC health risk assessment

EPA published policy on conflicts of interest

Federal Acquisition Regulations (FAR) definitions of COI

The Federal Acquisition Regulations at Section 9.501 define conflicts of interest of
governmental contractors as follows:

"...because of other activities or relationships with other persons, a person is unable
or potentially unable to render impartial assistance or advice to the Government, or
the person's cbjectivity in performing the contract work is or might be otherwise
impaired, or a paerson has an unfair competitive advantage.”

EPA puidance on evaluating COJ

EPA has issued specific guidance on evaluating and handling post contract award conflict of

interest situations.” Specific guestions are posed for EPA to inquire of contractors to

determine potential conflicts. COI criteria also include EPA evaluations of the sensitivity of
" the work being performed by the contractor.

EPA ORD Peer Review Handbook requirements
Federal Advisory Committee requirements as described in ORD Peer Review Handbook

The EPA Office of Research and Development has issued specific guidance as well for
evaluating experts to review EPA scientific documents. The ORD Peer Review Handbook®
states:

2.8 Federal Advisory Committee Act (FACA) Considerations

The Federal Advisory Committee Act, 5 U.S.C. App. 2, imposes certain open meeting
{public announcement in the Federal Register), balanced membership, and
charlering requirements (with the approval of the General Services Administration
(GSA)) before the Agency establishes, controls or manages an "advisory committee”
for advica or recommendations. Peer review carried out by formal and established
(chartered) Federal advisory committees, such as tha Science Advisory Board (SAB)
or the FIFRA Scientific Advisory Pana! (SAP), is always subject to FACA
requirements. [p. 49, emphasis added]

As stated in my 7/16/03 memorandum, Chatfield was the only participant with specific
expertise on asbestos. There were others, such as the consortium headed by HP
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Environmentz] which also studied asbestos in the interiors of contaminated buildings after
8/11.

Conflicts of Interest (COI} as described in ORD Peer Review Handbook

Independenca is freedom from institutional, ideological, or technical bias regarding
the issues under review and is necessary for objective, fair, and responsible
evaluation of the work produdt, If a selected reviewer has a particular scientific or
technical perspective, it may be desirable to balance the review with peer reviawers
with other perspectives. ldeally, pesr reviewers should be free of real or perceived
conflicts-of-interest or there should be a balancing of interests among peer reviewers.
If there are potential confiicts of interest (real or perceived), they should be fully
identified to ensure a credible peer review.

The quality of the peer review is dependent on the competence and independence of
the reviewers. {p. 22] ...

Itis hoped that if the other organization has the work product independently peer
reviewed, the peer review will meet the intent of the Agency's Peer Review Policy
and EPA's proposed use of the product (i.e., the peer raview is basically equivalent to
what EPA would do). Agency staff from the appropriate office(s) should examine
closely the particulars of the peer review to ensure independence and a conscious
effort to incorporate the peer reviswers’ comments into the final work product. If there
are perceived, or real, conflicts of interest, this may preclude the use of that peer
review and, in those instances, another peer review would be needed. [p. 36-7] ...

3.4.8 What Techniques Help Ensure Disclosure and Appropriate Resalution of
Conflicts of Interest?

Before finalizing the selection of reviewers, the Peer Review Leader should ascertain
whether each potential peer reviewer's involvement in certain activities could pose a
confiict of interest (COI) or create the appearance that the peer reviewer lacks
impartiality. One way of identifying conflicts is to ask potential reviewers about current
and prior work, and prior clients that might creale confiicts or the appearance of a
lack of impartiality in carrying out peer review activities. This information obtained by
the Peer Review Leader becomes part of the pear raview record. When the peer
review process Is being conducted by a contractor, the requirement for addressing
peer reviewers’ possible conflicts of interest sheuid be highlighted in the Statement of
Work of the work ordering instrument (e.g., Work Assignment, Delivery Order, Task
Order, etc.) and is a matter that is bound by contractual clauses with the Coniracting
Officer as the final Decision Maker in coniracting matters.

Care must be taken to reduce actual or potential organizational or parsonal conflicts
of interest belween the reviewers and the work product under review. Remember,
each potential conflict situation is unique and must be treated on a case-by-case
basis. The foliowing are considerations that should be addressed in evaluating COI:

a) attention 1o the employment, financial, and professional affiliations of the
participants;

b) exploring directly the issue with each of the participants before the review process
takes place;

¢) disclosing publicly at the beginning of meetings any previous involvement with the
issue; ...
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€} in the case of non-Federal peer reviewers, provide them a copy of the peer review
COl inquiry (see Appendix F - Useful Forms). This form is sent to each prospective
peer reviewer by the Peer Review Leader {or contractor, in the case of contractor-run
reviews) to advise them of the need to address COl issues prior to the actual review
taking place. A follow-up contact with the Peer Review Leader (or contractor, in the
case of contractor-run reviews) is then made to discuss any relevant issues. The
Peer Review Leader ther documents this effort in the peer reviaw record: this
includes a summary provided by the contracior documenting their inquiries and
efforts.

The Peer Review Leader needs to ensure that the peer review COl inquiry (see
Appendix F - Useful Forms) took place and this appears in the peer review record.

Of course, conflicts do not necessarily arise merely because a peer reviewer knows
something about the subject matter. In fact, experts with a stake in the outcome -
and therefore a potential conflict - may be some of the most knowledgeable and up-
to-date experts because they have concrete reasons {o maintain thelir expertise.
Such expetts could be used provided the potential confiicts of interest are disclosed
and the peer review panel or group being used as a whole is balanced. In some
cases, however, the conflict may be so direct and substantial as to rule out a
particular expert, for instance, a potential peer reviewsr who may have a client or
employer with a direct financial stake in the particular specific party matter under
review ... [pp. 60-1]

Versar reverses its own COl requirements for WTC peer review panel
consultants

Versar is the contractor responsible for finding and hiring the consultants who would serve
on the expert peer review panel for the EPA ORD NCEA health assessment. Versar has very
specific COl mitigation and investigation requirements as part of its contract language.

Evidentiary basis for concluding that Versar ignored and circumvented EPA COI
requirements in selection of the peer panel

We know that Versar did not follow the EPA required COI mitigation and investigation
procedures because there is physical documentation of this fact obtained through a Freedom
of Information Act (FOIA) request.

Ms. Kathleen Roseland-Hulce, a concerned parent in Brookfield, CT where the schools had
an asbestos contamination problem and Chatfield was involved as a consultant, submitted a
7/21/03 FOIA to EPA” requesting the following:

| am raquesting documents specified below which relate to the selection and
screening by EPA and/or Versar, Inc. of members of a peer review panel for a draft
EPA document titied: "Exposure and Human Health Evaluation of Airborne Pollution
from the World Trade Center Disastar,” ...

1. The resumas, biographies, curricula vitae, past work history, confiict of interest

informalion, disclaimers, or certifications submitted by all expert panelists to either
EPA or its contracting firm Versar, Inc,

6
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2. Any candidate lists for the peer panel developad by EPA and/or supplied by EPA
to Versar or any direction the part of EPA fo Versar for members of this peer panel.

3. The criteria elther EPA and/or Versar used to select panel members.

4. Any specific questions or other inquires by EPA and/or Versar provided to panei
members for their response regarding work histories, conflicts of interest, or
associations with potential responsible parties.

5. Any conflict of interest requirements developed by contractor Versar for selection
of pane! members.

EPA did supply many relevant documents pursuant to this FOIA request. There was no
statement in the cover letter from EPA to Ms. Hulce listing any documents that were being
withheld. Since under the law, federal agencies must supply all relevant documents, or list
and provide a rationale for withholding certain documents, we may assume that the
documents provided to Ms. Hulce contain the full record of all of Versar's COI mitigation
and investigation into potential peer panelists.

Versar contractual COI investigation and mitigation requirements

The following language is contained in the Versar contractual Conflict of Interest Pian,
which requires Versar to consider certain factors in evaluating any COI for either itself or its
subcontractors. The members of the peer review panel for the EPA ORD NCEA human
health assessment document for the WTC disaster are considered to be subcontractors to
Versar. These Versar documents were obtained by the Hulce FOIA discussed above.

4.0 Searching and Identifying Conflict of Interest ...
4.2. The procedures for conducting a conflict of interest search are as follows:

» Pertinent information (as defined below) regarding each task will be input to
Versar's conflict of interest data base as described in paragraph 4.4. !f analysis of
the data indicates actual or potential conflicts, the information will be provided to the
COlI officer for further review within 24 hours. The search will be documented by the
Program Manager completing the Attachment 1 form and retaining it in the project
files.

& Subcontractors and consultants must perform similar screening for conflicts of
interest and must document the screening and provide it to Versar's Program
manager. Subcontractors and consultants must report information on actual ar
potential conflicts to Versar's COl Officer for further review within 24 hours.

o For Superfund work, the search will include, as a minimum, information on the site
where work is or has been performed, type of work performed (e.g., cleanup,
emergency response, remedial design, technical/policy support), former and present
clients at the site where work is or has been performed ({including name and
address), and performance period of the work.

¢ For non-Superfund work, the search will include, as a minimum, type of work
performed (e.g., regulatory assistance, permit reviews), former and present clients for
that type of work, and performance period of the work. The key element of this
search is to identify the nature and type of work that Versar, including its subsidiaries
and subcontractors and consultants, is currently or has been involved which may

7
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relate to work that it is proposing on, and to determine whether the proposed work
can be performed without resuiting in an unfair competitive advantage or without
impairing Versar's abjectivity. ...

4.3. A cross check of the conflict of interest search will occur by searching according
to type of work, site location, client name and performance peried. A review of the
cross check will be performed by an individual at a level above the Program manager
or by the COI Officer, This individual will document the cross check by signing the
Attachment 1 form. ...

5.1. All personnel selected for & particular contract or work assignment from EPA
must certify on the Attachment 3 form that they have no personal conflicts or interest
or they must list al! actual! or potential conflicts. ...

5.5 Subcontractor personnel must provide certifications identical to that described in
this Section 5.0 {o the program managers in their respective organizations.

Versar should undoubtedly be applying its COI requirements for Superfund work, as
described above. This is because the WTC cleanup and evaluation, including the EPA ORD
NCEA health assessment, is pursuant to the National Contingency Plan (NCP), an act
enfolded into Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act
(CERCLA). The CERCLA/NCP addresses both Superfund, pre-Supetrfund, and even
cleanups never having any potential to receive funding through the Superfund set-aside
funds.

EPA itself uses the terms "Superfund” and "CERCLA" synonymously. On the EPA web site,
there are 66 instances where the following phrase occurs: "Comprehensive Environmental
Response, Compensation and Liability Act (CERCLA), commonly known as Superfund”.
There are 699 instances on the EPA web site where the following phrase occurs: "CERCLA,
or Superfund”. See my 7/4/03 report to the EPA Inspector General, Section V, for
documentation that the WTC cleanup is pursuant to CERCLA and the NCP.2

Thus, Versar should have been carefully accounting for past and present works at other
CERCLA remediation sites, along with ali the other stated COI criteria.

Versar's statements to potential peer review panelists both conflicted with CQl reguirements
and did not convey full scope of COI requirments

In sharp contrast to the COI requirements in the above cited contract document, Versar
provided entirely different COI criteria to the potential peer review panelists. The panelists
were never given the real criteria for COl, as spelled above in the Versar contractual Conflict
of Interest Plan.

Instead, Versar told the potential panelists that past or present work at the WTC was an
advantage, not a disadvantage. This is very problematic, since the prior WTC work could be
funded by a party with a vested financial in demonstrating that there was no contamination
problem.
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The panelists also were not asked whether they had taken opposite positions to EPA for
similar scientific issues on behalf of defendants where EPA was taking action, as they should
have.

The documents from the Hulce FOIA demonstrate that the following was the only
descriptions of potential CO] that Versar described to the potential panelists. This comes
from a 3-page talking points document for what Versar personnel were supposed to say in
telephone conversations:

External peer pane! review of NCEA report ... [tile of Versar talking points document]

Good moming/afterncon, my name is L
work for Versar inc., an environmeniai consulting firm ... Versar is conducting an
external peer panel review of the NCEA repart ... | am calling with an invitation for
you to join Versar as a 'proposed peer reviewer’ _..

[sections on time frame, duties, information about NCEA document, pay] ...
CONFLICT OF INTEREST

1. Before participation you need to confirm that there is no conflict of interest.
Conflict of interest is defined as follow: All experts must be free of vested interest in
the outcome of such a review and shall have no conflict of interest with EPA on
pending sclentific issues pertaining to this project. Generally, a conflict of interest
arises when a person Is affect by his/her private interests, when he/she or histher
associates would derive benefit from incorporation of their point of view in an EPA
product, or when their professional standing and status or the significance of their
principal area of work might be affacted by the outcome of the peer review.

2. Are you doing other work at the World Trade Center currently? For whom? Other
work at the WTC is not necessarity a COI, we just nead to be aware and disclose this
information. In fact we see It as a potential asset.

3. Are you receiving funding from EPA currently? For what types of projects?
Anything else to disclose that might be related to this review?

4. There is a conflict of interest and a confidentiality form that you will be required to
sign.

{end of COI talking points section]

Versar let the panelists themselves decide whether or not they had any COI problems. No
more information was given to them.

The evidence that the panelists themselves were allowed to decide whether they had any COI
problems can be surmised from the results of the Hulce FOIA. No documents were supplied
to Hulce other than very brief self-certifications from the panelists. No documents were
provided showing that Versar made lists of past and current work of the panelists and
examined whether they concerned the same subject matter as the EPA NCEA document
under review, etc. No other documents were supplied showing that Versar supplied any
other information on COJ to the potential panelists.
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Yersar failed to investigate and/or address potential conflicts of Chatfield

Although Chatfield's COI certification to Versar denied any real or potential conflicts of
interest, there was ample information in Chatfield's curriculum vitae to raise concern and
warrant investigation by both Versar and EPA.

Furthermore, Versar accepied a verbal claim by Chatfield that his concurrent work for WR
Grace did not constitute 8 COI problem, and performed no further inquiry.

Chatfield's 7/3/03 COI certification failed to list expert consultancy services for asbestos defendants
such as WR Grace, Port Authority, or any other potential/actual conflicts

From the Hulce FOIA documents, Chatfield certified no conflicts of interest to EPA on
7/3/03. The conflict of interest certification only stated the following, with no attached list:

The individuals signing below certify that, to the best of their knowledge and belief,
they have no personal conflicts of interest with regard 1o the subject work assignment
or they have attached description of any actual or potential conflicts. They also
certify that they will report any such conflicts that occur or are discovered at a later
date to the Versar Conflict of Interest Officer and that they have read and understand
the contract conflict of interest requirements and Versar's conflict of interest
management plan and procedures, [There were no attachment from Chatfield listing
and real or potential conflicts)

Versar accepted Chatfield claims of no conflicts for work for WR Grace

Versar did speak to Chatfield telephonically, however. There were notes in the record to this
effect. Versar appears to have accepted Chatfield's claim that his consultancy for WR Grace,
being sued by EPA and DOL for Libby, MT Superfund site, did not constitute a conflict of
interest. The following statement was made by Versar in its "Summary of Discussions (or
Email Response) with Potential WTC Peer Reviewers on COI" (obtained by the Hulce
FOIA):

COl Discussions with Eric Chatfield 4/30/03 (with David Bottimore, Versar Inc.)

| spoke with Eric Chatfield on potentially having him on the peer review panel for
EPA’s WTC document. He was interested. Discussed the scope of the effort,
possible timeline for review and meeting, as well as potential COl issues. He
disclosed that he had done limited dust/asbestos sampling in homes near the WTC
immediately following the tragedy, but has not been involved since. As an aside, he
did note thet one person at EPA has been attacking his reputation, on issues related
to Libby and other asbestos-related cases, but that they are completely unfounded.
He has no COl issues related to WTC.

In the conference call of 2/4/03 between myself and representatives of the IG office (Chris
Dunlap, Jim Hatfield, Rick Beusse), I indicated that it was probably me to whom Chatfield
was referring, but that I had never made any allegations or statements about Chatfield's work
for WR Grace on the Libby site before 4/30/03, but instead had criticized his involvement
and the use of his outdated data from a 1983 by the Brookfield, CT school system. See
section of this memo.
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Versar did not investigate Chatfield's work for defendant companies sued by the Port Authority for
pre-9/11 asbestos problem at World Trade Towers

In addition, even though Chatfield's CV indicated it, there was no evidence supplied in the
FOIA response that Versar investigated the fact that Chatfield had served as an expert
consultant for a company being sued by the Port Authority prior to the 9/11 disaster. The
Port Authority owned the World Trade Center towers. Chatfield did report his work for
defendants in the Port Authority suit, but did not elaborate on it.

There was no evidence that Versar looked into this pre-9/11 WTC work at all or made any
determination regarding its impact on COI issues in the materials obtained by the Hulce

FOIA.

A later section explains the relevance of work for the defendants in the suit by the Port
Authority to the outcome of any findings and conclusions as to the contamination and risks
caused by collapse of the WTC.

Versar failed to investigate other asbestos-related work by Chatfield for asbestos industry
defendants

Chatfield's many industrial asbestos defendant clients should have alerted Versarto a
potential problem. It appears that Versar undertook no investigation and/or
Justification/mitigation of this fact.

In particular, Versar failed to investigate fact that Chatfield was up unti about October, 2003
an expert consultant for Union Carbide, an asbestos defendant company which is claiming
that chrysotile asbestos, similar to that found in WTC fallout, is harmless. If it had
investigated, documentation should have been supplied by EPA in response to the Hulce
FOIA. There was no such documentation in the FOIA materials provided to Hulce.

Versar failed to investigate prejudicial statements by Chatfield

Although Chatfield's test data for asbestos is not in question in his study of two apartments
near Ground Zero after the WTC collapse, his statements and recommendations about
cleanup and the hazards of WTC fallout are in question. These statements are prejudicial and
not in accordance with the recommendations EPA has made about the cleanup. These
statements alone might be considered sufficient for believing Chatfield could not perform an
unbiased review of the EPA ORD NCEA human health risk assessment,

Later sections in this report address the prejudicial statements of Chatfield, and the fact that
normal COI scrutiny was waived in his selection by the Ground Zero Task Force to perform
the post-9/11 study of the two apartments.

Chatfield's curriculum vitae, as submitted to EPA, contains a listing of many publications. In
particular, there are three studies co-authored by Chatfield that state that short fiber chrysotile
asbestos is "innocuous" and should be treated like "nuisance dust." See a later section of this
memorandum for more details.
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Chatfield's failure to disclose concurrent Superfund work against EPA for WR
Grace at another asbestos residential contamination site in Libby, MT

Chatfield is a paid expert witness for WR Grace & Co., the firm responsible for the asbestos
contamination in homes in Libby, Montana, the Superfund site. Litigation has been brought
against WR Grace by the U.S. Department of Justice,

A curriculum vitae of Chatfield was submitted to EPA to support his participation in the peer
review of EPA's ORD NCEA human health assessment of the WTC. Ms. Kathleen
Rossland-Hulce obtained this CV from EPA through her 7/28/03 FOIA request.9

Chatfield's CV stated that it was current as of 8/20/02. However, Chatfield prepared an
"Expert Report” on behalf of WR Grace for its Libby defense, dated 8/30/02, which
mentioned that he had performed work prior to 8/20/02 for WR Grace. Chatfield's expert
reportlofor WR Grace was also obtained by Ms. Hulce through a 1/28/03FOIA request to
EPA.

In his 8/30/02 expert report,’’ Chatfield stated the following:

| have reviewed the action memoranda for the Libby site, the administrative record for
the period May 23, 2000 to June 4, 2002, the expert reports of Elizabeth L.

Andersen, Ph.D., Richard J. Lee, Ph.D., Gregory P. Meeker, James E. Lockey, MD,
MS and James R. Millette, Ph.D. | have also reviewed the ATSDR Health
Consultation dated December 12, 2000, a Report to the Community dated August 23,
3001, and a report entitled "Health Risks from Exposure to the Community dated
August 23, 2001, and a report entitled "Health Risks from Exposures to Zonolite
Home Insulation: Critical Evaluation of the Scientific Evidence Availabie from the
ATSDR Studies in Libhy, Montana.

in addition, | have been provide with one compact disk labeled "Meeker*, four
compact disks labeled U.S. v. Grace, Volpe Center, Disks 4, 5, 6, and 7, received on
August 13, 2002, and one compact disk labeled "Greg Meeker, USGS Microbeam
Lab, 8/22,2" In view of the extremely short time-frame available, | have been able fo
anly partially review the contents of these compact disks. [Emphasis added.]

Based on my review of the above documentation, | have determined that there are
significant deficiencies in the underlying analytical data that form the basis for the risk
assessments conducted by EPA ...

The hourly consulting rate for my services is US$180 per hour, including deposition
and trial testimony, and traved time ...

This expert report establishes that Chatfield was an expert witness for WR Grace at least by
8/13/02, one week prior to Chatfield's 8/20/02 CV omitted revealing any work for WR
Grace.

From the statements quoted above, Chatfield was probably an expert consultant for WR
Grace long before 8/13/02, because he stated that he had reviewed a large number of other
documents on their behalf, and had not had a chance to review the additional materials which
were only recently received on 8/13/02.
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Chatfield's claim that work for WR Grace insignificant and in past

On 7/14/03, at the public peer panel meeting in NYC for the EPA ORD NCEA report,
Chatfield is reported as telling the participants that he did not think it was important to
mention his work for Grace in his CV, because his work for Grace was minimal and/or in the
past. Concemed citizens and environmental activists attending the 7/14/03 public meeting of
EPA's peer review panel in NYC had raised questions about Chatfield's COI and WR Grace
from the floor as well as in written submissions.

Chatfield's work for Grace is apparently not minimal or in the past. Providing an “expert
report” to a defendant in active litigation is just one step in the services provided by an expert
witness. In order for the expert report to be of any use to WR Grace, the expert also must
make himself available to the Dept. of Justice for deposition. Otherwise, the expert report
would not be admissible as evidence. The expert witness would also need to be available to
testify at trial.

In fact, Chatfield himself mentions his intention to provide continuing and future services for
WR Grace in his 8/3/02 expert report itself. Chatfield states:

The haurly consulting rate for my services is US5180 per hour, including deposition
and trial testimony, and travel time, payable to Chatfield Technical Consulting
Limited.

Chatfield's opposition to EPA conclusions on similar issues on behalf of WR Grace in litigation
brought by EPA

In his 8/30/02 expert report, Chatfield strongly opposed EPA’s analytical evaluation of risks
in homes in Libby. His expert report reads in part as follows:

I have reviewed the action memoranda for the Libby site, the administrative record for
the period may 23, 2000 to June 4, 2002, the expert reports . . . | have also reviewad
the ATSDR Health Consultation dated December 12, 2000, a Report to the
Community dated August 23, 2001, and a report entitled “Heatlth Risks from
Exposure to Zonolite Home Insulation: Critical Evaluation of the Scientific Evidence
Available from the ATSDR Studies in Libby, Montana. . ..

I have determined that there are significant deficiencies in the underiying analytical
data that form the basis for the risk assessments conducted by EPA. | have also
determined that some analytical methods have not been used in accordance with the
specifications of the methods, and that some of the analytical methods used are not
capable of providing & reliable foundation for the decisions being made. . . . [Report
No. 02C029, Expert Report of Eric J. Chatfleld, Ph.D., in the matter of: United States
v. W.R. Grace & Co,, et al., Civil Action No. 01-72-M-DWM (D.Mont.), 8/30/02]

This also, according to the Versar and EPA criteria, are grounds for exciuding him from the
peer panel.

WR Grace's interest in outcome of EPA ORD NCEA document on WTC health hazards

Chatfield's business connection with WR Grace is extremely relevant to the WTC
investigation. This is because Grace has been using for its legal defense comparisons
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between EPA’s stringent cleanup standards for homes in Libby compared to the lenient
standards EPA has imposed for the WTC cleanup. Grace is also using in its defense the fact
that homes in Libby are less contaminated with asbestos than buildings in Manhattan after
the WTC collapse.

Thus, Grace has a vested interest in having EPA conclude (by way of the EPA ORD NCEA
human health assessment document) that ¢itizens in NYC are not at risk from asbestos
exposures. They can then directly use these EPA conclusions to escape responsibility for the
contamination in Libby.

The following are excerpts from two letters from Grace to EPA which prove this point. The
first letter attempts to gain more lenient cleanup standards for Libby based on the fact that
EPA is imposing less stringent asbestos air and dust standards in New York City after the
WTC collapse:

The purpose of this letter is to continue Grace's dialogue with EPA regarding Zonolite
Attic Insulation ("ZAF"), a home insulation product consisting of expanded vermiculite,
For your background, ZAl has been insulating homes for over 60 years and there is
no credible reason to believe that ZAl has gver caused an asbestos-related disease
in anyone who has used it in his/her home. Nevertheless, EPA Region 8 is
requesting that EPA declare, for the first time ever, that a “public health emergency”
exists at a (proposed) Superfund site. . . .

Contrasted to Region 8's disregard of established norms, EPA’s pronouncements
and activities regarding the World Trade Center collapse reaffirm those norms. Thus,
EPA’s website reiterates that:

- EPA is using the 1% definition of an asbestos-containing material in
evaluating dust and bulk samples.

- Alr samples are the accurate measure of actual exposure potential, whereas
the presence of asbestos in dust is not necessarily a significant health hazard.

- EPA uses the “extremely stringent” standard under AHERA of 70
struclures/sq. mm. to evaluale the risk from asbestos in the gutdoor and jndoor air.
That standard was expressly chosen because il is the most stringent and protective,
and is based on assumptions of long-term exposure.

- Asbestos exposure becomes a heaith concern when high congentrations of
asbestos fibers are inhaled over a Jong period of time. The fact that a smail
percentage of samples exceeded the AHERA standard was not considered fo be
evidence of a significant health risk.

We believe that sound science dictates that the same peer reviewed methodologies
for assessing risks at the WTC should be applied across the board, including in

Libby, Montana. . . . [Emphasis in original] [Letter to Christine Todd Whitman,
Administrator, EPA, from William M. Corcoran, Vice President, W. R. Grace & Co.,
dated 4/10/02)]

In the second letter, WR Grace compares asbestos contamination levels in Libby to those in
NYC after the WTC collapse. WR Grace states that residences in Manhattan are more
contaminated than in Libby {which is true). This is also offered as a rationale for not
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cleaning up Libby to the more stringent standards imposed by Region 8, since the cleanup in
Manhattan is rudimentary and slipshod in comparison to that being required for Libby,

We appreciate the opportunity you gave us on January 31 to present Grace's view of
the data from Libby, Moniana that EPA is using to guide its decision regarding
removal of Zonolite Attic Insulation from homes in that community.

| would like to summarize several of the points that were made in the meeting. . . .

Based on the data we have seen, there are very low levels of asbestos in surface
dust in homes in Libby, Montana. There is only chrysotile found on windowsills,
which is a key collection point. In all surfaces in Libby, chrysotile fibers exceed
amphibole fibers by 3X to 30X. in fact, asbestos concentrations in dust in Libby
homas is significantly lower than that found in New York City before 9/11, is far below
that found after 8/11, and is significantly lower than the concentrations that EPA
found in studies of carpets, ceilings, and lights. . . . [Letter to Michael Shapiro,
Principal Deputy Assistant Administrator, Office of Solid Waste and Emergency
Response, EPA, from Wiliiam M. Corcoran, Vice President, W. R. Grace & Co., dated
2/6/02]

Chatfield work as expert witness for defendants (including WR Grace) sued
prior to 9/11/01 by the Port Authority for faulty asbestos insulation inside
WTC towers

In 1997, Chatfield was an expert for defendants being sued by the Port Authority of New
York and New Jersey The Port Authority was contending that faulty asbestos fireproofing
insulation was contaminating office spaces in the World Trade Towers, as well as in airports.

This expert work constitutes a clear conflict of interest for Chatfield serving on the EPA peer
panel. This is because there would be a vested interest for these defendants for EPA to find
there were no asbestos hazards from WTC fallout.

WR Grace was one of the defendants in this case brought by the Port Authority. Chatfield is
still an expert witness for this company.

One of the defendants was U.S. Minerals, for whom Chatfield worked directly. Chatfield's
CV shows that he served as an expert for U.S. minerals for two different cases. From 1990
to 1997, Chatfield's CV lists about 24 occasions of serving as an expert witness for U.S.
Minerals, either during depositions or trial testimony.

Another defendant in the Port Authority suit was Armstrong World Indusmes Chatfield's
CV shows he served as an expert witness for this defendant in another suit.*

Another defendant in the Port Authority suit was Allied Signal . Chatﬁeld has also provided
expert witness services to this company as well, according to his cv.P
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Statements in Chatfield deposition, Port Aughority v. Allied Corporation (individually and as a

subsidiary of Allied-Signal, Inc.); Armstrong World Industries: Tishman Realty and

Construction Co., Inc.; U.S. Minerals and Products Co.; W.R. Grace and Co.; and GAF.

In his 1/15/97 Port Authority deposition, Chatfield attacks the credibility of tests done at the
World Trade Center prior to 9/11/01 for faulty asbestos insulation. Asbestos fireproofing
that had been sprayed onto steel beams, and had come off over the years and settled onto the
tops of the ceiling tiles.'® See the endnotes for extended excerpts from his testimony.

One claim made by Chatfield is as follows: In an experiment on behalf of the Port Authority,
clean plastic sheeting was first spread out in the room under the ceiling. Then, a ceiling tile
was lifted out, which would simulate normal building maintenance operations. Then, after a
few hours, the plastic sheet was tested to see if it had any asbestos fibers deposited on it as a
result of the lifting of the ceiling tile. Asbestos fibers were found on the plastic sheet.

Chatfield claimed that test by the Port Authority was invalid. He claimed that the small
diameter fibers of asbestos on the plastic sheet could not have come from the ceiling tile,
because it would have taken up to 72 hours for these small fiber asbestos to seitle out onto
the plastic sheet!

Chatfield's consultancy for Union Carbide, and prejudicial statements saying
Union Carbide's asbestos, similar to that in WTC fallout, is "innocuous" and
only a "nuisance dust"

Chatfield copsultancy to another Superfund site, the Coalinga mine in California, formerly

owned by Union Carbide

As stated before, the WTC cleanup is being conducted under EPA's authority under
CERCLA, the Superfund umbrella statute, in particular the NCP. Chatfield was an expert
witness for Union Carbide from about 1994 or earlier until October, 2003. Thus, Chatfield
was an expert witness for Union Carbide during his early tenure on the peer panel for the
EPA ORD NCEA WTC risk assessment.

Chatfield's work at this other Superfund site on behalf of the responsible party addressed the
same scientific issues and the exact same commercial products as in the EPA ORD NCEA
document is also potential grounds for his exclusion from the EPA peer review panel.

Union Carbide's financial interest in outcome of WTC fallout evaluation by EPA

Union Carbide, a Dow Chemical subsidiary, was being sued for asbestos exposures from a
mine in California previously owned by Union Carbide. This mine, the Coalinga Asbestos
Mine in Coalinga, California was on the EPA Nauonal Priorities (Superfund) list, but after
remediation has now been deleted from the NPL.!’

Union Carbide's Calidria® brand of asbestos from this Coalinga mine is in the chrysotile
asbestos category. It is used in many products such as vinyl floor tiles, ceiling tile, paints,
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sealants and coatings, paper products, Bakelite, and dry wall joint compound. All these
products would have been present in the World Trade Towers. Most believe that the bulk of
the asbestos in WTC fallout came from the pulverization of the asbestos-vinyl floor tiles.

Union Carbide was defending itself contending that its Calidria® brand of chrysotile asbestos
was different from other asbestos, and did not cause either asbestosis or cancer.

Thus, if EPA concluded that exposures to the particular type of asbestos in WTC dust were
not as harmful as other asbestos exposures, Union Carbide would gain a vindication from
EPA that Union Carbide's asbestos was not hazardous as well.

Chatfield's prejudicial statements on Union Carbide Calidria® asbestos, present in WTC

fallout

Chatfield's published papers claiming Union Carbide asbestos innocuous and only a nuisance dust

There are three papers co-authored by Chatfield and Edward Iigren, MD, which contain
prejudicial statements about the hazards of Union Carbide's Calidria® asbestos. In these
papers, '® Chatfield claims that chrysotile asbestos alone, without any amphibole asbestos
contamination, does not cause asbestos-related cancers or even asbestosis. He maintains that
other types of asbestos, such as the amphiboles, must be present in the chrysotile as
contaminants in order for the asbestos to excerpt any carcinogenic effect.

See the excerpt below of the first paper by Chatfield:'?

Controversy continues to surround the biological activity of short fibre chrysotile. This
is largely due to a lack of studies in which there has been 'pure exposure’ to this
material. ... This report presents the morphological and morph metric findings of a
lifetime inhalation study of F344 rats exposed to these types of chrysotile. The first,
from Coalinga, Calif., is comprised of fibres that are almost all less than 5 um in
length ... The other two ... are both Canadian long fibre preparations ... Exposed
animals displayed no fibrosis following exposure to Coalinga chrysotile but showed
fibrogenic responses with both Canadian fibres. ...

Taken together, the findings described in afl these reports support the cantention that
short-fibred chrysotile is innocuous and should be regarded and requlated as
nuisance dust. ... [Emphasis added.]

These papers by Chatfield demonstrate bias and prejudicial statements, and are also grounds
for excluding him from the EPA ORD NCEA peer review panel, since he would be
prejudiced against any conclusions by EPA that asbestos from the WTC collapse, containing
primarily chrysotile asbestos, presented a hazard.

It would be difficult to believe that Chatfield could render any opinion stating that there were
health risks from the asbestos from the WTC collapse as an EPA peer review panelist,
because it would contradict what Chatfield had already said and was saying on behalf of
Union Carbide.

An excellent published discussion of the credibility problems of these reports by Chatfield
and Hgren has been pl.lblisht:d.20

17



Document hosted at JDSU PRA

http://www.jdsupra.com/post/documentViewer.aspx?fid=0fe89408-a94a-44ca-b441-15h9fdcac914

Chatfield's statements at another EPA workshop on Union Carbide asbestos

In addition to his published papers on Union Carbides asbestos, Chatfield also made
statements as an observer at the 5/30/03 EPA peer consulitation workshop to reassess the risks
of asbestos fibers (not necessarily related to the WTC).*' These statements as well claimed
that Union Carbide asbestos was unique and should be treated differently by EPA as to health
and safety:

I want to finish up with a few comments about chrysotile, and in particular, the
Coalinga calidria chrysotile, which is the trade name for it. The mine is about 100
miles south of here. ... This chrysotile is quite unique, and it is a different geclogical
origin from the more traditional types. Unllke other chrysoliles, when this is dispersed
in air, the fiber bundles are much thicker as the lengths increase. So, as you pick a
long body, it is generally thick, and it is not very long before you get to a non-
respirable diameter. That doesn't happen with the other kinds of chrysotite; they all
stay thin. 8o, much of the materiat from Coalinga, in fact, ands up being non-
respirable. ...

Chatfield recommended to perform post 9/11 apartment study by NYC official
without COI scrutiny, voiding EPA stated preference for scientists who had
performed governmental WTC work

The EPA expressed advantage for peer panelists to have performed other governmental WTC
investigations is negated if the scientists were improperly selected for this other
governmental WTC work.

Chatfield avoided COI scrutiny for his study of two apartments near Ground Zero for the
Ground Zero Task Force of Elected Officials. There was no time for a proper COI
investigation, and officials did not have full knowledge of Chatfield's other clients, or his
relationship to the person who recommended him {Alan Gerson). Everything was done
quickly and in an emergency mode after 9/11. Chatfield actually took the samples from the
two apartments in NYC on September 18, just a week after the disaster.

Thus, the fact that Chatfield performed his post 9/11 WTC study for a quasi governmental
body does not in any way imply that he underwent a proper COI vetting process or normal
scrutiny before his selection.

As seen below, Chatfield's conclusions, along with the conclusion of his collaborator in the
GZTF study of two apartments, reflects the interests of their many asbestos-related defendant
industry clients.

Statements by EPA and Versar that 9/11 WTC work advantageous

There are several instances where EPA and Versar state that work on environmental matters
related to the collapse of the WTC was an advantage. These come from documents supplied
by EPA in response to the Hulce FOIA,
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In a talking points document, the script which Versar used when approaching potential
panglists, the following was said:

External peer panel review of NCEA report ... [title of Versar talking points document]

Good moming/afternoon, my name is .
work for Versar Inc., an environmental consulting firm ... Veersar is conducting an
external peer panel review of the NCEA report ... | am calling with an invitation for
you to join Versar as a 'proposed peer reviewer' ...

CONFLICT OF INTEREST ...

2. Are you doing other work at the World Trade Center currently? For whom? Other
work at the WTC is not necessarily a CO|, we just need to be aware and disclose this

information. In fact we see it as a potential asset. (Emphasis added.]

In a Versar document, "Summary of Discussions (or Email Responses) with Potential WTC
Peer Reviewers on COL" work on the WTC was also described as advantageous to being a
peer reviewer:

[questions to potential peer reviewers] Are you doing other work at the World Trade
Center currently? For whom? Other work at the WTC is not necessarily a COl, we

just need to be aware and disclose this information. In fact we see it as a potential

asset. [Emphasis added.]

In 2 5/15/03 email to Versar from Matt Lorber at EPA, "prior work" on WTC exposures was
listed as an advantage:

They are trying to pul together a balance panel to cover critical areas of the
assessment. Thus far they have obtained some top notch individual ... and afl have
direct experience in the MWTC setting. ...

History of Alan Gerson's recommendation of Chatfield and Tigren for the post 9/11 apartment

study

Chatfield and E. B. Ilgren, MD were recommended to perform the indoor apartment
contamination study for the GZTF by Alan Gerson.” The recommendation was made
directly to Madeline Wils, who was Chair of NYC Community Board 1.

Gerson was soon to be elected to be a NYC Council member on September 25, 2001 (the
9/11/01 elections were delayed until this date). Gerson had previously served as Chair of
Community Board 2 fromJuly 1997-July 1999. After his election on 9/25/01, Gerson
quickly became involved in health issues related to the WTC collapse. He is listed as a
member of the Ground Zero Task Force on Chatfield's post 9/11 apartment study, with the
title of "NYC Councilmember (elect)".

Gerson had worked for the law firm Kelley Drye & Warren LLP for 18 years, including
during his tenure as Community Board 2 Chair. He worked for this firm up until at least
"several to six months before” 9/11/01, according to Ilgren's testimony below. This law firm
represents defendant corporations, not victims, in product liability and toxic tort cases.?
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Gerson did not just work for a law firm defending asbestos-related defendant corporations, he
himself worked on these asbestos-defense cases.

None of the elected officials I spoke with, including Wils, were aware that Gerson defended
companies being sued by asbestos victims at his law firm, neither at the time he
recommended Chatfield and Ilgren to the Ground Zero Task Force, nor in the years following
9/11,

Gerson knew of COL/credibility problems of Chatfield and Iigren when recommending them

It is questionable that Alan Gerson should have recommended Chatfield and Ilgren to the
GZTF since Gerson was aware that Chatfield and Ilgren were currently expert consuitants for
asbestos-defendant companies, particularly Union Carbide, As an attorney, Gerson was
defending Union Carbide. Both Chatfield and Ilgren were experts for Union Carbide on the
same case. Gerson hired Ilgren, and Ilgren reported to Gerson on this case.

Union Carbide, now a subsidiary of Dow Chemical, manufactured its asbestos under the
brand name is Calidria®. The Union Carbide asbestos is used in many products such as
vinyl floor tiles, ceiling tile, paints, sealants and coatings, paper products, Bakelite, and dry
wall joint compound. All these products would have been present in the World Trade
Towers. Union Carbide was defending itself contending that the chrysotile asbestos in its
Calidria® brand was different from other asbestos. Most believe that the buik of the asbestos
in WTC fallout came from the pulverization of the asbestos-vinyl floor tiles.

Chatfield explicitly that the Union Carbide asbestos was "innocuous” and should be treated
like a "nuisance dust.” Gerson was present when Ilgren testified about this statement in the
paper he co-authored with Chatfield.

This should have raised questions in Gerson's mind about Chatfield's and Ilgren's abilities to
conduct a study to represent the interests of exposed NYC citizens, since their results could
contradict the financial interests of their asbestos-defendant clients.

Were Chatficld and Ilgren going to say that there was a problem with the exposures of the
NYC victims of 9/11, when they were currently saying just the opposite as they were saying
as experts for Union Carbide in the ongoing litigation?

Both Chatfield and ligren were listed as expert witnesses for Union Carbide at time they performed
post 9/11 apartment study for GZTF

Chatfield was listed as an expert witness on behalf of Union Carbide from 1994 until
October, 2003. Gerson was an attorney for Union Carbide on this same case up until a few
months before his election to the NYC Council. Thus, Gerson knew of Chatfield's conflict of
interest problem when he recommended Chatfield to the GZTF.

On 9/11/02, a year after the disaster, Iigren testified regarding how he became involved in

testing apartments near Ground Zero after 9/11. In this testimony, Ilgren also summarizes his
past relationship with Gerson. Ilgren states that in 1984, he was hired by Gerson to be an
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expert consultant on behalf of Union Carbide, and reported directly to Alan Gerson unti]
about 6 months before 9/11/01.

This testimony was provided in a trial wherein Ilgren was serving as an expert witness on
behalf of Union Carbide Corporation.24

CROSS OF EDWARD ILGREN IN CONWED V. UNION CARBIDE

Q. And incldentally you told us this moming that you played some role with respect
to the 8-11siuation. In fact you were a consultant, who was one of many who were
analyzing whether the asbestos released with the collapse of the World Trade
Centers might pose health hazards in New York City, correct.

A. That is absolutely correct. It's absolutely correct in the following way -

THE COURT: No, no, if it's wrong it's wrong.

THE WITNESS: | believe it's incorrect.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. WILL: well --

BY MR. BROWNSON:

Q. Well, you tokd us that you played some role with tha fire fighters in determining
whether they had any health problems resulling from the situation of 9-11, just talking
about the residents with respect to -

A. Didn't you say the testing task force?

Q. I'm asking you about the fire fighters?

A. The fire fighters? I'm sorry, what's your question?

Q. Did you have some role in determining whether or not the fire fighters had any
health problems as a resuit of the collapse of the World Trade Canter on 8-117

A. Yes.

Q. And I think you toid us that you became involved with that for some association
with a Congressman named Nadier?

A. That was the residents. The Fire Fighters Vice President of the Uniform Fire
Fighters for the City of New York, McCrouter, and others sent me medical records to
review of @ number of thess fire fighters who had incurred - who are risking
exposure, had scarification of the lungs after four or five months and were disabled.
And in faci they wanted to have those peopls properly followed up long-term within a
Center of Excellence in New York City, which they were not having done, that's why
they came to me because | had written in the paper that they were at risk and no one
else had so emphatically and clearly stated what the risks were, why they were at risk
and they wanted to come and use the information to try to get those people seen.

Q. So the fire fighters went to you because you went to them in the first place?
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A. No, the first fire fighters went to me because - | mean, they read the paper &nd
they decided they wanted to understand this more fully, they were getiing sick and
what was wrong with them.

Q. And you got involved in the first place with his Congressman Nadlar?

A. That is correct.

Q. And my question to you, sir, is that that contact through Congressman Nadler
may have something to do with your situation with Mr. Alan Gerson (ph.)?

A. Absolutely.

Q. And Mr. Alan Gerson Is a lawyer who for many years represented Unicn Carbide
in asbestos cases.

A. Yes, the lawyer who's now a City Councilman and the region which he looks after
is lower Manhattan, which was the infected area.

Q. Lower Manhattan.

A. 5o heis no longer a lawyer, he hasn been a lawyer — | think he had left severai
months or six months befors.

Q. He worked at a law firm that represented Union Carbide and in that capacity he
hired you it work for Union Carbide in asbestos matters and you first worked on this
case until very recently you were reporting to Mr. Gerson, that is about a year and a
half ago, because then he left his job because he was elected to the City Council in
New York City?
A. That's right,

Q. And as unfortunately luck would have it his district included the Warld Trade
Center, so you had that connection te Mr. Gerson and the World Trade Center?

A. That's correct.

Q. And at the time we took your deposition in this case you had already been paid
at that time over $200,000 by Union Carbide to work on It's behalf with Calidria
ashestos?

A, Thatis cormect.

Q. And all in direct respect to this case -

A. Um, | think the transcript reads that it was at least two large cases for Conwed.

Q. Okay. Maybe that money was for this case and another case and other matters.
How much have you charged Union Carbide for your work since 19847

A. |believe there was another $5,000 which would be approximately $100,000.
Q. Do you currently hold any jobs, sir, where you get a pay check in any institution?

A. No.
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Ilgren's testimony shows that he was an expert witness for Union Carbide starting in 1984,
Ilgren continued as an expert for Union Carbide on this case until October, 2003,

Another CV of Iigren lists his many other defendant asbestos-related companies.
Interestingly, however, the CV that Ilgren attached to his report to the GZTF did not list any
of his many asbestos-defendant industrial clients.

Gerson was present during testimony about Chatfield/ligren paper which stated that chrysotile
asbestos such as in WIC dust was "innocuous” and a "nuisance dust”

Chatfield and Ilgren co-a uthored three papers about the hazards of Union Carbide's Calidria®
asbestos. In these papers, Chatfield and ligren claim that Union Carbide's brand of
chrysotile asbestos does not cause cancers or asbestosis, and that is "innocuous” and should
only be treated like a "nvisance dust.” The Union Carbide asbestos brand name is Calidria®,
and is used in many products such as vinyl floor tiles, ceiling tile, paints, sealants and
coatings, paper products, Bakelite, and dry wall joint compound. All these products would
have been present in the World Trade Towers.

Gerson knew that Chatfield and Ilgren had made these claims in their published studies
because Gerson was present at a deposition on 8/13/98 in which Iigren was specifically asked
about these statements.”

Gerson recommended ligren despite knowing ligren misrepresented his credentials

There are other reasons why Gerson should have had reservations about the suitability of
Ilgren performing work for the GZTF. This is because Gerson was present when Ilgren
admitted to misrepresenting his credentials. Tigren claimed in 1994 that he was on the faculty
of Oxford University on his curriculum vitae. This was not just a clencal error on the part of
Ilgren, or a case of using a CV that had not been updated. Ilgren testified”’ that he made the
mistake because he was "unsure” of his current status at Oxford in 1994, and had to check it
by inquiring at Oxford before he realized he made a "mistake.”

Furthermore, Ilgren's CV claiming he was on the faculty of Oxford in 1994 was not just a
case of listing this fact along with many other entries in a long list of jobs. Iigren included
the claim that he was on the Oxford faculty in 14-point bold-faced Times Roman lettering on
the cover page of his CV, with no other listing of any other current or past work experience
on this cover page.

There were other problems with Ilgren's representations of his credentials. See the extensive
excerpts from the trial and deposition testimony of Ilgren that are provided in the endnotes of
this memorandum.

In past Gerson helped Union Carbide oversee a change in death certificate of employee that

had listed asbestosis as a factor; therefore Gerson not naive about asbestos issues and bias of
industry experts

Asbestos litigation lawyers, whether for the defendants or plaintiffs, are extremely
knowledgeable about asbestos health effects, exposure measuring, etc. Asbestos defense
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lawyers also work very closely with their clients to educate them and shield them from
liability. Thus we can conclude that Gerson had full knowledge of the implications of his
recommendation 1o the GZTF to use Chatfield and Iigren for the post 9/11 apartment study.

Gerson took 2 pro-active approach to coach Union Carbide in overseeing the change of a
death certificate of an employee which formerly had listed asbestos exposures as a factor in
the death. In 1991, Gerson advised the former plant manager, John Myers, then a Union
Carbide litigation consultant, to question a diagnosis of asbestosis which had been listed as a
condition on one Union Carbide workers death certificate.

It was very important for Union Carbide not to have any death certificate indicating asbestos
as a cause. This is because Union Carbide was claiming that its particular type of asbestos
was harmless and did not cause asbestosis or cancer. Union Carbide was already in litigation
defending itself from disease and wrongful death suits.

Testimony of John Myers states specifically that he consulted the attorney on how to act,
without giving Gerson's name: (More extensive excerpts of this testimony are provided in
the endnotes.)

Q. What happened after you found out that his death certificate said asbestosis on it?

A. | contacted the law firm that | was dealing with at that time and -- [attorney for
Union Carbide prevents further testimony based on attorney-client privilege] [p. 82,
8/21/03 deposition of Myers]

Other court documents, attached to this memorandum, consist of the actual handwritten notes
of Myers about his conversations with Gerson, as well as handwritten notes between Myers
and other Union Carbide employees "monitoring” the death certificate change. There is also
a formal letter written by Meyers to Gerson on the subject.

The two notes summarizing the instructions that Gerson was giving to Myers about the death
certificate are quoted below:

Alan Gerson 1/7/81
Don't have our Dr. contact Dr. Oyer [coroner] uniess he knows him or is comfortable

in questioning the diagnosis of asbestosis. Have Dr. Kumar review old medical
racords.

1/7/91 Alan Gergop

Have our physician review PRW [Paul Whitlock] medical records and find out why
asbesiosis was listed as cause - on informal basis. Get copy of Death Cert. from
funeral parior or from County to find out from physician why he listed asbestosis.
per Chris at Whitehurst

Monterey & Santa Clara County won't issue permit for burial. Paul back to Santa
Clara for autopsy. Actually, now there is no Death Cert.
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a. Heart Condition

b. Hyposis

c. Sepsia other significant contribution causes asbestosis
He'll try to get Dr, info. for me.

Alan - Have our Dr. contact his Dr.

* [referring to Atan Gerson] don't ™ [ditto fo the above statement "have our Dr. contact
his Dr.")

On 6/3/91, Meyers wrote a formal letter to UC's attorney Alan Gerson stating:
Dear Alan:

Enclosed is a copy of the final autopsy report for Paul Whitlock. | am sure you will be
as pleased as | am to not that asbestosis was not involved in his death, nor is there
even any mention of it.

Very truly yours
John L. Myers

Myers, who appears to have been one of Union Carbide's "point men" for overseeing changes
in death certificates. Myers testified at length in depositions on 7/29/03 and 8/21/03. He
testified about his involvement in death certificates, as well as his newly found belief that
Union Carbide's asbestos (Calidria® brand) caused neither asbestosis nor cancers. Extended
excerpts are provided in the endnotes.”

Known credibility problems with death certificate change by coroner

The change in the death certificate from "asbestosis” to "pulmonary fibrosis" for Union
Carbide employee Whitlock was known to be erroneous by the Union Carbide employees
involved in the oversight of the change. Alan Gerson, intimately involved in the oversight of
having the death certificate changed, would also have been aware that it was changed
erroneously.

The physician/coroner who performed the autopsy and changed the diagnosis on the death
certificate (Angelo Ozoa) concluded that Union Carbide employee (Paul Whitlock) could not
be suffering from asbestosis because there were no "asbestos bodies” found in his lungs:>!

Lungs (8 H&E): Both lungs show acute broenchopneumonia and extensive fibrosis of
the pulmonary parenchyma. A moderate degree of acute and chronic cengestion is
also apparent. in places, there is fibrous thickening of the pleura, but no pleurat
calcified plaquas are present. No asbestos bodies are identified as such even on
special stain {iron). In some areas beneath the pleura, some atypical cells with
hyperchromatic nuclei are noted but no definite evidence of & neoplastic process is
recognized,
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However, it is well known that asbestos bodies do not form around thin/short chyrsotile
asbestos fibers. The Union Carbide Coalinga/Calidria® asbestos to which Whitlock was
exposed consisted of small chrysotile fibers. The Union Carbide physicians who were
overseeing the change in the death certificate and communicating with the coroner were
aware of this, but did nothing to alert the coroner to the problem., The coroner would have
needed to use an electron microscope (TEM) to see the chrysotile asbestos fibers in the lung
tissues of Whitlock, but instead only used a standard visual light microscope (PLM).

A good discussion is available about this problem from the Toxicological Profile for
Asbestos by the Agency for Toxic Substances and D:sease Registry (ATSDR) of the Centers
for Disease Control (CDC), excerpted in the endnotes.? This document discusses the fact
that there is no correlation between any visual examination of lung tissue using a PLM light
microscope, because chrysotile fibers themselves cannot be seen, and "asbestos bodies" do
not form around chrysotile fibers,

Ozoa, the coroner who performed the autopsy and changed the "asbestosis™ diagnosis, either
did not have the competence to know that he was making a mistake in the autopsy of
Whitlock, or was otherwise influenced to change the death certificate.

This not the only time there have been problems with this particular coroner. In fact, this
same coroner, Ozoa, was later indicted in another case for incompetence and falsifying a
death certificate of a woman in order to cover up his original mistake and shoddy work. Ozoa
had concluded that the woman had been murdered, instead of having committed suicide. As
a result of Ozoa's falsifications, the husband of the woman was unnecessarily tried for
murder. See the endnotes for more details, >

This information is provided here so as to shed light on whether or not Gerson knew the
implications of recommending Chatfield and Iigren to the GZTF to perform the apartment
contamination study after 9/11. [ believe he did

Implications of Union Carbide death certificate case to WTC issues

The story of Alan Gerson, Chatfield, Iigren, and Union Carbide, and the changed death
certificate an employee has vast implications. The lawyers and experts who will be
defending EPA in the new lawsuit brought by first responders and exposed residents may
well try to claim that WTC asbestos could not possibly have caused any injuries.

EPA may try to use the same "anything but chrysotile" (ABC) defense, just as Union Carbide
has been doing for years.>* Afier all, the predominant asbestos type that has been found in
WTC fallout is also short, thin fiber chrysotile asbestos, just like Union Carbide's Calidria®
asbestos from their California Coalinga mine,

In fact, EPA and ATSDR have already started the process of attempting to change their
conclusions about the carcinogenic potency of chrysotile asbestos and shost fiber asbestos.

See Section U of my 7/4/03 report whlch summarizes the current asbestos reassessments
underway by both EPA and ATSDR.>®
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See also discussions below documenting that Ilgren cited two reports authored by himself
and Chatfield on Union Carbide's Calidria® chrysotile asbestos as part of his rationale that
the asbestos in WTC fallout was harmless. This was in Ilgren's section of the report on the
post 9/11 study of two apartments for the Ground Zero Task Force.

Prejudicial statements and bias in Chatfield and ligren's post 9/11 apartment
contamination study

Prejudicial statements in Chatfield's segment of the post 9/11 apartment study

The conclusion section of Chatfield's post 9/11 apartment study for the GZTF made less
stringent recommendations than EPA for the cleanup of residential spaces. This constitutes
prejudice which could compromise Chatfield's ability to agree with any EPA conclusions of
greater risks in the EPA ORD NCEA human health assessment.

It is true that initially, Chatfield's conclusions on risks from WTC dust were the same as or
slightly more precautionary than those of EPA and the NYC DOH during the months of
September and October, 2001. However, EPA has changed its conclusions about the proper
cleanup methods. (See excerpts below.)

Prejudicial conclusion section of Chatfield's report on two post 9/11 apartments

The following is the conclusion section of Chatfield's 10/12/01 segment of the overall report
for the GZTF on the two apartments contaminated with WTC fallout.

8.0 CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

The sampling conducted on 18 September 2001 revealed that the concentrations of
PCBs, PCDD/PCDFs {expressed as 2,3,7,8-TCDD Equivalents), and inorganic
metals (excluding calcium} were generally low or below comparative background
levels. However, the concentrations of asbestos found in dust samples and in the air
inside the apartments were significantly elevated. Because these air samples were
coliected under passive conditions, any disturbance of this material could increase
the airborne concentrations and potentially increase exposure to asbestos.

The following recommendations can ensure proper cleanup of the asbestos-
cantaminated dust and reduce exposures of cleanup personnel and occupants
retuning to the building. Unless proven otherwise through testing, all dust should be
assumed to be asbestos-containing.

1) The dust cleanup should be conducted by an environmental contractor with
expertise in asbestos contamination cleanup or remediation of hazardous materials.
Contractors selected for this work should be licensed by the proper authorities in the
City of New York and/or the State of New York for asbestos or hazardous material
cleanup activities. Individuals working for these companies should be properly
trained by completing asbestos training courses certified by the New York State
Department of Health and licensed for ashestos activities by the New York State
Department of Labor. In lieu of this requirernent, at a minimum, individuals should
have Awareness Training in accordance with the OSHA Asbestos Standard, 29 CFR
1926.1101. The training should cover the potential exposures (such as asbestos and
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caustic irritant dust) that may be encountered during the activities, appropriate
personal protective equipment, and work practices.

2) Individuals performing the dust cleanup should be equipped with proper personal
protective equipment to reduce exposure to asbestos-containing and alkaline dust.
This equipment should include the use of half-face air-purifying respirators that are
equipped with high-efficiency particulate air (HEPA) filters. Note: The leve! of
respiratory protection ¢an be modified according to the conditions of worker exposure
and the airborne level of asbestos. Respiratory protection should be provided in
accordance with OSHA Standard 29 CFR 1910.134. Additionally, individuals should
use protective clothing such as disposable coveralls or simitar whole-body clothing
including hoods, boots, and gloves.

3) To reduce dust recirculation, all surfaces (including those inside of cabinets, etc.)
should be cleaned using vacuum cleaners equipped with HEPA filters. The surfaces
should then be wet-wiped with amended water containing a non-sudsing surfactant.
No suriace should be dry swept or dusted because this will re-entrain the dust.
Uphoistery and carpets should be HEPA-vacuumad and cleaned using either steam
or a hot-water exiraction methad (Kominsky et. al, 1950). All clothing, linens, and
other similar tems should be laundered.

4} The heating, ventilation, and air-conditioning (HVAC) system should be ingpected.
If the system was in operation during or afler the September 11th incident, it may
contain asbestos-contaminated dust. An environmental consultant should be
consulted to determine the most efficient procedures to clean the system including
the ale-handling unit and ventilation ducts (supply and retum).

5) A suitable re-occupancy clearance criterion needs to be established. This criterion
can be based on a thorough visual inspection and/or air testing.

6) To prevent or minimize the outdoor dust from entering the apartment: (1) keep
windows closed and repair all broken glass; (2) set the ai-conditioner to re-circulate
air (closed vents), change the filter initially and frequently thereafter; and (3} remove
shoes before entering the apartment.

Asbestos tests in Chatfield’s post 9/11 apartment study

Chatfield would not have been motivated to show unrealistic low asbestos concentrations in
the two apartments. The asbestos-related industries could point to EPA's response after 9/11
as an example and claim: "Look, EPA did not think there were any health risks indoors
when the levels were extremely high. Why is EPA forcing us to pay for cleanups to a higher
standard in other parts of the country?"

In fact, as pointed out eatlier in this memo, as well as in my 7/16/03 memo, which brought
COI allegations to the attention of the IG, one company has done exactly this. WR Grace,
the company responsible for the asbestos contamination inside homes at the Libby, MT
Superfund site, complained to EPA in its legal defense that it was unfair to make them cleanu
up to more stringent standards than EPA was using in NYC after 9/11.

Recirculation of air, changing filters

Chatfield restates the recommendations in the NYC DOH residential/office do-it-yourself
cleanup guidelines. Recirculating air inside an apartment contaminated with heavy dust
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layers would be counter-productive, since it was known at the time by Chatfield that the air
outside was less contaminated than the air inside. EPA had released its results for outdoor air
by this time, and the results were widely covered in the media. Chatfield also did his own
measurements at the same time of both indoor and outdoor air.

There was no longer the heaviest source of WTC dust at the time Chatfield made his
recommendation, the initial collapse of the towers. The contaminated outdoor air had been
diluted with fresh air over time. There had been several rain events outdoors to wash WTC
dust away. EPA's HEPA vacuum trucks also had supposedly removed the heaviest
contamination from the streets. Not so the interiors of buildings.

Chatfield, as an asbestos expert, would have known that the confined space effect inside
apartments would concentrate asbestos. Opening windows during any do-it-yourself cleanup
or while living in the apartment would have been advisable as a way of diluting the more
heavily contaminated indoor air with the cleaner outdoor air.

Chatfield would also have known that changing the filters on any air conditioner with
ordinary filters would not serve to remove the harmful respirable sized contaminated WTC
dust. Only a HEPA filter on an air conditioner would have done this. Including this
statement in Chatfield’s 10/12/01 GZTF report would have given citizens a false sense of .
security.

Visual inspection for dust without air testing recommended

Chatfield stated that visual inspection for dust after cleanup would be adequate, although he
also mentioning air testing as an option. Under the EPA/NYC cleanup program implemented
in May, 2002, air testing was required. Under the early NYC DOH guidelines for do-it-
yourself cleanups issued 9/17/01, however, no testing was recommended. Chatfield would
have known that EPA regulations required testing after any professional abatement by
certified asbestos abatement contractors, Waiving any strong recommendation for aggressive
air testing after cleanup is questionable.

Wet extraction of carpet/upholstery recommended instead of replacement

Most importantly, Chatfield recommended cleaning upholstery and carpet using a wet
extraction technique, while in the same sentence citing EPA published research performed by
Kominsky, et al. This research demonstrated that wet extraction cleaning of carpet was
ineffective for removing asbestos, only resulting in a maximum reduction of 40 to 60%
asbestos.

Although the NYC Dept. of Health originally recommended that residents using only dry
HEPA vacuum cleaners, EPA eventually made statements on its web site and in
recommendations to citizens that the same EPA studies by Kominsky proved just the
opposite, that wet extraction of carpets and upholstery was ineffective, removing only 40 to
60% of the asbestos. See Section P of my 7/4/03 report for details and references.

Chatfield as well as his co-author, John Kominsky, would have been extremely aware that
even wet extraction was ineffective, not only because of Kominsky's own studies, but also
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because it was common knowledge that EPA Region 8 had rejected wet extraction cleaning
of soft materials. Region 8 was requiring purchasing new carpet and upholstered furniture
for asbestos contaminated residences at the WR. Grace Superfund site in Libby, MT.
Chatfield was soon to become an expert witness for WR Grace.

Failure of Chatfield to use EPA's indirect method for asbestos analysis in post 9/11 apartment study

Even though Chatfield's asbestos test results did not minimize amounts using the analytical
test procedures that he did, Chatfield did not employ EPA's more sophisticated test method
using indirect preparation. This is the EPA Level Il method, using indirect sample
preparation to overcome any interference problems, which were prevalent in WTC samples.
The EPA guidance states the following:

36

M2.1 TEM

Use the update to the EPA provisional method (Yamate 1884). The sample whould
be transferred directly from the polycarbonate filler to the electron microscope grid. If
high levels of organic materials are suspected or found, cellulose ester filters and
indirect transfer (involving ashing, sonicating, and refiltering the fibers) is
recommended. ...

Other researchers in the early days after 9/11 did in fact use the EPA Level II method when
they found interferences in high-load samples. They found much higher levels of asbestos by
using the EPA Level II protocols.37 On 2/5/04, 1 sent the IG office a table which compared
the different levels of asbestos found in the Chatfield study, compared to that by HP
Environmental, et al., which used indirect sample preparation for the more heavily
contaminated samples.

Chatfield in his verbal comments at the 7/14/03 public meeting of the peer panel is reported
to have been very critical of any use of EPA's Level II test for asbestos by indirect
preparation.

Failure of Chatfield to test for crystalline silica

Chatfield's post 9/11 apartment study did not test for crystalline silica. This is problematic.
In EPA's pilot cleaning study of apartments at 110 Liberty St., an apartment building
immediately facing Ground Zero on the southern boundary, excessive levels of silica were
found even after a minimum of 3 rigorous abatements (one by the tenants, a subsequent one
by the fire department, and then one by EPA/NYC DEP). It took several more abatements
for EPA to bring silica levels within acceptable levels at 110 Liberty. But Chatfield was
testing apartments even before the most rudimentary cleaning in his study. Undoubtedly, the
silica levels would have been above standards if measured.

Questionable findings of normal levels of lead, dioxins, and PCB's in Chatfield’s post 9/11
apartment study

Chatfield found supposedly "lower than background concentrations ... significantly less than
the guidelines" of PCB's, and "significantly lower than cleanup guidelines" of
polychlorinated dioxins and furans (PCDD’s and PCDF's). These results are remarkable and
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questionable, since in EPA’s pilot cleaning study of 110 Liberty St., as well as in many
individual apartment cleanings participating in the EPA/NYC DEP dust cleanup program,
PCB's were higher than cleanup standards even after several rigorous abatements. Chatfield
was testing two apartments where there were still heavy layers of visible dust, yet he found
no elevated levels of lead, mercury, PCB's or dioxins.

Chatfield also found no elevated lead levels, which is also questionable, given the thick
heavy layers of dust. Again, in EPA’s pilot cleaning study of 110 Liberty St., as well as in
many individual apartment cleanings participating in the EPA/NYC DEP dust cleanup
program, lead levels were higher than cleanup standards, even after several rigorous
abatements.

Prejudicial statements in Ilgren's segment of the post 9/11 apartment study

Edward B. Iigren, MD, the collaborator with Chatfield in the post 9/11 apartment study for
the Ground Zero Task Force, also made statements in his 10/11/01 report to the GZTF
minimizing or denying significant hazards from indoor contamination by WTC dust.

llgren does not in any way contradict the conclusions of Chatfield. Both he and Chatfield
recommended OSHA-level respiratory protection, but only for those workers continually
involved in apartment/office cleanups. llgren states that the NYC DOH recommended
cleaning procedures are appropriate for residents, which specifically state that commeon dust
masks are not even needed indoors during do-it-yourself cleanups.

Ilgren made the following statements, which mirror those of Chatfield, while adding
additional statements related to the risk of asbestos (saying there is no asbestos risk to
residents, but that workers cleaning apartments should wear protective gear).

Dr. John Kominsky and Dr. Eric Chatfield will report their detailsd technical and
analytical findings, including full data sets related to this survey, in a separate
communication. The aim of this report is to provide a statement related to the
possible health risks to residents and cleaners from exposures to asbestos and
inorganic metals due to the collapse of the World Trade Center. [p. 1]

Asbestos exposure can produce three diseases: mesothelloma, asbestosis, and
asbestos-related lung cancer. ... The development of each of these diseases is
dose related and the doses needed to induce them are substantial. There are
thresholds for all three diseases (ligren, 1889; 1993; ligren & Browne, 1991; ligren &
Wagner, 1691; Browne, 1983). ... The development of each of these diseases also
depends on fiber type. Chrysctile does not induce mesothelioma (ligren & Chatfield,
1898). ... In summary, the levels of long thin asbestos fibers needed io produce
asbestosis and thus asbestos related lung cancer are exceedingly high and generally
exceed 25 to 50 fiber years (Browne, 1993). ... Amphibole exposures are needed to
induce mesothelioma ... [p. 2)

The airborne fiber (>5u} concentrations are very low and are thus of no concem,
Since the surface wipe reading are increased, elevated levels of airborne ashestos
could be produced if the surface dust is disturbed. ... If this was so and the materials
were disturbed, significantly elevated levels of chrysotile might be produced.
However, given the small percentage of amphibole, it is very unlikely that significantly
elevated levels of airborna amphibole fiber would be seen. This, in turn, suggests
that residents and cleaners could not attain doses of amphibole fiber sufficient fo put
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them at risk of developing mescthelioma, ... It would therefore follow that residents
are aiso not at risk of developing asbestos and asbestosis related lung cancer. The
residents are also nol at risk of developing asbestos related disease since their
duration of exposure is too brief. Indeed, the EPA and the NYC DEP appear to
concur with this view stating that “ill effects such as lung cancer require long term
exposure” (Wall St. Joumnat! 11 O¢t 01). [p. 3-4] ...

A second form of amphibole asbestos fiber called richterite was aiso found in this
investigation in exceedingly low quantities. ... Some will recognize richierite as
being associated with the vermiculite found In Libby, Montana, This raises the
possibility that the vermiculite came from a W R Grace manokote spray used to
insulate the World Trade Center complex. Given the date of the construction of the
complex and the use of monokote during that period of time, the finding of some
richterite containing vermiculite would not be unexpected. ... [p. §]

The recent Wall Street Journal article (Walk St. J,, 11 Oct 01 "Residents study
asbestos levels near Ground Zero") states that “there appear to be as many
approaches to cleaning up and dealing with the dust as there are buildings in lower
Manhattan.” This is particulary disturbing since some residents, albeit at no risk of
asbestos related disease, could still develop serious sensitivity type reactions, such
as acute asthma and severe naso-pharyngitis, if exposed to the highly irritating dusts.
Contaminants must therefore be removad using the appropriate work practice
techniques which should include HEPA vacuuming and subsequent wet wiping of all
surfaces with surfactant containing water. Soft furniture should also be cleaned
professionally e.g. by steam cleaning in situ. ... [p. 8]

On the basis of this very limited survey, exposures to inarganic metals pose littie if
any risk to residents. Professional cieaning of apartments is again advised.
Cleaners should wear the appropriate respikalory protection and clothing. ... [p. 13)

Prejudicial statements by other EPA WTC peer review panelists, Patrick
Kinney and Alison Geyh

Two other panelists are known to have advised the public through the press that there were
no hazards from WTC exposures for residents, Hazards only applied to first responder
rescue workers and abatement workers continually exposed in cleanups on a daily basis.
Their statements are prejudicial, making it difficult for them to change their opinions at this
later date to agree with any EPA conclusions, no matter what the data, that there are potential
or real risks from WTC exposures to residents.

They could be in a liability situation, subject to lawsuits. If they not only failed to warn the
public, but reassured them in the past, and if a member of the public can demonstrate in court
a likelihood of that injury/illness being the result of WTC exposures that would not have
occurred were it not for the reassuring statements, then there is a problem. There would be a
vested financial interest in EPA finding no hazards as a shield against lawsuits.

There would not be the same kind of legal liability problem for a panelist if they had earlier
advised the public to take precautions over and beyond those recommended by public
officials at the time. Such a person could easily state that new evidence demonstrated that
such precautions were unnecessary.

32



Document hosted at JDSU PRA
http://www.jdsupra.com/post/documentViewer.aspx?fid=0fe89408-a94a-44ca-b441-15h9fdcac914

Prejudicial statements by Patrick Kinney

One panel member, Patrick Kinney, has gone on record to state that tests had conclusively
demonstrated that asbestos concentrations as well as the other measured toxic constituents
were not of concern to residents.

See below two articles in the New York Times and another posted on a help site for citizens
where Kinney makes such statements. There may be many other places where Kinney made
such statements, such as in testimony or other press no longer accessible on the internet.

The quality of the air has become a matter of widespread anxiety among people who
live or work in Lower Manhattan — anxiety compounded in many cases by open
disbelief in assurances from government and public health officials that the air, while
acrid and sometimes smelly, is generally safe to breathe.

Local residents and workers in downtown buildings say they fear that burning eyes,
runny noses and scratchy throats — common maladies below 14th Street, especially
at night — could be an indicator of something worse that is not being measured at all.
For many people, the plume of dust and smoke that continues to be a presence
downtown has become part of the nightmare itself: in an altered New York, even the
air, it seems, is no longer what it was.

But the results obtained by The Times, and interviews with independent health
experts around the country and at the E.P.A., also suggest strongly that emotion and
anxiety have elevated concerns about the air far beyond the levels shared by most
scientists and public health experts. *There's [ittle risk to the general pubtic of any
ongoing air pollution related to the World Trade Center,” said Patrick L. Kinnay, an
associate professor of environmental health sciences at Columbia University, who
has monitored air testing results and was briefed about Adelaide's findings.

Professor Kinnay and other experts say that the raw throats and sinuses that many
residents and workers complain about are in fact mostly evidence of the body's
defensive systems. Large particies of dust that get trapped in nasal and throat
passages trigger irritation, but that also means that most of the particles are not
making il all the way to the lungs.

Smalier particles, called respirable dust, which can penstrate deeply into the lungs
and are a greater health concern, were not found in significant quantities at street
level by Adelaide, which also confirms recent government tests,

[KIRK JOHNSON with ANDREW C. REVKIN (10/11/01) Contaminants Below Levels
for Long- Term Concesns, New York Times,
http://193.78.190.200/10f/contaminant.htm  }

Other public health experts said that Dr. Levin's presentation reinforced their
assessment that the long-term health consequences of the attacks were not likely to
be severe for the general population.

"My assessment hasn't changed,” said Patrick |.. Kinney, an associate professor of

pubtic health at the Mailman School of Public Health at Columbia University. "The
main health concern was workers around the pile,” he said.
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But Professor Kinney added that there had been health effects that wers not
lifethreatening, including new cases of asthma and sinusitis in people who were
exposed to the dust.

"Beyond that, I'm not aware of any data that has suggested that people off-site have
suffered any important health consequences,” he said.

{Kirk Johnson (4/26/02) Expert Says Asbestos Slightly Raised Risks for Disease
Among Residents of Lower Manhatian, New York Times,
http:/iwww.mesotheliomacenter.org/news_02.html ]

More than six weeks after the Seplember 11 terrorist attack on New York, fires are
still smoldering under the debris of the former World Trade Center complex, The
continuing smoke s warrying some city residents about the quality of the air they are
breathing.. . .

City officials have tried to reassure New Yorkers, ordering a series of on-going tests
to monitor air quality. Pafrick Kinney specializes in the effects of air quality on
respiratory systems at Columbia University's School of Public Health. He says the
tests show there are no toxic pollutants, like asbestos, tainting the quality of air. "The
data that has been collected so far do not show concentrations of poliutants that are
of concem,” adds Professor Kinney. "However, not all of the pollutants that you might
want to look at have been monitored or, at least, reported yet. So the database is
incomplete. Based on what we know so far, there is no cause for alarm.” . . .

But Professor Kinney says it is unlikely that new data will show any pollutants that put
people at risk. "l do not think it was unwise to have people start repopulating the
area,” he says. "l think that our noses are very sensitive and we pick up a lot of things
that are not necessarily toxic. | think it is good to be careful, lo minimize exposure as
much as possible. For the general public, as long as we are careful, | think the risks
are qguite low.” . . . [Emphasis added.]

[Help-for-You.com {10/28/01} NY Residents Worry About Air Quality, Barbara
Schoetzau, New York, www.help-for-you.com/news/Oct2001/0ct28/PRT28-
38Article.himi ]

Prejudicial statements by Alison Geyh

The peer review panelist Alison Geyh has also made definitive conclusions that asbestos
testing showed no harmful levels to residents, and that there were no lung obstructive airway
problems for residents and office workers (as opposed to first responders). As with the
panelist Kinney, it would be difficult for Geyh from a libility standpoint to now agree with
any EPA conclusions indicating a hazard or compromised health risk.

Investigators from the Johns Hopkins Bloomberg School of Public Health now believe
that World Trade Center workers' respiratory problems are the result of exposure 1o
dust and airborne contaminants at Ground Zero. Workers assigned to clear debris
have reported coughing, wheezing and sore throats while working at Ground Zero.
The symptoms seemed to increase the longer they worked at the site, according to
Dr. Alison Geyh, the chief investigator and assistant professor of environmental
health sciences at Johns Hopkins.
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"The good news is that we did not find unhealthy levels of asbestos, but we don't

know what the long term health risks may be regarding exposure to other airbome
contaminants at the site.” . . . [Emphasis added.]

[World Trade Center Health Update Summarized by Cheryl Runyon from the
Environment News Service AmeriScan, Aug. 23, 2002,
http:/iwww.ncsl.org/programs/esnriwtcheatth.htm ]

In a study of more than 180 cleanup workers, researchers at Johns Hopkins
Bioomberg School of Public Health found that acute respiratory symptoms such as
coughs, phlegm and wheezing were more prevalent than before they began working
at the site. But in most workers, said Dr, Alison Geyh, the lead researcher, there was
no sign of lung obstruction.

“For the general community this is & very good story,” Geyh said.

[Researchers teil of health studies fied to WTC disaster, By Canl Glassman 1 172/01,
Cnline News From The Tribeca Tribune

http:/iwww tribecatrib.com/mewsnov02/envira2. himl )
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2,

COl issues - Chatfield consultancy to Region 1, Brookfield schools

The EPA 1G needs to investigate this other instance where Chatfield has influenced EPA's
decision making process, and where EPA Region 1 circumvented the EPA COI investigation
and mitigation process in utilizing the services of Chatfield for a risk assessment applied to
the Brookfield condominium/school asbestos situations.

New 2/10/04 Connecticut Attorney General Investigation, faulting EPA/Chatfield/Beard risk

assessment for settled dust

The Connecticut Attorney General (AG was critical both of EPA Region 1 and the CT
Department of Public Health's role in not insuring the cleanup and testing of asbestos. The
AG also noted problems with Region 1's spurious benchmark of 45,000 structures per square
centimetet (s/cmz) asbestos on surfaces in settled dusts.

The history of Brookfield's school asbestos problem is best summarized in the 2/10/04 AG
report itself. The CT AG investigation is available online, and excerpts are given here.

As early as the spring of 2000, concerns about asbestos in the Brookfield schools
were raised through numerous letters to DPH from Brookfield residents [Kathy Hulce,
Theresa Burlhis, Melinda Kelly, Laura Macchiaverna, and others]. ...

During the summer of 2000, DPH [Connecticut Dept. of Public Health] sought the
technical assistance of the EPA (Region 1) to address the concerns of the Brookfield

residents ...

DP fficials ultimatel ined in 2000 th: 8 remeadiation

would b ropriate in areas where { tion of asb. in gettled dus'
xceeded 4 0 structur are centimet standard of 4

structures per square imetsr was not a health standard nor | standard.

Rather, it was a number that was determinad to correlate with asbestos levels in

outgoor ambient air. Representatives from DPH and the EPA met with Brookfield
town and school officials to establish a remedial asbestos cleaning and assessment
action plan that corresponded with this goal.

Throughout the summer of 2000, DPH and EPA were actively involved ... decided
that the schoois were suitable for occupancy for the 2001-02 school year.

In response to the complaints that DPH had been negligent in carrying out its
enforcement of taws and regulations related to asbestos ... On July 17, 2001, the
DPH General Counsel's Office completed and issued its internal report which
generally concluded that the recommendations of the EPA regarding the asbestos
remediation of the Brookfield schoois had been followed. [On April 2, 2001, Kathy
Huice, a parent, submitied a petition to the DPH requesting a complete cleaning
inctuding the ventilation system and the use of dust as well as air testing.] ...

Despite the actions by the Brookfield local school district, assisled by DPH and EPA
in 2000, Brookfield residents continued to have concems ... Brookfield parents and
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teachers continued to convey these concems to DPH through correspondence. In
May 2002, a music teacher from Huckleberry Hill Elementary School in Brookfield
independently hired an asbestos consultant to test her classroom for air
contammants he test rgsults revealed asbestos Igvelg wellin gxgsg of 45,000

g o o be : DPH
g EEA during the asbestos remedsation conducted in Brookﬁeld in 2000 Additional
dust and air testing conducted between May and June of 2002 revealed the presence
of high lavels of asbestos fibers in settled dust in all four Brookfield scheoi buildings,
resulting in the premature closure of the Brookfield schools. ...

To respond to this emergency, Brookfield officials assembled a yolunteer, ad hoc
Asgbestos Oversight Committee, which included the First Selectman, the
Superintendent of Brookfield Public Schools, two asbestos consuitants hired by the
town, as well as certain Brookfield residents who had expressed concem about
issues related to asbestos in the schools. Thig ggm] ggm[mﬂgg determined that the

Broglkfield schools should be cleaned ang re: g areas whers testin

revealed asbestos fibers in settied dust of $000 structures per square centimeter. ...

On June 11, 2002, representatives from DPH and EPA participated in a public forum
to address questions of the Brookfield community regarding asbesfos. ... DPH
explicitly refused to monitor or oversee the asbestos decontamination effort during

the summer of 2002 Even mcggh, in ZOQQ, DPH and EPA had established a goal to

cenﬂmetg_l;, QEI;I off clals did not offer any g p nign or comment raqarding the merit of
the town's determination to apply a much more gtringent standard by cleani

asbe: where testing revealed as 1$ in s& ust exceeded 5

structures per square centimeter.

[Tlhe Governor and the Secretary of OPM formally certified on July 12, 2002, that the
situation in Brookfield constituted “an unusual and serious condilion endangering
public health and welfare,” DFH's explicit abdication of its duty in 2002 to oversee
compliance with, and enforcement of, the laws and regulations related to asbestos in
schools was deeply troubling. .., After all, in 2000, DPH and EPA extensively
reviewed and approved the plan 1o clean asbestos in those areas of the Brookfield
school buildings where micro-vacuum sampling revealed that the concentration in

settied dust ex [es per squar ntim

During the 2002-03 schoo! year, the Brookfield school district adopted and carried
out an Asbestos Monltoring Program, which included random air testing every 6
weeks in 80-100 classrooms throughout the Brookfield schools, in addition to annual
dust sampling of each classroom ventilator in all four of the Brookfield schools
buildings. In those locations where air test results yielded concentrations of asbestos
levals in the air greater than 0. ic centimeter, classrooms

lated, clean = nd determined to be suitable for reo
[Emphasis added.]

EPA Region 1's version of history Brookfield asbestos problem and of Region 1 benchmark
standard of 45,000 s/cm2 asbestos in settled dust as told by EPA Region 1's Wayne Toland

Region 1 gives a different account of events. According to a 9/10/02 email from Wayne
Toland, EPA Region 1, in the yvear 1996 he used Chatfield as well as Mike Beard (consultant
with RTI) as consultants for a risk assessment for 8 condominium. The same risk assessment
was then used for the Brookfield school system in 2000. See the excerpts of the Toland's
email in the endnotes.
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The Region 1 risk assessment was questioned by concerned parents, teachers, and elected
officials, and the press in Brookfield. There were a series of obvious technical flaws with the
Region I risk assessment, all leading to a prediction of safe levels of asbestos much higher
than typically found in direct-measured background levels.

Toland, in his 9/10/02 email, justifies the high benchmark value of 45,000 structures asbestos
per square centimeter (s;’cmz) set in 1996 for the condominium because it was an "EJ" (which
means Environmental Justice) issue, because the "folks” (African Americans) would not be
able to afford to clean up the asbestos in the condominium to safer levels. This is a complete
perversion of the intention of EPA's Environmental Justice program, which is intended to
give equal protection to minorities and the less advantaged, not a justification for giving less
protection. ¥

Toland then states that the same 1996 risk assessment for the condo was used as-is in 2000
for the Brookfield schools, Toland describes Brookfield as "a fairly affluent town situated
about 25 miles north of Stamford, CT ... where 7 of the top (Fortune 100) companies are." In
other words, Toland is then pointing out that this is not an "EJ issue" in Brookfield, no longer
a sitvation involving African Americans. Toland is using the term "EJ issue” as code for a
racial minority.

Toland goes on to describe the complaints of the citizens, and claims that only "one voice” is
leading them, derisively describing Ms. Hulce as "their self-appointed Joan of Arc.”

Brookfield citizens were critical of the claims in Toland's 9/10/02 email, disputing his
representations as well as objecting to his contemptuous comments.*! A full copy of these
letters is being provided to the EPA IG to assist in their investigation.

Chatfield involvement in Region 1 benchmark for asbestos at 45.000 s/cm? in settled dust

These facts are known about Chatfield's involvement in the Brookficld school system. As
stated before, in 1996, Region 1 consuited with him for the condominium risk assessment.
This same risk assessment was used in 2000 by EPA Region | for the Brookfield school
system. Then, in the year 2002, Chatfield spoke to a concerned parent and also prepared a
letter at the request of a teacher in Brookfield concerning the school contamination with
asbestos. 1 also contacted Chatfield by email in 2002 about the Brookfield schools, and
although Chatfield did not respond to me, he mentioned my email in his letter provided to the
Brookfield teacher. Chatfield made statements at the 7/14/03 public peer review meeting in
NYC about the WTC risk assessment to some effect that he was not involved with the
Brookfield schools, but I do not know his exact wording.

The details and documentary evidence are discussed below:

Initial consultancy to Region 1 in 1996, used Brookfield school risk assessment in 2000

The 9/10/02 Toland memo {above) documents Chatfield's involvement in 1996 with the
condominium risk assessment. A new cover page was put on this 1996 risk assessment,
turning it into the 2002 Brookfield school system risk assessment.*?
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Jenkins' 5/30/02 email and faxes to Chatfield

In 2 5/30/02 email,” T contacted Chatfield and raised concerns about the use of his 1983 data
to support allowing the extremely high benchmark for asbestos dust (45,000 s/cm?). 1
attached electronic versions of the full Region 1 risk assessment to show how they had
chosen the one highest level he had found in outdoor air was being used as background. I
also sent sections of the "EPA Purple Book” which is a guidance manual under the CAA
NESHAP to show how EPA had interpreted his outdoor air data in the past — EPA looked at
the exact same data set from Chatficld's 1983 study, and concluded that outdoor background
air concentrations were at least an order of magnitude lower.

I explained the manner in which Region 1 was using his data to justify high exposures of
children in Brookfield. At the time, I did not know that he had been a consultant to Region 1
and responsible for the way his 1983 data was being used by Region 1.

1 personally received no reply or acknowledgement of my request from Chatfield disavowing
the way in which his data was used.

3/27/02 letter from Chatfield concerning Brookfield school asbestos and conversation with
concerned parent

At the request of Margaret Fitzgeraid, the music teacher in Brookfield, Chatfield sent a letter
dated 5/27/02.% The letter is addressed to "To Whom it May Concern." The letter was
requested to assist in obtaining an injunction against the reopening of the Brookfield schools,
temporarily closed because of asbestos contamination.

In his 5/27/02 letter, Chatfield refers to my 5/30/02 email to him, but does not mention the
date of my email. (There is some problem with dates, possibly due to backdating on
Chatfield's letter. I doubt my computer incorrectly dated my email.)

Chatfield advises Fitzgerald that asbestos in the Brookfield school system should be cleaned
up until there is no visible dust, and recommends aggressive air testing. Chatfield does not,
however, say anything in his letter to disown the misuse of his 1983 data by Region 1 in their
risk assessment. Thus, Chatfield implicitly condones it in the year 2002,

The use of the outlier high value in Chatfield's 1983 data to back-calculate a safe dust
concentration was the central issue at this time in the cleanup standards for the Brookfield
schools. Instead of addressing the central issue of whether 45,000 s/cm® was an
appropriately derived value, Chatfield minimized concerns for asbestos in the settled dust by
claiming that it was unlikely for some of the asbestos to become airborne:

Asbestos can be present in dust and debris such that the ASTM analytical method
D5755-95 gives a high result, but the asbestos-containing particles in the dust and
debris will almost always be substantially fewer in number and frequently will be far
too large to become airborne.

During the same time period, Chatfield was also contacted telephonically by a concerned
parent, Ms, Kathy Hulce. Iam informed that Chatfield did not explicitly criticize the manner
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in which Region 1 had used his 1983 data to back-calculate the 45,000 s/em® benchmark
level for asbestos in dust.

Chatfield statement at NYC peer review panel public meeting for the ORD NCEA WTC risk
assessment that he was never a consultant for the Brookfield schools

I have been told that Chatfield said at peer review panel meeting in NYC on 7/14/03 that he
was not a consultant for the Brookfield school system. I do not know his exact words. The
EPA IG office will need to review the tape recordings of this meeting.

Flawed science, EPA Region 1 dust benchmark of 45,000 s/em” derived from Chatfield's data

Region 1's risk assessment™ with its back calculated surface dust level of 45,000 s/cm? from
Chatfield's limited and outdated 1983 data was totally erroneous, flawed, and
misrepresentative of facts and basic scientific principles.

Statements in the Region 1 risk assessment itself were egregious mischaracterizations of
established EPA policy, and directly contradicted the conclusions of the Agency for Toxic
Substances and Disease Registry (ATSDR) of the Centers for Disease Control (CDC) which
had prepared its own evaluation of actual outdoor air background asbestos levels on behalf of
EPA.%

My 6/9/02 memorandum addressed the fallacies in the EP/Chatfield/Beard benchmark safety
level of 45,000 s/cm”. A table was given showing how EPA/Chatfield/Beard chose every
false outlier value so as to drive up their estimate of background levels of settled dust. See
the excerpts in the endnotes. ¥’

Use of high outlier value for asbestos in air from Chatfield's 1983 study

The highest outlier value of ambient, outdoor air was used from the 1983 Chatfield study“ to
back-calculate a level of asbestos in settled dust. Toland states that "ALL AGREED"
meaning that Chatfield was not disputing the way in which Region ! was using Chatfield's
one high outlier value from his 1983 study, instead of an average. The higher Region 1 and
its consultants could claim was in background air, the higher the back-calculated dust level
would be.

See pages 10 through 14 of my 6/9/02 memorandum® which discusses EPA Region 1's
misuse of the data from the 1983 Chatfield study, instead of the newer approved data
specifically developed by EPA.

In stark contrast, the 1991 Health Effects Institute (HEI) .«study,50 produced under a mandate
to EPA, and as summarized by the Agency for Toxic Substanccs and Disease Registry
(ATSDR) in a series of Toxicological Profiles for Asbestos,” found outside ambient
background air to be as follows: For rural areas, 0.00001 s/cc, and urban background air,
0.0001 s/cc.

The ATSDR profile for asbestos and other toxic substances are updated every 3 years, with
the last update for asbestos being in the year 2001. The ATSDR profile for asbestos has
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discussed the HEI study for asbestos in outdoor air since 1993, long before the 1996 Region
1/Chatfield/Beard risk assessment for the condominium and the 2000 risk assessment for the
Brookfield schools. Chatfield's 1983 study was not mentioned or cited by the ATSDR
asbestos profile in their evaluation the extensive literature on outdoor as well as indoor air
asbestos levels.

Chatfield knew his 1983 study was superceded by new EPA-commissioned analysis

Chatfield knew when advising Region 1 in 1996 that his 1983 study was outdated and
superceded by new EPA-commissioned analyses. In deposition testimony,sz Chatfield
admitted that he was familiar with the findings of the Health Effects Institute (HEI) 1991
study showing extremely low indoor and outdoor asbestos background levels.

Beard, other consultant for Region 1 risk assessment, also aware of ATSDR/HE! data, but continued
to support use of Chatfield 1983 data

In an email interchange between myself and Beard on 3/21/02,%? 1 told Beard about the
ATSDR/HEI data for indoor and outdoor air. 1 forwarded the website so that Beard could
download the ATSDR Toxicological Profile for asbestos, with the HEI tables and ATSDR's
evaluation of the HEI data. As seen from the excerpts in the endnotes, Beard thanked me for
the information, and said he would leave risk assessment to "experts” such as myself.

Yet on 6/11/02, Beard appeared along side with Region 1 at a public meeting in Brookfield,
continuing to defend the use of the high outlier value from the 1983 Chatfield study as
Justification to exposing children to extremely high levels of asbestos in dust at 45,000 s/cm”.
Later in a telephone conversation, Beard told me that he was not using the newer data from
the ATSDR asbestos profile because he doubted that his computer would have been able to
download the document.

Rejection by Brookfield elected officials of Region 1 benchmark of 45,000 s/cm?2 ashestos in

settled dust, and implement asbestos air standard more stringent than EPA is using in the

cleanup of NYC after the WTC collapse
Brookfield Selectmen reject EPA Region 1 dust standard of 45,000 s/cm®

The AG report (see above) discusses the fact that the town selectman committee overseeing
the cleanup rejected this standard, instead setting a standard of 5,000 s/cm? for asbestos in
settled dust. In addition, the local newspapers discussed the debate and rejection by
Brookfield of the Region 1 risk assessment.

Brookfield Selectmen also implement more protective asbestos air standard than EPA is using for
cleanups in NYC after the WTC collapse

It is noteworthy that the Brookfield Selectmen also set an air standard of 0.0004 structures
per cubic centimeter (s/cc). This is total asbestos fibers and structures, not just "PCM
equivalents.” This level of 0.0004 s/cc is the detection limit of the laboratory method.
Brookfield officials correctly stated for the record that they were "way ahead of the pack".
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This level being used by Brookfield is much lower than what EPA is using in NYC after the
WTC disaster. In NYC, EPA is only counting "PCM cquivalent” asbestos fibers, not all
asbestos fibers and structures. In other words, for NYC residents, EPA will test the air and
find all the asbestos structures and fibers, but will discount or ignore any that are not within a
certain size range. In NYC, EPA is making the assumption that asbestos fibers smaller than
5 microns in length are not hazardous, an assumption contested by many scientists.

Difference between decisions of elected officials in Brookfield compared to NYC in the aftermath of
9/11

There is a marked difference in the responses of the ¢lected officials of Brookfield, CT
compared to those in NYC responding to the toxic fallout from the World Trade Towers,
One would think that the New York City officials would want to be as protective of the
living victims of 9/11 as the officials in Brookfield are of their children, rejecting EPA
guidance they thought was flawed. Unfortunately, this is not the case.

The explanation may lie in an examination of the backgrounds and financial ties of the
officials in the two different cities. See earlier sections for a documentation of the
relationship of Alan Gerson, NYC Councilmember, to asbestos industry defendant
corporations.

State and local governments are always free to institute more stringent standards, but not less,
than EPA's under any of the environmental laws which EPA admlmsters (AHERA, CAA,
CERCLA/NCP, CWA, etc.) See Section V of my 7/4/03 report $ for a citation to the
language in the EPA regulations which would have allowed NYC to implement more
stringent standards for the cleanup than EPA.

Failure of EPA Region 1 to investigate any COI of Chatfield

EPA Region 1 is at fault for accepting the services (apparently pro bono, since Chatfield did
not list this work on his CV) of Chatfield to perform such an inherently governmental
function of deciding what levels of asbestos are safe for citizens. Region 1 apparently did
nothing to investigate the background and conflict of interests of Chatfield when accepting
his free services.

Chatfield lists eight occasions of serving as an expert w:tness for asbestos defendants being
sued by school systems for asbestos damages in his CV.% There were no instances where
Chatfield listed consultancy to any school boards, however. Potential COl problems due to
these or other asbestos industry defendant relationships with Chatfield was apparently neither
sought nor evaluated by Region 1.
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Need for EPA IG investigation of spurious Region 1 dust benchmark and failure to prevent
improper influence on EPA functions by consultancy with Chatfield

Eariier request for IG investigation of Region 1 benchmark and Chatfield COI

On 10/2/03, a concerned parent, Ms. Kathy Rossland-Hulce, requested that the EPA IG
investigate the matter of Region 1's improper use of data from an outside consultant,
Chatfield:*

In the spring of 2000, parents brought to light that the Brookfield Public School
Systemn had not been following the laws of AHERA for years. EPA Region 1
performed an ineffactive risk assessmeant using a non-protective “standard” of 45,000
asbestos structures per centimeter squared for asbestos in dust ... Upon
investigation, | discovered that this “standard” was, in actuality, an arbitrary
benchmark level that had been used once before in a low-income East Hartford
condominium and was based upon the one outlying air measurement from an
outdated air study by Dr. Eric Chatfield, even though newer data used by ATSDR
was widely accepted and available. (Please see my atiached letter dated 7-7-02 to
Administrator Robert Vamey .}

EPA Region 1 told us our schools were “safe” after cleaning up 5 *found” areas of
asbestos contamination over 45,000 slcmz. in spite of our protests and continued
letters for 2 years after. Letters remained unsatisfactorily answered, including the
question as to why ventilation ducts were not tested nor cleaned in all schools in
2000.

This risk assessment failed us, as our worsi fears were realized in 2002.

In the spring of 2002, teacher Margare! Fitzgerald independently hired an asbestos
consultant to test her room for asbestos in dust. Several exceedingly high levels
were found (example: 3 million s/cm2!) in both air and dust. ...

As a result of pressure from the community, further testing of all four schoals ensued.
ALL FOUR SCHOOLS WERE EXTENSIVELY AND HIGHLY CONTAMINATED. For

example, 14 MILLION s/cm’ were found in a radiator at Brookfield High School!

Schools were closed and professionally cleaned to a more protective standard of
5,000 s/cmZ. This time around, the ventilation was cleaned.

Parants’ and teachers' concems about the inadequacy of EPA's risk assessment in
2000 wers validated.

Yet EPA Region 1 continues to espouse 45,000 as a valid benchmark level. (Please
see attached letter dated 8-4-02 from Stephen S. Perkins, Director of Office of
Environmental Stewardship, EPA Region 1.)

The dangers our children have been exposed to is unconscionable and scandalous.
If parents and teachers had not remained vigilant and tenacious, our children and
schoo! staff would still be working in an asbestos-contaminated environment under
the false iliusion that “our schools were safe.”

Due Lo the insidious latency of affacts from asbestos exposure, we will not truly know
for years what effect this exposure to asbestos will have on Brookfield children’s
health.
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For the sake of our children and our nation’s citizens, please intervene to have the
EPA finally establish health protective risk assessment procedures and standards for
asbestos.

Before writing this letter to the EPA IG, Ms. Hulce wrote to Regmn 1 Administrator Varney
on 7/7/02 to see if EPA stood behind the 45,000 s/cm? benchmark.” On 9/4/02, Steven
Perkins, replied to Hulce,® saying:

Thank you for your letter ... expressing concerns about EPA's recommended
benchmark for asbestos cleanups. ... We have also consutted with the Agency for
Toxic Substances and Disease Registry (ATSDRY) in an effort to determine if the
clean-up benchmark of 45,000 s/fcm2 should be revised based on existing ambient
air or exposure studies to which ATSDR may be privy. If this is the case, EPA will
recansider this benchmark with a focus on revising it 10 a level consistent with those
study resulis.

However, Region 1 has done nothing to revise or withdraw its dust benchmark standard.
Because Region 1 insists on continuing to use this standard, the EPA 1G should intervene.

Prior statements by EPA IG that dust benchmarks such as developed by Region 1 not appropriate

The EPA IG stated last summer that EPA should develop a standard for asbestos in sett]ed
dust in it 8/21/02 investigation of EPA's actions in the aftermath of the WTC collapse

Risk assessors employ a mathematical formula to estimate the amount of asbestos in
dust thal can be expected to become airbome in order to evaluate the potential risk
to human health from asbestos in dust. This factor is known as the K Factor.”
However, this factor is not deemed reliable at this time. The panel that completed the
peer review far EPA’s indoor standards did not endorse the asbestos-settied dust
benchmark becausg the “the K-factor methodology is, at this time, inadeguate for
predicting inhalation exposure from asbestos surface loading measurement.”

We believe EPA should review the AHERA standard and determine whather the
standard needs to be revised in light of the fact that better filters are available today,
and continue the work of the indoor COPC group to develop health-related screening
levels for asbestos in dust

Surely the 1G should instruct Region | to cease and desist with the continued use of its ad
hoc dust standard which is neither sanctioned by the rest of the Agency nor developed under
conditions to prevent the improper influence of outside parties with conflicts of interest.

There is an ohvious continued need for the EPA IG to investigate Region 1's circumvention
of EPA's procedures to investigate and mitigate potential conflicts of interest of consultants,
which were apparently violated in the use of Chatfield to develop this dust benchmark.

The problem with Chatfield is just the tip of the iceberg at EPA. This circumvention of EPA
COI procedures and the need for additional control of outside influences on EPA by special
interests is discussed in greater detail in the conclusion section of this memorandum.
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3.

COl issues - panelists for EPA JATSDR asbestos risk reassessment

Section U of my 7/4/03 report brought to the attention of the IG another EPA peer panel
assisting in both the EPA and ATSDR reassessment of asbestos fiber toxicity. This
memorandum supplements the information with additional documentation of asbestos
industry financial ties of the peer panel consultants for these efforts.

A review of a recent EPA expert panel and a scientific panet convened by ATSDR reveals
that several panel members failed to disclose their on-going consulting contacts with
corporations (or their lawyers) with material interests in the outcome of the discussions.

EPA panel COl issues

This recent EPA-sponsored event on asbestos-related risk is a showcase for the weakness in
the EPA conflict of interest procedures and further suggests the lengths that industry will go
to advance its interests, even at the expense of the public welfare. In its 2003 Report on the
Peer Consuitatmn Workshop to Discuss a Proposed Protocol 1o Assess Ashestos-Related
Risk,” EPA charged the panel members with the task of considering whether EPA should
change its method of assessing risk from asbestos exposures. One of the issues the EPA is
considering is whether to assign varying degrees of risk to different asbestos types and fiber
sizes.

The panel for the Peer Consultation Workshop was put together at the last minute and
apparently went through a cursory conflict of interest review. The public was not provided a
copy of the full curriculum vitaes of the panelists before or after the completion of their
report.

Despite recent peer-reviewed articles indicating that short, thin chrysotile asbestos is
hazardous,* the panel came down in favor of assigning low risk to chrysotile fibers. A
closer look at the undisclosed industry ties of these panel members underscores the failings
of the EPA COI procedures. At least four of the eleven panel members have consulted for
asbestos defendants in litigation; one panel member actually worked for Union Carbide
Corporation before becoming a litigation consultant.

Peer Consultation Workshop panel member James D. Crapo, MD

Peer Consultation Workshop panel member James D. Crapo, MD has testified in asbestos
litigation for Union Carbide and many other entities. Crapo has also testified before congress
in support of legislation to end lawsuits against the asbestos industry. Crapo has admitted,
under oath, that he has made from $200,000 to $250,000 per year as an expert for asbestos
compames Crapo did not disclose his ongoing work for Union Carbide and its counsel in
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litigation. This is especially important because Crapo is aware that Union Carbide’s main
defense, in which his testimony is often crucial, is that short, amphibole-free chrysotile does
not cause asbestos-related disease. Crapo, despite earning substantial income as an expert
witness in litigation, last published an article on the health effects of asbestos in 1990 and has
not been the primary author on a paper on the health effects of asbestos since 1980.

Peer Consultation Werkshop panel member Mary Jane Teta, PhD, MPH

Peer Consultation Workshop panel member Mary Jane Teta, PhD, MPH, now an active
asbestos litigation consultant for the automotive industry and other friction product
manufacturers, is actually a former employee of Union Carbide Corporation, Teta never
disclosed her work with Union Carbide, a corporation facing potential asbestos liabilities
which the Dow Chemical Company, Union Carbide’s corporate parent, describes as . In
fact, much of Teta’s work as an epidemiologist was supported by Union Carbide while she
was a corporate epidemiologist for Union Carbide. This too was not disclosed to the EPA or
conference attendees.

Peer Consultation Workshop panel member Bruce Case, MD

Peer Consultation Workshop panel member Bruce Case, MD, a professor at McGill
University, has an extensive background working for defendants in asbestos litigation.
McGill University has been funded extensively by the asbestos mining interests (including
the Quebec Asbestos Mining Association c/k/a the Asbestos Institute). The Canadian
asbestos mining industry seeks to have chrysotile asbestos treated differently from other
asbestos because the primary form of asbestos found in Canada is chrysotile. Case is listed
as an expert witness by numerous asbestos defendants, including Union Carbide who
presents the short fiber chrysotile argument as a defense. A recent peer-reviewed
publication identified many serious problems with articles published by Case and others
which are the crux of the asbestos industry’s short fiber chrysotile defense. See Egilman et.
al, Exposing the “Myth” of ABC, “Anything But Chrysotile”: A Critique of the Canadian
Asbestos Mining Industry and McGill University Chrysotile Studies, Am. J. Indus. Med.
44:540-557 (2003).

Peer Consultation Workshop panel member Roger McClellan, PhD

Peer Consultation Workshop pane! member Roger McClellan, PhD admitted in his conflict
of interest forms as having consulted for Union Carbide in asbestos litigation. While
McClellan did disclose his consultation, the potential conflict of interest exists.

Peer Consultation Workshop panel member Bertram Price, PhD

Peer Consultation Workshop panel member Bertram Price, PhD also consulted extensively
for the asbestos industry. Price does not disclose whether he has consulted for Union
Carbide, but his ties to the industry present a potential conflict of interest.
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Eric Chatfield, PhD, observer-commenter

While the panel was well-stocked with industry sympathetic scientists, the audience too was
filled with industry experts and lawyers. Some of these experts made pro-industry statements
without identifying their industry affiliations. For example, Eric Chatfield, PhD, a long term
consultant to Union Carbide and other asbestos companies, stood up and commented as
follows:

| want to finish up with a few comments about chrysotile, and in particular, the
Coalinga Cailidria chrysotile, which is the trade name for it. The mine is about 100
miles south of here. There are soma remarks about this in the prolocol. This
chrysotile is quite unique, and it is a different geological origin from the more
traditional types. Unlike other chrysotiles, when this is dispersed in air, the fiber
bundles are much thicker as the lengths Increase. So, as you pick a long body, it is
generally thick, and it is not very long before you get to a non-respirable diameter.
That doesn't happen with the other kinds of chrysotile; they all stay thin. So, much of
the material from Coalinga, in fact, ends up being non-respirable. On the other hand,
it disperses very readily in water to single fibrils. | have never seen a Calidria single
fibril longer than about 30 um. It just simply does not exist. | have been using this
material as a reference standard since the 1970s to simulate water dispersion, and it
is a very different material from other chrysotiles, and | think that should be
recognized in the protocol as far as possible. Thank you.

Without revealing his long-standing relationship with Union Carbide and its lawyers,
Chatfield made this pro-Union Carbide statement as if it were scientific fact. Chatfield has
worked with numerous Union Carbide’s lawyers, many of whom were present at the
conference.

David Bernstein, PhD, observer-commenter

Another commenter from the observers was David Bernstein, PhD. The Report described his
comment as follows:

Bernstein presented findings from a chronic inhalation study that investigated the influence
of fiber length and biopersistence on toxicity in rats. The study was conducted for the
European Commission, but findings from the study have not been reported in the peer-
reviewed literature and a written summary of the study was not provided to the expert
panelists. Bernstein indicated that this study found that long fibers were more biopersistent
than short fibers. He further noted that exposure to fibers up to 20 pm long were found to be
uncorrelated with toxic response, and only those fibers longer than 20 pm were correlated
with toxicity. These findings were reportedly derived by comparing a toxic endpoint at 24
months following exposure to the distribution of fiber lengths retained in the rats’ lungs. The
toxic endpoint considered was collagen deposition at bronchoalveolar junctions—a precursor
to pulmonary fibrosis. Bernstein claimed that the panelists can draw from this study’s
findings to make definitive statements on the toxicity of fibers shorter than 5 pm.

Panelists’ Discussion; When discussing this study, one panelist asked if preferential
deposition of long fibers is expected fo occur at the bronchial-aiveolar junctions, and
Dr. Bemnstein said yes. This panelist noted that the apparent correlation between fiber
size and toxicity might simply result from studying an endpoint where short fibers do
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not preferentially deposit. Another panelist encouraged Dr. Bernstein and his
colleagues to publish these resuits.

When Bernstein ultimately published his results, the article acknowledged what he did not
when presenting the data to the panel: the work was with Union Carbide’s Calidria-brand
asbestos and was funded by Union Carbide. As with Chatfield at the EPA conference, it
appears that Bernstein decided to offer his opinions which were funded by Union Carbide
without disclosing the potential for bias. Also present during this ATSDR panel presentation
were numerous asbestos industry expert witnesses and asbestos industry defense lawyers.

ATSDR peer panel COl issues

The recent ATSDR panel which led to the publication of Report on the Expert Panel on
Health Effects of Asbestos and Synthetic Vitreous Fibers: The Influence of Fiber Length, had
many panel members with potential conflicts of interest, including Bruce Case, See supra.

Result of inadequate control of COl issues on EPA/ATSDR panels

Only by exploring the complete background of each member of the panel could a thorough
conflict of interest check be done. With so many potential conflicts of interests in this
sampling of the panel, the quality of the panel’s recommendations is in serious doubt.
Furthermore, the index of suspicion about potential bias goes up substantially when
published, peer-reviewed works which support a position contrary to those of industry are
either ignored or dismissed without explanation. For example, Suzuki’s work showing that
the dominant fiber in the tumor and pleural tissue of people who died from mesothelioma is
short (less than 5 microns) chrysotile. Suzuki’s 2002 work was not addressed by the panel.
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Conclusions

The shorticomings with EPA's oversight of with the selection of this particular peer panel for
the ORD NCEA WTC risk assessment, the Region 1 risk assessment for the Brookfield
schools, and the peer panel for EPA's reassessment of asbestos fiber toxicity is merely the tip
of the proverbial iceberg. EPA has some serious problems with the way it is assessing health
tisks. Only through vigorous conflict of interest disclosure requirements for outside
scientists can the EPA really be comfortable that its positions are relatively free from outside
influence.

The question remains whether the industry has sponsored the expert witnesses and
consultants to come offer pro-industry opinions under the guise of unbiased research. This is
a serious problem and militates for a much more stringent conflict of interest process which
would require complete disclosure of all consulting arrangements including past, present and
reasonably foreseeable future work. Only with complete disclosure of the corporations,
organizations, and other entities with which an expert has ties can the public believe they are
aware of potential biases.

EPA is not living up to its own standards for investigating and mitigating conflicts of interest
by the experts it employs for advice on policy, regulations, and cleanup actions. There is a
powerful effort to shape EPA opinion through secret means. Industries with vested interests
are using the time honored means of liberal applications of money to pay scientists to sit on
these EPA panels. They are even paying scientists to show up in the audiences at EPA public
meetings to push industry's junk science without identifying themselves as paid asbestos-
defendant lobbyists.

The result? A false sense of security, because the public never knows how decisions
affecting the health of their children and loved ones is made at EPA. The polluting industries
have the best cover of all, lurking in the shadows of an agency paid for by public tax dollars
to render impartial decisions.

The efforts at all levels of EFA to minimize and misrepresent risks from asbestos and other
toxics in WTC fallout is a prime example of this endemic problem at EPA. One would think
that the nation, even the Bush administration, would do all possible to overprotect the living
victims of 9/11. On 9/14/01, President Bush even said explicitly that no expense was to be
spared to clean up the toxics that had infiltrated people's homes and offices after 9/11. But
he kas done the opposite.“

The White House controlled what EPA was allowed to say to the public about WTC fallout,
deleting precautionary statements from EPA press releases,’’ telling citizens through EPA it
was safe. This was because it was in the interests of the asbestos-related industries not to
protect citizens, so they could then justify not cleaning up in other parts of the country.

Two days ago on 3/10/04, citizens of our country were forced to institute a class action
lawsuit against EPA just to recoup costs from the expensive asbestos abatements that they,

49



Document hosted at JDSU PRA
http://www.jdsupra.com/post/documentViewer.aspx?fid=0fe89408-a94a-44ca-b441-15h9fdcac914

themselves paid for out of their own pockets after the Twin Towers collapsed.® In addition,
citizens are suing for medical monitoring and cleanup costs of the many residential and
business properties that have yet to be abated.

There is 2 need for EPA 1o adopt an open disclosure policy, publishing the full, complete,
and detailed curriculum vitae of each and every outside consultant and advisor. Each
consultant should submit a COI statement signed under oath certifying their statements are
true, that they are not being paid by someone with a vested financial interest to represent
them now, in past, or in the reasonably foreseeable future. I propose that the EPA adopt
conflict of interest statements which require outside experts to disclose their potential
conflicts under penalty of perjury in a manner similar to the new requirements on private
sector CEQ's instituted by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 in the wake of the Enron scandal.
All outside expert conflict of interest statements should all be placed on EPA's website
saving the effort of concerned citizens going through the arduous process of requesting the
information from EPA, as Ms. Kathy Rossland-Hulce was forced to do for Chatfield (see
earlier sections).
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Endnotes

! Jenkins, C. {July 16, 20G3) Conflict of Interest and prejudicial statements, expert peer review panclists for
EPA NCEA report titled: “Exposure and Human Health Evaluation of Airborne Pollution from the World
Trade Center Disaster” . Memorandum from Cate Jenkins, Ph.D., Waste Identificetion Branch, Hazardous
Waste Identification Division, Office of Solid Waste, EPA addressed to WTC Teem, EPA Inspector Genersl's
Office: Jim Hatfield, Chris Dunlap, Geoff Pierce, Dana Gilmore, Sarah Fabirkiewicz, Steve Schanamann Nikki
Tinsley, EPA Inspector General Paul McKechnie, EPA Ombudsman

2 Jenkins, C. (July 4, 2003) the EPA O or General's 1/27/03 interi

“EPA’s R 1 the World Trade Center Towers Collapse™ MENTARY BASIS FOR
LITIGATION, prepared by Cate Jenkins, Ph.D., Environmental Scientist, Waste ldentification Branch,
Hazardous Waste Identification, Office of Solid Waste Office of Solid Waste and Emergency Response, EPA.
Available from author at Jenkins.cate@epa.gov or posted at the following web addresses:

hitp/www.nyenvirolaw.org/PDF/Jenkins-7-4-03-documentary-d2,pdf
hittp://nycosh,org/Jenkins-7-4-03-documentary-d.pdf
¥ EPA (October, 2002) Exposure and Human Health Evaluation of Airbome Pollution from the World Trade

Center Disaster, NCEA - W — 1395, EPA/600/P-2/002A October 2002 External Review Draft,
http://oaspub.cpa.gov/cims/cimscomm.getfile?p_download id=36387

4 Jenkins, C. (July 4, 2003) Comments on the EPA Office of Inspector General’s 1/27/63 interim report titled:
“EPA’s Response to the World Trade Center Towers Collapse” A DOCUMENTARY BASIS FOR

ITI ON, prepared by Cate Jenkins, Ph.D., Environmental Scicntist, Waste [dentification Branch,
Hazardous Waste Identificetion, Office of Solid Waste Office of Solid Waste and Emergency Response, EPA.
Available from author at Jenkins.cate@epa.gov or posted at the foliowing web addresses:
http:/fwww.nyenvirolaw.org/PDF/Jenkins-7-4-03-documentary-d2.pdf
http://nycosh.org/fenkins-7-4-03-documentary-d.pdf

* Procurement Policy Notice No. 95 - 04, Procedures for Handling Post Award Organizational Conflicts of
Interest (COL), dated 9/20/95, posted on the EPA website at http://www.epa.gov/oam/ptod/COI/ppn95-04.pdf

¢ EPA ORD (December, 2000), U.S. Environmental Protection Agency PEER REVIEW HANDBOOK 2nd
Editien Prepared for the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency by members of the Peer Review Advisory
Group, a group of EPA's Science Policy Council.. hiip://www.epa.gov/osp/spe/prhendbk. pdf

7 Hulee, K. (July 21, 2003) FOIA request to Betty Lopez, EPA National Freedom of Information Officer.

§ Jenkins, C. (July 4, 2003) Comments on the EPA Office of Inspector General's 1/27/03 interim report titl

“EPA’s Response to the Worid Trade Center Towers Collapse” A DOCUMENTARY BASIS FOR

LITIGATION, prepared by Cate Jenkins, Ph.D., Environmental Scientist, Waste Identification Branch,
Hazardous Waste Klentification, Office of Solid Waste Office of Solid Waste and Emergency Response, EPA.
Available from author at Jenkins.cate@epa.gov or posted at the following web addresses:
http:/fwww.nyenvirolaw. org/PDF/Jenkins-7-4-03-documentary-62.pdf

http://nycosh.org/Jenkins-7-4-03-documentary-d.pdf
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* Hulee, K. R.- (7/28/03) FOIA Request addressed to EPA National FOIA Officer Lopez.
" Hulee, K. R.- (January 28, 2003) FOIA request addressed to V. Ferguson, EPA Region VIII FOIA Officer.

"' Chatfield. E (August 30, 2002) Report No. 02C029, Expert Report of Eric J. Chatfield, Ph.D., In the Matter
of United States v. WR. Grace & Co., et al,, Civil Action No. 01-72-M-DWM, Prepared for Kathryn Jarvis
Coggon, Holme Roberts and Owen, LLP, 1700 Lincein St., Suite 4100, Denvet, CO 80203, by Chatficld
Technical Consulting, Limited, 2071 Dickson Rd., Mississauga, Ontario, Canada, L5B, Y1B.

* 7/14/03 Comments from citizens about Chatfield's potential conflicts of interest at the public meeting of
EPA's peer review panel for the EPA ORD NCEA WTC human health risk assessment. The citizen group "9/11
Environmental Action" {(website at http://www.91 lea.org) raised the issue from the floor of the meeting.
Kimberly Flynn, senior legal staff on the New York Environmental Law and Justice Project
(http://www. N YenviroLAW.org) submitted both a written statement as well as reading it into the record at the
7/14/03 meeting. The section addressing conflicts of interest is given below:

In addition, panelists’ CVs should have been made publicly avallable well in advance
of the meeting, so that any imbalances in the panel might have been corrected.
Timely public oversight is critical far ensuring that protecting people's health will be
the decisive factor in the panel's deliberations and that those who serve on the panel
will render independent and unbiased judgments.

At this time, we have concerns about the inclusion on the peer panel of individuals
with close ties to, or who are directly employed by major poliuting industries regulated
by the EPA. We question whether these individuals ars in a position to objectively
weigh the hazards of chemicals their own companies or clients produce, use or
discharge into the environment,

Likewise, we are concerned that one or more individuals on the panel may have
recent or continuing contractual relationships with EPA. if true, this too would
constitute a potential conflict of interest. Such individuals by virtue of their ties to EPA
may have already taken a position investigations in response to the WTC disaster.

** Port Authority of New York and New Jersey v, Allied Corporation, et al., United States District Court,
Southem District of New York, 91 Civ. 0310 (CLB) (MDF). Defendants include: Allied Corporation
{(individually and as a subsidiary of Allied-Signal, Inc.); Armstrong World Industries; Tishman Realty and
Construction Co., Inc.; U.S. Minerals and Products Co.; W.R. Grace and Co.; and GAF,

** Expert for Fibreboard Corporation (Defendant): The Court of Common Pleas, Hamiiton County, Ohio, Case
No. AB405380; Cincinnati Board of Education vs. Armstrong World Industries, Inc., et al. Attorney Thomas L.
Eagen, Jr.; Cash, Cash, Eagen & Kessel, 10600 Tri-State Building, 432 Walnut Strect, Cincinnati, Ohio 45202,

" Deposition on behalf of DaimlerChrysler Corporation (Defendant): Virginia: In the Circuit Court for The
City of Newport News; Civil Action No. 24242C-23: Edith King vs. Allied Signal, Inc., et al, Attorncy Susan
F. Demaris; Clark Hill, PLC, 500 Woodward Avenue, Suite 3500, Detroit, Michigan 48226,

¥ Chatfield, E. J. (January 15, 1997) Deposition testimony in: Port Authotity of New York and New Jersey v.
Allied Corporation, ¢t al., United States District Court, Southern District of New York, 91 Civ. 0310 (CLB)
(MDF). Defendants include: Allicd Corporation {individually and as a subsidiary of Allied-Signal, Inc.);
Ammstrong World Industries; Tishman Realty and Construction Co., Inc.; U.S. Minerals and Products Co.; W.R.
Grace and Co.; and GAF.

{The following are excerpts of Chatfield's deposition]
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{In an experiment, clean plastic sheeting was first spread out in the room under the ceiling.
Then, the ceiling tile was lifted out, which would simulate normal building maintenance
operations. Then, after a few hours, the plastic sheet was tested 1o see if it had any asbestos
JSibers due to the lifting of the ceiling tile. Chatfield claimed that the small diameter Jibers of
asbestos found an the plastic sheet could not have come from the ceiling tile, because ir
would have taken up to 72 hours for this size of asbestos fiber to settle out onto the plastic
sheet:}

Q. [counsel for plaintiff, Robert Turkewitz] With respect to the first video entitied
World Tradecenter Tower — 1 Re-entrainment and Friability Demo by Richard
Hatfleld, what comments do you have regarding that video? ...

-.- he's an expert who's been — He is designated by U.S. Mineral to testify ... [p. 17]

Q. Is it your understanding that the asbestos that was sampied below the ceiling was
re-entrained during the celling-tile lift demonstration and settled on those surfaces?

A. [Eric Chatfield] | believe thare was a plastic sheet pul on the floor before the
experiment and that the sample referred to here as Sample Number 2 was collected
from the surface of that plastic sheet.

Q. Following the demonstration. Is that correct?

A Yes.

Q. So after the ceiling file was lited — when the ceiling tile was lifted, dust became
entrained in the air. |s that correct?

A Yes.

Q. And then It settled out on top of that sheet.

A. Yes.

Q. And the sheet, the surface of that sheat, was sampled by Mr. Hatfield.
A. Yes.

Q. And wotld you agree that the asbestos fibers that were analyzed and found on
those surfaces came from the ceiling tile, or came from the surface of the celling tile?

A. | have something of a problem, because the fibers reported in the data couldn't
possibiy have arrived on the ficor in the period of time of the experiment.

Q. Do you know how — Do you know the pariod of time between the actual
demonstration and when the sample was collected?

A. | believe it would have been on the record of an hour or two hours.

Q. Are you saying that the structures at the size they're reported here would have
been airborne for a longer period of lime?
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A. Yes.

Q. How much longer would they have been airbarne, given the range of structuyres
that you see?

A. After the ceiling-tile lift the — ali of the structures reported 0.05 micrometers in
diameter, and they would take — To fall from the ceiling o the fioor they will take
somewhere between 33 days and 73 days.

Q. And that's without any air velocity at all without any air movement at all, or is that
in & room where there's ordinary air movement taking place? Is that in a stagnant
environment?

A. Yes.

Q. Sois it your opinion that the dust that Mr. Hatfield sampled would not have
included structures that may stili have been airborne at the time that he sampled?

A. My opinion would be that the - these data would arrive from a fewer number of
very large structures that fell down within the period of the time of the expsriment. ...
[pp. 28-30]

{Chatfield answered questions about the U.S. Mineral's fireproofing material that had been
sprayed on the steel beams, and the studies done by the Port Authority showing that some of
this fireproofing material had disintegrated and deposited asbestos-contaminated dust onto
the tops of the suspended ceiling tiles:]

Q. It's my understanding you actually visited some of these bulldings. Is that
correct?

. Yes.
. What buildings did you visit?

. | visited the World Trade Center, Towers 1 and 2 ...

A
Q
A
Q. What was the purpose for your visits to these buiidings?
A. To - In association with Entek to do the air sampling.

Q. Did you actually run the monitors?

A

- I didn't run them personally, no. | had something to do with the location of the
samples,

Q. You were part of the decision-making process as to where the samplers should
be located?

A. Yes. [pp. 32-33] ...
Q. When did you make your trips to the Port Authority buildings?

A. The World Trade Center was on the 26™ and 27 of August, 1991, ...
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Q. Did you actually conduct any kind of inspection of the fireproofing matertals?
A. No.
Q. Itake it you did not test the friability of the material?

A. In one of the terminals at least | saw it, but that was the extent of my work on that.
[p. 35] ...

Q. And you're aware that the actual ceiling tiie itself at the World Trade Center does
not contain asbestos.

A. ldon't know that.

Q. Have you ever been above celling tiles where U.S. Minerals asbestos-containing
Cafco Blaze Shield Type D material has been sprayed on the structural steel?

A. | can't say I've been above. I've looked from below at fireproofing on beams so
far as it will go.

A. No.

Q. And looking below you weren't able to see the tops of the ceiling files and see
what was on the tops of the ceiling tites?

A. No. [p.38]...

Q. Butin this video Mr. Ewing makes reference 1o the fact that there is fireproofing
debris and dust on the top of the ceiling tiles, does he not?

A, Yes. [p. 39]

[On behalf of U.S. Mineral, Chatfield also analyzed the air for asbestos inside the World
Trade Center buildings. He only found chrysotile asbestos, not other forms of asbestos:]

A. The next group is the air sampling data from World Trade Center.
. These are air samples that you have actually analyzed?

. Yes. [pp. 45-6) ..,

- The majority were collected in Tower A.

. Were any of the samples collected above the ceiling?

> o0 » » o

No. [p. 48]
- .. Were any asbestos fibers detected in any of those samples, outdoor samples?

No.

o » ©

. But asbestos fibers were detected in some of the indoor samples. Is that correct?
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A. Yes,

Q. Atthe time that you samples — conducted air sampling at the World Trade Center
were you Informed whst floors had already been removed? In other words, where
you informed where the asbestos fireproofing was still in place and where it had besn
removed?

A. In a general sense, yes. ! was told the ninth and tenth fioors didn't have any
asbestos, and the 12" didn't have any. The 11" was roughiy half abated, and that 13
and 14, 15, 17, and 19 all had asbestos. Ip. &1] ...

Q. Looking at the summary sheet i appears for Tower A you collected samples from
Floors 82 and 108 and from Tower B from Floors 84 and 108. Let me ask you to look
at the summary sheets and confirm that.

A. Yes. [p.59] ...

Q. With respect fo the chrysotile fibers that you found or detected in the samples, do
you have any opinions as to the source of those asbestos fibers?

A. No. As you probably notice, most of them are matrices with other materiais and
that other material is prefty well always gypsum.

Q. Ithink you indicated before that Cafco Blaze Shield Type D contains gypsum?
A. Yes. [pp. 80-1]

" EPA ID CAD980817217, COALINGA ASBESTOS MINE COALINGA FRESNO CA. See EPA Record of
Decision at: htip://cfpub.epa. gov/superrods/rodinfo.cfm?mRod=0902075 1 990R0OD049

' ligren, E. and Chatficld, E. (1997) Coalinga fibre — A short, amphibole-frec chrysotile. Part 1: Evidence for
a lack of fibrogenic activity. Indoor + Built Environment, 6:264-276,

Ilgren, E. and Chatfield, E_ (1998) Coalinga fibre — A short, amphibole-free chrysotile. Part 2: Evidence for a
tack of umorigenic activity. Indoor + Built Environment, 7:18-31,

Ilgren E. and Chatfield E. Coalinga fibre: a short, emphibole-free chrysofile. Part 3: Lack of biopersistence.
Indoor Built Environment. 1998;7:98-109.

¥ Tigren, E. and Chatfield, E. (1997) Coalinga fibre - A short, amphibole-free chrysotile. Part 1: Evidence for
a lack of fibrogenic activity, Indoor + Built Environment, 6:264-276.

* Egilman, David (2004} Letters, RE: Controlled Use of Asbestos. Journal of Occupational and Environmental
Health, pp. 99-103.

2 EpA (May 30, 2003) Report on the Peer Consnltation Workshep to Discuss a Proposed
Protocol to Assess Asbestos-Related Risk Prepared for: U.S. Environmental Protection
Agency Office of Solid Waste and Emergency Response Washington, DC 20460 EPA
Contract No. 68-C-98-148 Work Assignment 2003-05, Prepared by: Eastern Research
Group, Inc. 110 Hartwell Avenue Lexington, MA 02421 FINAL REPORT. See Appendix
E, page E-11, http://www.epa.gov/superfundlprograms/riskfasbestos/
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¥ NYC Council web page (current) Biography, Alan Gerson ~ Democrat.
http/iwww.council.nyc.ny.us/committees/details.cfm?con_jd=7

B hitp:/fwww.kelleydrye.com/

The Products Liability Practice Group represents numerous corporations in litigation
invalving a wide variety of products in a broad spectrum of industries. This includes
extensive experience serving as national counsel, managing and coordinating the
defense of companies in nationwide mutti-district mass tort litigation. The Group
represents clients throughout the United States and abroad in a large number of
products liabifity and toxic tort cases. ...

Qur experience in defending products liabllity actions Is unparalleled, and we take
pride in our proven ability to successiully rasolve these matters in practical and cost
eflective ways. Kelley Drye has represented numerous types of companies in
products fiability matters including chemical companies, machinery manufacturers,
phammaceutical companies and medical device companies. Clients include major
corporations such as Union Carbide, Xerox, Johnson & Johnson, Eli Lilly, Hercules,
Bristol-Myers Squibb Company, Exxon, Otis Elevator and SmithKline Beecham, as
well as numerous smaller business enterprises. Our representations have involved a
wide variety of products and have included some of the largest and most complex
products liability and toxie tort litigations in history, including the Bhopal, Agent
Orange and asbestos litigations. The Group has aiso defended many small and
medium-sized products liability litigations, ...

The products with which the Practice Group has experience include:

Various chemicals and chemical by-products, including: PCBs; methyl isocyanate;
dioxin; formaldehyde; ethylene oxide; hydrogen sulfide; carbon disulfide; acetone;
acetylene; ethyl alcohol; polyurethanes; hydrocarbons; toluene diisocyanate;
polyvinyl chloride; giycol ethers; and dioxane.

Herbicides, peslicides and agricultural chemicals, including Agent Orange (2,4-D;
2,4,5-T), Temik, Carbaryl and Treflan. [Agent Orange is contaminated with dioxins]

Asbestos

Numerous pharmaceuticals such as DES, Accutane, Oraflex, Hismanai, L-
Tryptophan, Stadol, Prozac, oral contraceptives, anti-hypertensives and ulcer
medications.

Medical devices and other medical products, including: pacemakers: IUDs: latex
gloves; Pap smears; and surgical devices.

Breast implants

Various types of industrial machinery, such as printing presses, machine tools,
industrial knitting machines, slitting and converting equipment, power press brakes
and hand tools,

Consumer products such as sport bicycles, fitness equipment and dietary
supplements.

[emphasis added in sections above]
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* UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT, DISTRICT OF MINNESOTA, Conwed Corporation, a Deleware
corporation, Plaintiff, vs. Union Carbide Corporation, a New York corporation, Defendant. Case No. 5-92-88,
September 11,2002, 9:30 o'clock am., St Paul, MN. Transcript at pages 134 to 138.
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2 Iigren, E. B. (September 11, 2002) Trial testimony in: Conwed Corporation, a Delaware corporation,
Plaintiff, vs. Union Carbide Corporation, New York corporation, Defendant. Case No. 5-92-88, September 1,
2002. UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT, DISTRICT OF MINNESOTA, BEFORE THE HONORABLE
JUDGE DONALD ALSOP, UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT JUDGE, TRIAL HEARING, VOLUME
XIIi. Testimony of Dr. E, B, ILGREN

A. |was a member of the faculty from 1992, and we clarified that. At the time
we clarified it the very next day.

Q. Are you saying that you were a member of the  faculty in 1982 at Oxford
University in England?

A. We raised this in the deposition on, as i recailon the 21st of June, and you
brought that to my attention and |  said that it was — | didn't realize | was no longer
onthe faculty but that day or that — early the next moming before we had a
continuation on the 22nd } called Oxford and they said that indeed | was no longer
on the faculty but | had  been on the faculty from 1084 to 1992, and believe we
showed you the letter to that effect.

Q. Well, and at that deposition | showed you a letter  written to me from Oxford
University in response to my  inquiry?

MR. WILL: Objection, Your Honor. This is hearsay.

THE COURT: Objection sustained.

MR. BROWNSON: It's true, is it not, Doctor ligren, that at all times that you
appeared in this case including when you submitted that curriculum vitae you were
nota member of the faculty of Oxford University in England and yet you held
yourself out as being on that faculty.

A. | don't believe that's correct.
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Q. On your eurriculum vitae dated 1994 under employment it reads, and |
quote, June 1989 to present, member faculty biological sciences, sub-faculty
biochemistry University of Oxford Edmond Hall, | did read that correct, sir?

A. Right.
Q. And that was not true. You were not a member of that faculty?
A. Well, | wasn't a member of the faculty at that particular time, no.

Q. But— A, And! explained — at the time | explained it, it was my
assumption that | was on the faculty and i clarified It and we clarified It.

Q. And when | took your depasition in June of 1994, | ssked you this question,
did you ieave the University staff at Oxford in 1887, and your answer, it's news to
me --

A. Correct.

Q. --isthatcormect? Now this is nota hypothetical, Doctor ligren, shall your
curriculum vitae lists that appointment under the leading employment, correct?

A, [fyou say so0.

Q. Well, would you like me to show it to you? Whatis the heading at the top of
the page, sir?

A. Yeah, that's employment.

Q. Okay. And employment to me means a job where you receive a pay check,
is that how you understand the word employment?

A, Well, 1 had received a paycheck from the University from 1985 through - |
can't remember, '89 or something.

Q. Well, this curriculum vitae says you were still employed there in 1994, you
weren't receiving a paycheck then, were you?

A. Well, you just — | just answered your question. | was mistaken. At the time
I clarified - at the time, it's  been eight years ago, and | followed through with a ot
of the things you raised at the time. And that was one of them and ) stand
correcied -- or ! sit corrected.

Q. And the fact is | caught many mistakes on your curricular vitae, which you
have now changed and submitted a new curricutum vitae, comrect?

A. Shortly afier we had the first deposition you pointed out a series of what |
consider to be minor errors  and they were all corrected and we used those at the
next deposition,

Q. Do you consider a person not knowing where they are employed to be a
miner error, sir?

A. | think P've just answered that question,
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Q. Well, answer it again, please. Maybe | missed it?

A. | was empioyed at the University of Oxford from 1885 {o approximately 1950-
91. And I'm saying thatthe minor ~

Q. Orthe small?

A. Ofthis issue in my mind is the fact that for three  years | was not a member,
| wasn't a member of the faculty.

Q. Waell, you're aware, sir, that when an expert is qualified to give opinions in a
Federal Court of law such as this, that qualification is based on their particular
training, expertise and qualifications that the expert has, are you not?

A. Are you asking me what the Federal law requirements are?

Q. Yes,

A. |have no idea.

Q. Okay. You're aware, sir, that ordinary people who  are not experts are not
allowed 10 render opinions in Federal Courls, are you not?

A. Mr. Brownson, I'm not aware. | don't know what the Federai Courts
require.

Q. Okay. Well, you have - you weren't dragged into this case by subpoena,
sit. You appeared here voluntarily as a paid consultant by Union Carbide, isn't that
correct?

A. |have appeared here of my own volition.

Q. Yes.

A. Absolutely right.

Q. And in candition with that appearance in this case in this court, you stated in
1904 that you were employed on  the faculty of Oxford University in England, and
you were hot?

A. |just admitted | was wrong.

Q. You also stated on that curriculum vitae submitted to us in this case that in
1994 you were a member of the Royal College of Pathology in England, did you
not?

A. | said | was an associate of the Royal College of Pathologists, and that's the
way it was being presented.

And | called the Royal College and we inquired and  as | recall to the best of
my recollection that the issue  arose that | was not allowed to put the initial MRC Pat
on the letterhead of the paper unless | had full membership and it was
immediately taken off and that's where it sits.
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Q. And you did not have full membership, you were not  a full member of the
Royal College of Pathelogy in 1994 when you submitted & curriculum vitas to us in
this case?

A. But| presented the qualifications as an Associate Member.

Q. That's fine. | will ask you that, but before ! do, just humor me here. You
were not a member of the Royal College of Pathology, a full member?

A. | was not a full member.,

Q. And a full member of the Royal College of Pathologists in England is allowed
to use this alphabet soup of letters after their name of MRC Pat, are they not?

A. That's corract. And MRC Pat means Member Royal Coliege of pathologists,
and people in different parts of the  country write fo me entitied Doctor E. B. ligren,
MD, MRC Pat. And | was living In the UK and | had no knowledge that | was not
allowed to use MRC Pat, and | was not allowed to use MRC Pat, and that's — yes, |
used it and you were the first person to raise it to my attention, Afer you raised it
to my attention it was deleted.

Q. Andthat is a medical title, that pathologist, that Britons wear with a great
deal of pride because that Indicates they are a member of that selact membership in
the Royal College of Pathology, that's why they put those initials after their name,
do they not? A. And | was addressed MRC Pat by distinguished pathologists
at the imperial Cancer Research Fund which is why [ used #, and no one ever
raised any questions aboutit until you did in the deposition on June 21, 1094,

Q. And whether or not other people in England addressed you as that or not,
you never passed the qualifying credits or met the qualifying criterta, passed the
exam which would allow you 1o have that membership?

A. thad no idea at the time | was not aliowed fo use on a piece of paper in the
letterhead MRC Pat, and all the time it was there it was Associate.

Q. Okay. And an Associate Member is not a full member, that's like a member
who does some things but does not rise to the levei of a full meambership?

And since --
A full member?
Okay.

A full member.

> o » o >

An Associate member is a person that has part one  of the Royal College —
Q. Right, not yet a member of the Royal Coliege?
A. Right,

Q. An Associate Member as | leamed and we used at the deposition are not
allowed 1o use those initials behind their names, correct?
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A. Associate Members ara not allowed to use it, yes.

Q. Now I'm just a guy from Minnesota, | got your curriculum vitae in 1954, |
may not be the brightest guy in  the world but | tried —

THE COURT. Just a minute. You don'thave to editorialize, just ask the
question.

MR. BROWNSON: Sorry, Your Honor. Okay.
BY MR. BROWNSON:

Q. Well, would you agree with me, Doctor figren, that a reader of this curriculum
vitae you submitted in this case would conclude that you were employed as a
Professor atthe University of Oxford in England, and you were @ member of the
Royal College of Pathologists?

A. Why would they conclude I'm a Professor?

Q. Because it says your @ member of the faculty. Doesn't faculty mean
Professor?

A. There's all sorts of people on the faculty who are not Professors.

Q. A Janitor isn't on the faculty, is he?

A. Well, go figure. | don't think anybody in this  country is going to think a
faculty on the University of Minnesota is a Professor just because he is part of the
University.

Q. And in that same curriculum vitae you submitted to  us in this case you
stated that from June of 1974 to June of 1976 you were a, quots, registrar — senior
registrar  graduate at New York Hospital, Comnel University Medical Center, did
you not?

A. Could you just read that again?
Q. Okay. | will show itto you if you like. Registrar, senior registrar?
What's the dates?
June 1874 to June of 19767
Well, the things written for the English.
Well, answer the question?

That's --

Did you put that on this -

> £ » 0 » o »

Sure.

Q. -resume?
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A. Yeah.

Q. And you were awars, of course, that Cornell University Medical Center had
no such position, did you not?

A. Of course.

Q. Were you not?

A. Butthe CV is written for English so they can understand what the equivalent
is, they have no title in the UK as resident, the equivalent is registrar, and that Cv

was done that way because | was trying to communicate with the English.

Q. [hate to editorialize again, but I'm not English and you gave this to me in this
case as a slatement of your qualifications —

A. Well, we cleared it up.

THE COURT: Wait a minute. Just ask the questions otherwise we'll be here
quite a long time.

MR. BROWNSON: Sorry, judge.
BY MR. BROWNSON:

Q. Well, you were A RESIDENT at the time in New York, corrsct, you weren't a
registrar?

A. Okay.

Q. Okay. And you weren't a senior resident, you were a regular resident
because there is no such thing as a senior resident at that hospital?

A. That's correct.

Q. Okay. Now when you describe your position as  senior registrar, would you
agree with me, sir, that a person if told that — if you just used the English version of
resident might think that that's in fact meant senior resident?

A. Itdoesn't franslate that way.
Q. Becauss -

A. That's how it works.

Q. Okay.

ligren, E. B. (June 22, 1995) Deposition testimony in: Conwed Corporation, Plaintiff, -against Union Carbide
Chemicals & Plastics Co. , Inc. , {f’k/a Union Carbide Corp, Defendant, and Union Carbide Chemicals &
Plastics Inc. (fk/a Union Carbide Corp, ), -against Owens-coming Fiberglas Corporation, Walker Jamar
Company, A. W. Kuette] & Sons, Inc. , Api, Inc, and Macarthur Company, Third-party Defendants. Case
No. Civ, 5-91-88 United States District Court, Eastern District Of Pennsylvania, In Re: Asbestos Products
Liability, Litigation ( No. Vi). This Dacument relates to; United States District Court » Fifth Division, District
of Minnescts
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Q.  The next exhibit | marked 35 is a curriculum vitae of yours that Mr. Wil
provided to me since the time of your last deposition and | received it on January
30th, | don't know exactly when he sent if, but around that ime. And there's been
some changes from your prior Cv which we had previously marked as exhibits in
this case, and I'll confess | didn't go through this and compare line by fine, but my
question was what changes have been updated or made on this Cv, as  we ses
on Exhibit 35, from the prior ones which | actually have with me. The first one was
Exhibit 1, we also have an Exhibit 2, which is an old Cv. | don't know if you want to
see that or not, you prabably don't need to. ...

Q. And now what other changes are there?

A.  Atthe bottom the member of facuity of biological and agricuttural sciences
and  subfaculty of biochemistry, University of Oxford, that was deleted because | am
not presentty a member.

Q. Now | know this was a long time ago, but when | had last questioned you
about the Cv, you indicated that you were not sure what your current status was, |
think somewhere along those lines of being on that faculty. Have you gotien further
information since that time that can clarify that?

A.  Yes.
Q. Andwhat's that?

A.  April 1862 on page 1, professional experience, five lines from the bottom,
the university told me that | was on the faculty up until Aprii 1892.

Q. Now, are there any other changes in this Cv, Exhibit 35, compared to
Exhibit 17

A. Yes.
Q. And what are those?

A.  Well, on page 1 of the Cv, how do | identify this — as Exhibit 1. On the
first page of the Cv, that's Exhibit 1, the entire section "Education * has been
deleted. The section under “Professional experience * has been edited or
annotated so that to begin with the category * Student worker at Bryn Mawr College
1973 "was deleted. The next line " Doctorate of medicina” was incorporated into
a new section on the Cv, Exhibit number 35, entitled * Degrees and Certifications. *
The date in the old Cv, Exhibit 1, of 1971 for doctorate of medicine was comected
from 1971 to 1974, ...

Q. Now | have a couple of questions on the new Cv which I'm looking at,
Exhiblt 35, under the heading * Feflowships and Grants. * The last listing is August
of 1960 to September of 1991, W. R. Grace & Company research project. Have
you applied for any fellowships or grants since that time?

A. No.

Q. Obviously you haven't had any since that time, right?

A. Right. ...
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By Mr. Brownson:

Q. Dr. ligren, at the first session of your deposition we asked you how much
you have charged Union Carbide for your work in connection  with this case, and |
wanted to just foliow up on that since it's been nearly a year now. Inthe past
year, how much have you charged Union Carbide for your work on this case?

A.  Idon't know.
Mr. Will:  Just this as opposed to -
A. |don't know.

Q. Do you have a figure as 1o how much you've charged Union Carbide
generally for asbestos-related work during the past year?

A. |don't have a figure.
Q. Is your rate still $200 an hour?
A.  Yes.

Q. And do you have any idea how many hours you've devoted to asbestos-
related matters for Union Carbide in the last year?

A. It was over a thousand, | think.

Q. And some portion of that's for this case and some portion would be for
other cases?

A.  Just there's just Conwed and Chicago.

Q. Conwed being this case and Chicago being the Chicago board of
education case?

A. Yes.

Q. And over that period of time in the past year, what percentage of your total
income from professional services has this constituted?

A. Maybe a third.

Q. And I was frying to limit that question to - | don't care to know about any
income you have from investments or other sources but just in terms of your
professional services | was asking, so its about a third of that income, professional
service income?

A. Yes.

Q.  And of the remaining two-thirds of your professional service income over
the past year, what portion of that has come from litigation-related activities?

A. 90 percent probably.
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Q. And has all that litigation been related to asbestos litigation or is it other
kinds?

A.  Other kinds.
Q. Has any of that been related to asbestos litigation?

A, Some. |couldn'ttell you what. | would think most of it is not asbestos-
related.

( Discussion off the record)

Q.  One final question just to finish up this matter of the consultations and
legal cases. As | understand it, in the past year, one-third of your income from
professional services has been from the two Union Carbide cases, and then I'm
unclear about the remaining two-thirds. | think you said 90 percent of the
remaining two-thirds is  for litigation?

A.  Right.

Q.  So of total income from professional services for the past year, would it
be fairto say that about 85 percent of that comes from legal matters, litigation
matters?

A.  Yes, 80, 95.

% Myers, John L (August 21, 2003) Deposition Testimony in: IN RE: BALTIMORE CITY
ASBESTOS LITIGATION, Consolidation Case No. 24X02000676; MARIANO SCELSI, et
al. vs. AC and §, Inc,, et al., October 2003 Trial Group, Case No. 24X01001843; CASES
AFFECTED: NATHANIEL HAWKINS, Case No. 24X02001551; IN THE CIRCUIT
COURT FOR BALTIMORE CITY.

® JOHN L. MYERS (July 29, 2003) Deposition testimony. KELLY-MOORE PAINT COMPANY, INC.,

Plaintiff, vs. DOW CHEMICAL COMPANY, et al,, Defendants. NO. 19785-BH02 IN THE DISTRICT
COURT OF BRAZORIA COUNTY, TEXAS 23rd JUDICIAL DISTRICT.

[Testimony of former Union Carbide plant manager changing Union Carbide worker death
certificate so it did not read "asbestosis"]

Q. Sir, you are - are you still the Mayor in King City?

A. Yes,

Q. How long have you been the Mayor?

A.I'min my 11th year. ...

Q. One of the things you have done is monitor death certificates in King City, isn't it?

A. No, | don't do that.
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Q. You haven't kept up with what — when the employees that worked at the mine
die?

A. | know when they die, yes,
Q. And you don't iook at their death certificates?
A. i have on occasion, but | don't - it's not a practice, no.

Q. Have you not testified just three weeks ago that one of your practices was to
monitor the death certificates?

A. No, | don't recall testifying to that.

Q. You don't remember giving a deposition over at the Doublstree about three
weeks ago where you asked about - you were asked about death cerlificates?

A. Yes, I'm - I'm answering what your question was, | don't recall doing that as a
matter of practice.

Q. In 1991 you became aware of a death certificate that showed that an employee at
the King CHy mine had died of asbestosis; corract?

A. Yes. | -- no, | don't know the date. If you can show me the paperwork,
Q. Approximately.
A. | have no idea approximately even.

Q. Ckay. I'm sorry. | wasn't clear. Were you agreeing with approximately, or not
agreeing with approximateiy?

A. No, I'd like for you to show me the document, then we can have the accurate
date.

Q. We'll take the date out of it, just to be clear then. You're aware of g death
certificate that you saw that indicated that an employee that had worked at the King
City mine had died and the death certificate said asbestosis was the cause; correct?
A. | don't remember that as the cause, no.

Q. You don't --

A. The word "asbestosis" was on the certificate, but | don't know whether that fisted it
as the cause. ...

Q. Well, you remember the name. You testified three weeks 890 you knew who it
was. You just didn’t want to say.

A, That's correct.
Q. So who was it?

A. We're taking -- | don't know which death certificate you're takking about.
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Q. S0 who was it? So there are more death certificates that might have said
asbestosis on them than oneg? ..,

Q. Mr. Myers —
A.Yes.

Q. -- after you found out about this you had somebody call the Coroner’s office to
talk about that death cerificate, didn't you?

A. Yes,

Q. And afler that call was made, the death certificate was changed, wasn't it?
A. It was changed later, yes.

Q. Do you think that was appropriate?

A. Yes, in that case it was,

Q. So you think it's appropriate for you to use your influence as Mayor to have death
certificates changed?

A. Has nothing to do with — | don't think | was Mayor at that time, for one thing, and |
was not acting -- if | was the Mayor ) was not acting as Mayor. | was acting as a
concemed person. ...

Q. You certainly would agree that in 1891 if it came out that a person that worked at
the King City mine had died of asbestosis that would be against the interests of
Union Carbide and KCAC, wouldn't it?

A.lt was a - it was a questionable decision by whoever did the examination, and we
questioned it. And it was changed by the — whoever the medical people were in the
Coronet's office.

Q. Objection. Non-responsive. With all due respect, it's not my question, sir.

A. Okay.

Q. If there was a death certificate that stayed and remained stating someone died of
asbestosis, that would be against the interests of Union Carbide and KCAC; true?

A. Not necessarily.

Q. You think that would be a good thing?

A, it would be a -- a matter of concern,

Q. Well, sir, that wasn't the first time —

A. Not saying it was good or bad. it's @ matter of concern. ...

Q. What about Mr. Whitlock? Was he a friend of yours?
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A. Yes.
Q. He's dead too, isn't he?
A.Yes.

Q. Do you know how many of the people that Doctor Lewinson surveyed in 1884 are
how dead?

A. No, | have no idea.

Q. With respect to the death certificate originally said agbestosis on it, you got a
copy of that death cenificate, didn't you?

A. Yes. ...

Q. Well, no, how did you see it to then tell somebody to call to see about getting it
investigated? ...

Q. Just like you decided it was important fo call the Sheriff about that death
certificate; right?

A. | don't think | —-
Q. You certainly —
A. -- called any Sheriff, but --

Q. You didn't tell me that that was done? The Sheriff wasn't contacled about the
death certificate?

A, Not that | know of.

Q. Call tha Coroner?

A. Coroner, yes,

Q. Same thing. You made it a point to contact him, didn't you?

A. | don't know about other counties, but the County of Monterey, the Sheriff is the
Coroner.

Q. And you did that because you thought It was important to get accurate information
outin the public; right? You didn't want something wrong in a public document;
right?

A. | don't really consider a death certificate & public decument.

Q. Oh. So you got your hands on somebody's private, personal death certificate that
shouldn't have been public?

A. | said | don't know if it's public or not. |-- | did have a copy, yes. ...

BY MR. EGDORF:
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Q. Did you contact his family about whether they thought it was okay for you to
contact the Corcner about his death certificate?

A. 1 don't recall if | did that or not.
Q. Did you ask the family if it was okay to - for you to cantact his doctor?
A, 1 don't recall that | contacted his doctor.

Q. Well, you said that - strike that. As far as you're concerned, it was okay to do all
those things without their permission?

A. As | said, | don't remember if | talked to Mrs. Whitlock or not.
. Do you think it was okay to talk to them without their permission?
A. If it was okay to what?

Q. For you to contact the Sheriffs office -- excuse me - the Coroner or anyone else
regarding his cause of death without their permission? Do you think that's okay?

A. | said | don't recall whether | did or not.

Q. | understand that. | said if you did it without their permission, do you think that's
okay?

A. | don't know.
Q. You're not sure?
A_ldon't know, ...

Q. So you decided that the death certificate was wrong, and you didn't even know
what the autopsy had found; right?

A. | didn't say it was wrong. | questioned it.

Q. Well, you were questioning It when the autopsy hadn't even been done yet, and
you're not even a doctor; right?

A. Thatl's correct.

Q. Sa on what basis were you questioning it?

A. Because of my concem whether one of our employees might have asbestosis.
Q. So in the early 1990s you finally got concermned about that?

A. 1 think { was concerned many years before that.

Q. Well, that wasn't what your -
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A. That's why we put in our engineering confrols, why we gave physical exams, why
we used respirators. | mean, that -- all this was done out of concern for the
employees' heaith.

Q. Sir, you didn't do that because of your concern for the employees. You did that
because you wera concerned for Union Carbide because there was going to be a
document that had asbestosis in it; right?

A. That's what you said, but that's not what I'm saying.

Q. I mean, you've never seen a death certificate of any of the employeas of Union
Carbide at King City that didn't say asbestosis end called the Coroner and said: You
better check and make sure. It might be asbestosis. You naver did that, did you?
A. Not that I recall. [ don't think I've seen many death certificates,

Q. You didn't do it on any of them, did you?

A. I did it on one, yes,

Q. I'm trying to figure out, sir - | mean, autopsies — | mean, we don't have bodies sil
around for weeks before autopsies are done generally, do we?

A. bdon't know. 'm not a Coroner. | mean, I'm not a medical doctor, remember.

Q. Sometime between the time this guy died and before the autopsy that you say is
required by law to be done, somehow in that time period you got his death
certificate?

A. I don't -- | tried to say | cannot remember where | got it or where — how | gotit. ...
Q. Can we -- | mean, King City is a small {own, isn't it?

A. Twelve thousand population, about.

Q. And you're the Mayor; right?

A Yes.

Q. You're on the City Council, 80 obviously some people know you to vote for you;
right?

A. Yes.

Q. Give me some ideas who might have given you this death certificate, if you didn
go doiton your own. Who would be thinking: God, we ought to give this to John?

A. | cannot tell you anything different than what I've aiready told you. You can ask
me many times, but | don't remember where it came from. ...

Q. Do you have any ofher jobs other than working at the mine?

A. Yeah, | work part time in a funeral home.
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Q. When did you do that?

A, Oh, I think | started — it was after | retired. Probably seven or eight years ago.
Q. Scin the mid '90s7?

A. Seven or eight years ago, whatever that is. ...

Q. Do you think maybe you could have got the death certificate while you were
working at the funeral home?

A. That's possible.

Q. Maybe you could have seen other death cerlificates while you worked at the
funeral home?

A Yes.

Q. S0 possibly - not saying it happened, but one possible scenario is that there's a
former employee of the King City mine who dies, shows up at the Grim funeral
home with a death certificate before he has an autopsy, and you might see that;
right?

A. That's possible, yes.

Q. And at this time you're the Mayor of the town; right?

A. I don't know whether | was at that time or not. | am now, yes.

Q. Well, you tell me. You've been the Mayor for 11 or 12 years, and you told me you
retired at 1993. | agree, I'm not good at math, but that would make you the Mayor
after you retired, wouldn't it?

A. Yes. .

{Testimony of former Union Carbide plant manager on history of Coaling mine ownership by Union
Carbide, from whence they obtained the asbestos to make their product Calidria ®)

Q. Was KCAC profitable while you were the President? [Union Carbide was once the
owner of the Coalinga mine in California. Union Carbide sold the mine to KCAC]

A. As far as | recall, in most years it was, yes.

Q. And you were President what? Seven, eight years, something like that?

A. From '85 to0 '93. And | sald | didn't share in the profits, but we did have an
employee ~ if we had net income — positive net income it was shared with the
employees.

1. And you obviousty got 2 salary?

A.Yes.
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Q. Now, did you actually retire from Union Carbide?

A. | quit working for them in 1885. | didn't start receiving any pension checks until |
retired from KCAC.

Q. In'g3?

A. Yes.

Q. So the last ten years or so, in addition to the monies you've received as parl of
your testifying in litigation, you've also received pension benefits from Union
Carbide?

A. From Union Carbide and KCAC.

Q. From both?

A Yes, ..

Q. Now, sir, | was going to ask you some questions regarding the sale of Carbide's
inlerest in the mine. That's called the Coalinga mine; right? Or am | mixing up some
terms there?

A, Yeah, you're mixing some terms.

Q. Okay. What's it called?

A. The whole deposit was sometimes called the Coalinga deposit. My -- because the
other two companies operating up there had their operations headquartered in
Coalinga.

Q. Fair enough. | just want 1o make sure | define the mine correctly. What would | call
the mine so you and 1 aren't confused, or some other lawyer reads this one day and
says you said something you didn't say?

A.Uh -

Q. Just call it the King City mine? Can you live with that, or do you want something
else?

A. No, it was in San Benito County. |t wasn't even in the ~

Q. Okay.

A. Sixty miles — 30 miles from King City.

Q. Well, why don’t we just call it the mine? Can you live with that?
A. Okay. The asbestos mine.

Q. The asbestos mine, where y'all got your Calidria?

A. Right.
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Q. Now, | was going to ask you some questions of the ~ the sale of the interest from
Carbide to KCAC, but with what | asked you earlier, | just want to make sure this is
right. The sale actually was done by, you believe, this Carbide Corporation to KCIC
(sic), not Union Carbide directly to KCAC; right? ...

A. - if we wera still Calidria Corporation when we - that was a very short-lived
corporation. I'm not sure whether it changed back to Union Carbide, or if Calidria
Corporation was In existence when the sale was made.

Q. If | asked you this earlier | apalogize, because | kind of got off topic when | asked
you about that. Did you have any invelvement in the sake of the interest from
whatever company it was to KCAC, other than just you were an employee out there?
A. | was involved. | talked to the potential buyers about the operation.

Q. Who were the other two companies in that area tha! were mining ashestos?

A. In what area?

Q. Out — you said there were two other companies operating near the - the mine
where the Calidria came from.

A. Yes, J. M, and Atlas Asbestos.
Q. J. M. as in Johns-Manville?

A. Yes,

[Testimony of former Union Carbide plant manager on whether Union Carbide's Coalinga
{Calidria) asbestos can cause cancer or asbestosis]

Q. Are you familiar with employees at the King City mine that were found to have
pleural thickening?

A, No.
Q. Do you know what that is?
A. Well, thickening of the pleura.

Q. Are you aware that in the Hterature that that's something that can be caused by
exposure to asbestos; comrect?

A, Yes.
Q. Including Calidria; carrect?
A. f don't think so, ho.

(. 8ir, haven't you testified before that you belisve Calidria can cause asbestosis and
lung cancer?

A. Yes. I'm talking about today | don't believe that Calidria is harmful.
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Q. Okay. Didn't you just testify - excuse me. Didn't you just testify three weeks ago
that you believed that Calidria could cause asbestusis and lung cancer?

A. | don't recall that, no.

Q. Well, certainly —

A. Oh.

Q. — if you gave a deposition three weeks ago you told the truth, didn't you?

A. That's what we were — as | said, that's what we were telling customers while wa
were seiling it, to freat our asbestos like any others, but since I've retired | think
there's been many - quite a bit of information to show that Calidria ashestos does
not cause disease.

Q. When did you come up with that?

A. In the last ten years. As | said, I've -- with different studies.

Q. What document told you thai?

A. | haven't seep any document that told me that.

Q. So you're saying there's studies out there that now say suddenly Calidria is safe
and better?

A. That's what | understand. | haven't seen them. ...
BY MR. EGDORF:
Q. Well, heck. | mean, when you found that out, did you send a letter to somebody at

KCAC and say: We need to take all those wamnings off the products? This is all
wrong,

. When ) found out what?

. Well, that Calidria is ectly safe.

. Tha after | retired. [Emphasis ad
Q. Yeah. And 50 when you found out, because It's important to get the facts right, as
you told me with the death certificates, even though you weren't working there
anymore, did you call somebody at KCAC and say, whoa, you've got a false warning
on your preduct? Did you do that?
A. Did | tell KCAC what to do?
Q. Yeah.

A. I'm afraid not. There were stifl rules regarding —

Q. So it's okay to --
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A. — rules regarding regulations.

Q. So it's gkay —

A. —regarding reguia- — why don’t you let me finish?

Q. Go ahead.

A. There were slill rules regarding labels that go on bags. ...

BY MR. EGDORF:

Q. In 1866, when you got involved with Calidria and you knew or had been told at the
time, whether you believe it now or not, that Calidria was unsafe, did you ever
suggest to somebody: Maybe we shouldn't do this? Maybe we shouldn't sel] this?

A. | don't recall anybody telling me it was unsafe.

Q. Well, you told me you — excuse me. You lestified earlier loday you knew since
19667

A. Not that it was unsafe.

new that it might cause lun ncer and asbestosis, and you testified in

m.ang depositions that you got that information in your training bafore you starfed
working with Calidria in 1966; right?

A. No, | haven't testified to that. [Emphasis added.]
Q. You haven'?

A, No.

Q. You sure you didn't say that three weeks ago too?
A. That | got it in training before | started working?

Q. Safe - part of your safety training in 1966, before you went to the Calidria
department, ...

BY MR. EGDORF:

Q. Okay. | had Doctor Egiiman print out a copy of a couple of pages of the
deposition, of the deposition | was referring to earlier that Mr. Hartley took of you a
few weeks ago. | want to show you page 35. If you would read the question and the
answer that's bracketed starting at line 19, please.

A. The question: All right. And when -~ when you started -- when you started
working with Calidria in the 1960's, you, through your training and orientation
at Union Carhide were aware that asbestos caused asbestosis and cancer,
correct? Ms, Judin: Object to form. The Withess: Yeah, | think | answered
that earlier, yes, | would have been aware of that.

Q. Alt right. I that answer accurate?
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A Yes. ...

BY MR, EGDORF:

Q. | think your counsel has the exhibit excerpt of that transcript. { wanted to call your
a attention to page 35 on Exhibit 8 or 7, | think it is. What's the number | marked that?
| lost track again,

AT, ..

BY MR. EGDORF:

Q. | want to ask you — show you another deposition, November 29, 2001. ... Page
73, line 7, the question is;

There were areas where you wore respirators because the Chrysotile
asbestos can hurt you: right?

If you'd look at line 8 and read your answer out loud, please?

A. Yes, it can cause asbestosis or i think it can. We have — like | say, we
haven't had any -- And then he cut me off.

Q. What was the date of the deposition, per the front page of the whole deposition,
sir?

A. November 20th, 2001. ...

Q. So of the two depositions we saw, which one was accurate? The one that said you
knew about asbestos in the '60s, or the one that said you didn't know anything as of
1970, that you gave in 19827 Which is the truthful one? ...

BY MR. EGDORF:

Q. I'm just asking you which — you're saying both testimonies are accurate?

A. Yeah, to the best of my knowledge, they were accurate at that time,

Q. Okay. So the testimony where you said you knew about asbestosis and lung
cancer in the '60s is accurate, and the one that says you didn't know anything about
lung cancer as of 1970 is also accurate?

A. To the best of my ability, that was the best answer. ...

Q. So here today in 2003, you know more about what you knew about asbestos in
1966 than you did in 1966 or 1970 or 19827

A. Yes, | think so.
Q. You just had memory loss in 19827

A. No, | said I've reviewed documents that would have shown that | was made
available -- made ~ made aware of those hazards of asbestos, ...
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[Testimony of former Union Carbide plant manager on Union Carbide heaith and safety record]
Q. You proud of the safety racord at Union Carblde?
A, Very proud, yes.

Q. (To Doctor Egilman) You know which one | wan!. You don't have it? Bhopal? You
proud of that?

A. I'm not familiar with --
Q. You're not?

A. -- what happened there. I'm not —- no, | don't -- | mean | don't know any details of ~
of what caused the accident.

Q. You know thausands of people died because of a Carbide facility aver there;
right?

A. Carbide had a facility there, and people died, yes. | don't know whether it's
because they had a facility or not.

Q. Well, you know that Carbide's been asked to come to India and answer for
crimina! charges. You know that, don't you?

A. I have read that. ...

Q. What about Hawk’s Nest? Are you proud of that?
A. Of what?

Q. Mawk's Nest, are you proud of that?

A. | don't know what you're taiking about.

Q. You're not familiar with the thousands of mine workers that died as a -- in West
Virginla working on a mine for Union Carbide in the '20s and '30s?

A. | don't remember that, no.

Q. You don't remember seeing information about how Carbide took those thousands
of bodies and dumped them in an unmarked pit? You don't know about that?

A. Na. No, | don't.

Q. You don't know about in that case that the guy who ran the mine over there
consulted with the Coroner and got the death certificates changed as to how those
people died?

MR. LASSETTER: Object to the form. THE WITNESS: | don't know anything about
what you're talking about. So you don't— you ...
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[Testimony of former
information to EPA]

Q. Do you think Carbide took the initiative as a safety laader with respect to
asbestos?

A. I don't know what you mean by “took the initiative as a leader.”

Q. Made sure that ail the information got out there to the public so the public could
Judge it on their own.

A. That's -- as | just said, that's part of our practice, to send the customer the
information that we had on ~ through the Asbestos Toxicology Report and other
scientific documents that were avallable.

Q. Well, sir, you didn't send all the documents, You sent the ones that - the ones
that you chose fo send; correct?

A. We filled our files with what we thought were appropriate documents on the health
hazards of asbestos. ...

BY MR. EGDORF:

Q. What's the title?

A. "Qur Ten-Year Safety Failure.”
Q. And whose letterhead is it?

A. It's got a Union Carbide --

Q. If you tum to the next page, sir, and read out loud the first paragraph, under
"Summary.”

A. Simply stated, our safaty performance has shown no improvement for
more than ten years as measured by the most significant yardstick: Disabling
injury frequency. Furthermore, in the last ten years we have become the
most hazardous employer in the Big Seven chemicals group, maiming
people at more than twice the rate of the others. And iast year wa let more
accident dollars go down the drain, or up in smoke, than any one of these
major competitors.

Union Carbide plant manager on Union Carbide not submitting health

Q. Now, on the first page, sir, somebody, in handwriting, put "Company Confidential";
correct?

A. Yes.

Q. Certainly you wouldn't expect somebody at Carbide to write something false in a
document that's going 10 be kept within Carbide, do you?

A. | would have no opinion on that. I'm -

Q. Nobody shared that memo with you?
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A. This?

Q. Yes,

A. | said I've never seen it before.

Q. Okay. Is that the kind of thing you think you should have been told about?

A. Not necessarily, no. | wasn't invelved with the corporate activities. ...

Q. In 1982 did you guys - you guys -- Union Carbide were advised of some
gt::ﬁrdegmnts promulgated by EPA to submit unpublished heaith and safety studies;

A. | - again, | don't recall that.

Q. Well, if EPA had asked you to produce all unpublished health and salety studies,
is that something you'd feel obligated to comply with?

A. This is Calidria or Union Carbide? | — | wouldn't have any —- | don't have any
opinion on that.

Q. Well, it must be Calidria if your name's on the document, wouldn't it, in 19827
A. Yes.

Q. And of course in 1982 you - you're still warking for Union Carbide. You're -
what's your title at the plant?

A. Product and Production Manager.

Q. Okay. So if EPA had said in 1682, we want copies of your health and safety
studies, that's something you'd feel like you need to comply with, wouldn't you?

A. | think it would have to be evaluated. | don't think you can just say yes or no to
some -- a question like that. ...

Q. Okay. Now, if they asked for your health and safety studies regarding Calidna,
okay, would you take that to mean you need to give them all of them?

A. You mean anything that we had coilected?
Q. Sure.
A. You mean passing out to customers, that kind of thing?

Q. No, | don't think you had 1o pass it out to customers because it says it's
unpublished. Unpublished health and safety studies.

A. Again, | -- | would have to know the situation and — and the legal requirements. ...
Q. Well, if you did 8o, do you think that was appropriate —

A. ldon't -
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Q. ~ 1o decide that the Mellon study shouldn't be given to the EPA?

A. | don't know, ... ...

[Testimony of former Union Carbide plant manager on Union Carbide purchasing asbestas-
contaminated homes of employees]

Q. Now — ... Do you remember a time where Union Carbide purchased the homes of
employees that had asbestos in them?

A. | don't remember purchasing any, but there were some homes that had esbestos
in them.

Q. You had some employees at King City who took the asbestos to their homes and
used that for insulation; correct?

A. Yes.

Q. Atany time did anybody warn those employees that they shouid not do that?
A. | don't know. | wasn't there at that time. ...

Q. Now, do you remember a fellow named Roy Crow?

A. Yes.

Q. He was an employse out there, wasn't he?

A Yes.

Q. And isn't he one of the people that used asbestos obtained from the mill to
insulate in his attic?

A. | think that he was, but | do not know that for sure.

Q. Do you know who Terrance Keating (phonetic) is?

A. No.

Q. Well, in 1980 you were still involved with Calidria; right?
A. 1880 | was in Niagara Falls in tha marketing department.

Q. Okay. Did you ever disclose as part of your marketing that you had advised your
own employees that they needed to take Calidria out of their houses?

A. Did we tell customers that? is that what you said?
Q. Yeazh.

A. No.
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Q. Did you ever tell any of your customers that you at Union Carbide had bought an
employee's house to eliminate possibie further exposure?

A. Did we tell customers that?
Q. Yes.
A. No, not that | recall.

Q. Well, you wouldn't need to buy somebody's house and take ali the asbestos out if
it was safe, would you?

A. I don't think at that time we knew what the safety hazards were with as- — with our
asbestos. Again, we — at that point in time we were telling everyone it was — {o {reat it the
same as any other asbestos.

¥ Myers, John L (August 21, 2003) Deposition Testimony in: IN RE: BALTIMORE CITY ASBESTOS
LITIGATION, Consclidation Case No. 24X02000676: MARIANO SCELSI, etal. vs. ACand§, Inc,, etal.,
October 2003 Trial Group, Case No. 24X01001843; CASES AFFECTED: NATHANIEL HAWKINS, Case
No. 24X02001551; IN THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR BALTIMORE CITY,

[Testimony of former Union Carbide plant manager on the changed death certificates of Union

Carbide employees]
Q. Mr. Myers, I'm going to show you - after | pass it to your counsel, let her take look
at it — what's been marked as Exhibit 6, which is a document headed, "Union Carbide
Corporation Corporate Medical Director's Office.” I's labeled "Confidential® and dated
June 2, 1976, addressed to Mr. F. H. Larrison, Jr. And it states in the first paragraph -
- Fll let your counsel look at it before | read that for the record. Could you read the
first paragraph of that letter, after you've had a chance o look through it?

A. "For the past two years, the Medical Department has been obtaining a copy of the
death certificate of all deceased active and former employees.”

Q. Were you aware of that policy when you were at Union Carbide?

A. No, | don’t remember that.

Q. Okay. | had asked you about Mr, Whitiock. Tell me about Mr. Whitlock.

MS. ROSENBERG: Objection to the form of the question. What do you mean?

THE WITNESS: As | told you, he was an employee of the — warked mainly in the mill.

Q. Of what did Mr. Whitiock die?

A. As far as | know he had a — he had a history of heart trouble. | think he had
bypass surgery a few years before he died, and he was at Stanford with another
heart condition when he passed away,

Q. How did you come to find out that Mr. Whitlock had died?
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A. He was an employee of mine.

Q. What brought it to your attention, though? | mean, you had a lot of employees
over the years.

A. No, not toe many.
Q. Over 400.
A. Oh, that came and went, yes.

Q. And so Mr. Whitlock dies, and his death certificate says on it that he's had
asbestosis; correct?

A. That's right.

Q. How does that come 1o your attention?

A. | don't remember how | found that out.

Q. Have you ever locked at the death certificate of any other former employee?
A. Only one that | can remember.

Q. Who?

A. Mr. Kronkhyte.

Q. What was Mr. Kronkhyte's position at the mili?

A. He was the -- obviously all of them changed as they advanced during the years,
but | think when he passed away, he was - | think he was vice president of KCAC. ...

Q. Why did you look at Mr. Kronkhyte's death certificate?
A. Again, | don't recall, and ! den't know why | did.
Q. What did it show? What did it say?

A. That | dor't remember. He had a chronic lung condition. | probably wanted to see
if thers was any asbestosis involved with him, because of his lung situation. ...

Q. Was there any asbestosis reflected on his death certificate?

A. No. ...

Q. And there have only bean 2 people that you've looked at the death certificates for?
A. Oh, as far as | can recal, yes.

Q. It's not something that you do as a regular practice?

A. No. No.
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Q. You don't pull the death certificate of every person that worked at the plant that
dies?

A. No.

Q. And you don't recall why it was that this came 1o your attention?

A. No, | don't.

Q. What hapoened after you found out that his death certificate said asbe

A. | contacted the law firm that | was dealing with at that time and -- [Emphasis
added.]

MS. ROSENBERG: Mr. Myers, I'm just going to instruct you not to reveal the
substance of any attorney-client communications. If you can't answer that question
without doing so, then | don't want you to answer it.

THE WITNESS: What happened was evantually - | don't know whether | cailed or
someone — some medical doctor called the coroner's office to find out ar question
that determination on the death certificate.

BY MR. RUCKDESCHEL:

Q. Essentially they challenged the determination?

MS. ROSENBERG: Objection to the form.

THE WITNESS: No. As | say, [ think they questioned it.

BY MR. RUCKDESCHEL:

Q. Was an autopsy performed?

A.Yes,

Q. Where?

A. in Santa Clara County.

Q. By whom?

A. | have no idea. The coroner's office, | think they did the autopsy. And that's a law
in the State of California, that if someone dies of a disease that's related to

something that they were working with, an autopsy is required.

Q. And as a result of that challenge to the death certificate, what, if anything,
happened 1o the designation of asbestosis on it?

MS. ROSENBERG: Objection to the form,

THE WITNESS: Well, | don't agree that it was a challenge. | said it was a question.
The autopsy revealed no evidencs at all of any asbestos-related disease, and ! think
the death certificate was changed.
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BY MR. RUCKDESCHEL;
Q. Changed to what?

A. To the - to eliminate asbestosis as a caiuse of - or contributing cause to the
death.

Q. You would agree with me that if that hadn't happened, if the — if the death
certificate had not been changed, you would no longer be able to sit in rooms like this
and testify that nobedy had gotien sick that worked at the plant?

MS. ROSENBERG: Objection to the form.

THE WITNESS: Yeah, But it was changed, and as | say, an autopsy showed that It
was not asbestosis.

BY MR. RUCKDESCHEL:
Q. You understand that the claim that nobody has gotten sick from Union Carbide
asbestos that workad at the plant is a frequently raised defense in cases such as this

ane?

A, Yes.

{Testimony of former Union Carbide plant manager on whether Union Carbide's Coalinga
(Calidria®) asbestos causes cancer]

Q. When did you stop balieving that Union Carbide asbestos causes cancer?
MS. ROSENBERG: Objection to the form of the question.

THE WITNESS: | don't know whether | ever believed thal it caused cancer. | think
there's been a lot of evidence in the last 10 years that leads me to believe that
Calidria asbestos is not hazardous to the health,

BY MR. RUCKDESCHEL:

Q. You would agree with me, sir, that in 1983, you “firmly believed” — and | use that
in quotations -- that Calidria asbestos was a cancer hazard?

MS. ROSENBERG: Objection to the form.

THE WITNESS: If you're talking about something — what we told customers, we told
all of our customers to treat our asbestos the same as any other asbestos. ...

BY MR. RUCKDESCHEL:

Q. In 1883, you proposed a label o be put on packages of Calidria asbestos. Do you
remember a time in the early '80s when the packaging, the warning labet was going
o be changed? ...

A. "l firmly believe that the first line item is true for short fiber chrysotile -- others may
not.”
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Q. And when you say "short fiber chrysotile” there, you're refering to chrysotile
asbestos mined from the Coalinga deposit that Union Carbide was selling?

A. It doesn't say that it; just says short fiber chrysofile. Shart fiber — There was short
fiber available from Canada.

Q. You're talking here about a label to go on quote, “Calidria,” close quote, asbestos;
right?

A. That's right.

Q. And you say you "firmiy believe that® it - "the first line item is true for short fiber
chrysotile.” Now, what kind of fiber was coming out of the Coalinga deposit?

A. What kind of fiber?
Q. Short fiber chrysotile; correct?
A.Yes.

Q. All right. And what's the first line item on — the proposed warning that you
prepared?

A. "Warning — Cancer Hazard."

Q. And you firmly believed at the time that this was true regarding the asbestos that
Union Carbide was mining?

A. Again, | say for shori fiber chrysotile. | don't say Calidria.
Q. Well, this is a label that's going to go on Calidria; right?
A. Yes. ...

Q. And you've testified in the past that you believed that chrysotile asbestos,
including Union Carbide chrysctile asbestos, caused cancer in sufficient dose?

A_ Could cause cancer.

Q. Right. And now your testimony is that you believe it cannot?

A. That's correct.

Q. And that's based on information that you've learned in the last 10 years or so?

A. Or so, yes.

Q. All right. From whom have you learned that information?

A. I think a large part of it is from the experlence with our employees who now — you
know, some 30 years, 25 to 30 years exposures, there was no asbestos-related

disease.

Q. Assuming that --
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A. And | don't think any of our customer's employees are suffering from disease due
to our product.

Q. And that assumes that the doctor that diagnosed Mr. Whitlock as having
asbestosis was wrong?

A. | think he was.

Q. All right. And that assumaes that the doctor that diagnosed M. Sinclair as having
asbestosis was wrong?

A. That was proven later 1o be incorrect, yes.

Q. It was proven later by Union Carbide's guy?

A No,

Q. The records will speak for themselves in that regard. ...

Q. In 2000 and coming forward to foday, do you remain of the befief that Union
Carbide asbestos cannot cause asbestosis?

A. Yes,

Q. Same for lung cancer?
A. Yes.

Q. Same for mesothelioma?
A Yes. ..

Q. At what point, sir, did you become the president of the Asbestos Information
Assoclation?

A, I don't recall that.
Q. Were you the president?
A. Yes. Well, yes, ...

M Ozoa, Angelo K (Jenuary 9, 1991) Report of Autopsy. County of Santa Clara, Office of the Medical
Examincr-Coroner.

Ozoa was the coroner who changed the diagnosis of "asbestosis” for a Union Carbide worker]

** ATSDR (September, 2001) TOXICOLOGICAL PROFILE FOR ASBESTOS U.S.
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES Public Health Service Agency
for Toxic Substances and Disease Registry, http:/fwww.atsdr.cde.gov/toxprofiles/tp61.html

Asbestos bodies are collections of fibers (usually of length >8 pm) with a protein iron
coating (also known as ferruginous bodies) that, when observed in lung tissue
sactions in conjunction with fibrosis, have been proposed to be used in the diagnosis
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of asbestosis (Churg 1889; Craighead et al. 1982). Whereas light microscopy can be
used to detect and count asbestos bodies, most uncoated fibers in tissue or fluig
samples are too small 1o be visible (Dodson et al. 1999). Transmission or scanning
electron microscopy Is used to detect and count uncoated asbestos fibers in lung
tissue or fluid samples, and electron diffraction or energy-dispersive x-ray analysis is
used {o determine asbestos typs (e.g., chrysotile, anthophyllite, tremolite) (NIOSH
1994b). These biomarkers provide indicators of retained internal dose, the cumulative
net resuit of deposition and clearance of inhaled asbestos fibers. ...

In Libby, Montana vermiculite miners and millers exposed to fibrous tremolite, counts
of asbestos bodies in sputum samples closely reflocted intensity and duration of past
exposure (Sebastien et al. 1988b), but asbestos body counts in sputum samples from
volunteers from other cohorts of workers exposed to asbestos {predominately
chrysotile or lower levels of amphibole fibers than in Libby) did not reliably reflect past
levels of exposure (McDonald et al. 1988, 1882). Concentrations of ashestos bodies
in bronchoalveolar lavage fluid samples have been reported to refiect past exposure
to ashestos fibers in a number of studies (De Vuyst et al. 1988, 1897; Dumortier et al.
1990, 1998; Roggli et al. 1994a; Teschler et al. 1994; Tuomi et al. 1991b) and to
correlate with lung tissue concentrations of ashestos bodies (De Vuyst et al. 1988;
Sebastien et al. 1988a; Teschier et at. 1984}, but exposure to amphibole fibers may
be better reflected than exposure to chrysotile fibers. ...

Teschler et al. {1984) concluded that concentrations of asbestos bodies and
amphibole fibers in bronchoalveolar fluid samples refiably predict lung concentrations
of retained amphibole fibers, but not retained chrysotile fibers, and that negative
findings for asbestos bodies in bronchoalveolar fluid samples do not necessarily rule
out significant exposure to asbestos fibers. ...

Angzlysis of concentrations of asbestos bodies {by light microscopy) or asbestos
fibers (by electron microscopy) in lung tissue samples may represent more accurate
reflections of past asbestos exposure than analysis of bronchoaiveolar fluid or
sputum samples, bul these approaches are not without difficulties, especially for
assaying exposure to chrysotile fibers, which are more rapidly cleared than
amphibele fibers (Case 1994; Churg and Wright 1994). Although asbestos bodles
can form on lung retained chrysatile, amphibole cores appear to be more prevalent in
general populations and asbestos exposed occupaticnal groups, even though
exposure may have primarily involved chrysolile {Case 1984; Dumortier et al. 1990),
Correlations between iung concentrations of asbestos bodies and concentrations of
relained uncoated asbestos fibers in numerous studies have been observed most
consistenily for amphibole fibers and generally not for chrysotile fibers (Albin et al.
1990b; Case et al. 1094; Karjalainen et al. 1996a, 1986b).

* NELSON GALBRAITH, Plaintiff-Appellant, v. COUNTY OF SANTA CLARA, a
Municipality of the State of California; ANGELO OZOA, MD, individually, and in his
official capacity as Santa Clara County Chief Medical Examiner-Coroner, Defendants-
Appellees. No. 00-17369 D.C. No. CV-99-20887-SW OPINION, UNITED STATES
COURT OF APPEALS FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT. Appeal from the United States
District Court for the Northern District of California, Spencer M. Williams, Senior Judge,
Presiding, Argued and Submitted April 11, 2002-—S8an Francisco, California Filed October 9,
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This appsal involves a claim that a county coroner falsified an autopsy repost, leading
to the false arrest and prosecution of plaintiff Nelson Gaibraith {"Galbraith™) for
murder in viglation of his constitutional rights. ...

Galbraith maintains that his wife, Josephine Galbraith ("Josephine®), committed
suicide on September 18, 1995. She first tried to slit her wrisls, then strangled herself
by double knotting a sash around her neck. During this time, Galbraith was in a
separate room watching television. Josephine had been under the care of physicians
for severe depression with suicidal ideation. In the days before her death, Josephine
asked her physicians for a lethat doge of medication; she repeatedly fold family
members that she wanted to die, and said she just wanted to “sprout wings and fly
away.” The officers who investigated Josephine's death originally concluded that the
cause of death was suicide. They based their determination on Josephine's
statements before her death and the absence of scattered blood, defensive
wounding, and indication of a struggle at the scene. Dr. Angelo Ozoa, the County's
Chief Medical Examiner-Coroner, performed an autopsy on Josephine's body, and
conciuded that Josephine did not commit suicide but was instead strangled. This
finding shifted the focus of the Investigation. ...

Dr. Ozoa’s autopsy report, attached to the amended complaint, describss
Josephine’s body ... It further states that external examination of the neck revealed
*somewhat transverse wrinkle marks but . . . no evidence of injury” and internal
examination revealed that [t]he hyoid, larynx, trachea, soft tissues and cervical
spine are unremarkable and show no evidence of injury.” Despite this apparent lack
of injury to the neck, both internally and externally, Dr. Ozoa conciuded that the
cause of death was asphyxia due to ligature strangulation by an assailant. Galbraith
alieges that this conclusion was a result of Dr. Ozoa’s “incompetence” and that Dr.
Ozoa deliberately attempted to cover up his incompetence from this point forward, .

Dr. Ozoa communicated his autopsy findings to Detective Michas| Yore of the Palo
Alto Police Department. Detective Yore's Investigative report, which is also attached
to the amended complaint, states: “This homicide was originally thought to be a
suicide until the Comers [sic] Office advised me that he [sic] cause of death had
changed.” ...

According to the amended complaint, Gaibraith was arrested and charged with
murdering Josephine as a direct rasult of Dr. Ozoa's determinations. Dr, Ozoa
testified at Galbraith's preliminary hearing and trial that Josephine was strangled, that
the death was not a result of suicide, and that Gaibralth was the likely perpetrator,
The jury acquitted Galbraith.

After Galbraith's acquittal, Josephine’s body was exhumed. An expert retained by
Galbraith found that Josephine’s neck organs were not properly dissected. More
specifically, the expert concluded that Dr. Ozoa could not have examined key internal
heck structures that Dr. Ozoa claimed to have examined in the autopsy report, such
as the hyoid bone, which remained fully encased in muscle, and the cartilage of the
trachea, which was obscured by the still-attached thyroid gland. The expert opined
that close examination of these structures would have been central to any forensic
determination that the cause of death was ligature stranguiation by an assailant.
Gaibraith's amended complaint glleges that Dr. Ozoa intentionally lied about the
nature and extent of the autopsy to the police, prosecutors, and later on the stand in
order to cover up his shoddy wark. ...
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Neither side has challenged the district court's application of these warrant affidavit
cases to the present facts, and we agree, without deciding any issue of immunity,
that a coroner's reckless or intentional falsification of an autopsy report that plays a
material role in the false arrest and prosecution of an individual can support a claim
under 42 U.S.C. § 1983 and the Fourth Amendment. ...

The amended complaint also describes deficiencies in the autopsy itself tending to
indicate that Dr. Ozoa never did the work he claimed he had done to support his
conciusion that Josephine’s death was caused by an assailant, Finally, the amended
complaint alleges that Dr. Ozoa deliberately lied about the autopsy in the autopsy
report, in his comrunications with other investigators, and on the witness stand at
the preliminary hearing in order to cover up his incompetence, and that these lies
proximately caused Galbraith's arrest and prosecution for murder. ...

* Egilman D, Fehnel C, Bohme SR. (2003) Exposing the "myth" of ABC, "anything but chrysotile”: a critique
of the Canadian asbestos mining industry and MeGilt University chrysotile studies. Am J Ind Med. 2003
Nov;44(5):540-57.

Egilman, David (2004) Letters, RE: Controlied Use of Asbestos. Journal of Qccupational and Environmental
Health, pp. 99-103,

3 Jenkins, C. (July 4, 2003) Comments ¢n the EPA Office of Inspector General’s 1/27/03 interim report titled:
“EPA’s Response to the World (4 W ” CUMENTARY BASIS FOR
LITIGATION, prepared by Cate Jenkins, Ph.D., Environmenta) Scientist, Waste Identification Branch,
Hazardous Waste ldentification, Office of $olid Waste Office of Solid Waste and Emergency Response, EPA,
Available from author at Jenkins.cate@epa.gov or posted at the following web addresses:

hitp://www.nyenvirolaw.org/PDF/J enkins-7-4-03-documentary-d2. pdf

http:llnycosh.org/Jcnkins-7—4-03-ducumcntary-d.pdf

[See Section U for a discussion of the chrysotile and fiber length issues currently before EPA
and ATSDR, and conflict of interest problems with industry consultants currently acting as
peer reviewers for these efforts. The conflict of interest problems are similar to, but separate
Jrom the COl issues being addressed in this memorandum]

** EPA (1985) Guidance for Controlling Asbestos-Containing Materials in Buildings. Office of Pesticides and
Toxic Substances, EPA Pub. No. EPA 560/5-85-024. Known as the "Purple Book.” See pages M-3 1o M-2.

*" Granger, R. H., McKee, T., R, Millette, J. R., Chmielinski, P, and Pineda, G. (October 1, 2001) Preliminary
Health Hazard Asscssment: World Trade Center. Submitted for publication to the American Industrial Hygienc
Association Jounal. H, P, Environmental, Inc. 104 Elden St., Herndon, VA 20170.

3 INVESTIGATIVE REPORT OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL INVESTIGATION RICHARD
BLUMENTHAL, ATTORNEY GENERAL, CONNECTICUT (FEBRUARY 10, 2004) CONCERNING THE
ACTIONS OF THE CONNECTICUT DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH IN RESPONSE TC THE
DETECTION OF ELEVATED LEVELS OF ASBESTOS IN SCHOOLS IN BROOKFIELD,
lmp:l/www.cs[ib.org.'attygenl/hottopicsfbrookﬁc]dasbcstosrcport.pdf

* Toland, W, (September 10, 2002) "Subject: Issues Pertaining 1o Brookfield (CT) Public School District”,

Email addressed to large EPA group called the Regional Asbestos Coordinators and National Asbestos
Coordinators (RAC/NAC).
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Brookfield, CT, is & fairly affluent town situated about 25 miles north of Stamford, CT
..» 2+ years ago, the CT DPH had responded to a complaint from a scheol parent
who was concerned that asbestos may have been released in an elementary school
(the "Huckleberry Hill Elementary School") during a renovation that had occutred a
few months earlier. ...

Immediately some concemned citizens (all with children in the BPSD [Brookfield
Public School District]) began to question the state's oversight of the school district's
handling of its asbestos regulatory affairs. The focys of their initial wrath was the
AMF and the slate’s "incompetence® in that there were many more AMP violations
than they had documented during the initial inspection (note: these “concerned
citizans” are all represented by just one single voice who some...but not all...view as
their seif-appointed Joan of Arg). ...

Some of those results came back *high” for fibers in settied dust which lead to even
louder criticism of the state's Initial inspection. During this entire debate, one school
teacher at Huckleberry Hiil decided under her own volition and expense to hire a
private consultant to sample for asbestos in her classroom...the music room. The
music room was partially carpeted and had some linoleum as well but EPA DID
NOT...based on its best professional judgment at the time...suggest that the school-
hired consultant sample in this music room. Thig private consultant found
"substantial” structure concentrations in settled dust {250,000+ s/cm(superscript: 2))
in 2 samples collecled (by microvacuuming). All this afler each of the school
buildings within the BPSD [Brookfield Public School System] was given a clean bill of
health by the DPH. Needless to say this really began o set things off in BPSD
community. ...

Part of the problem was that EPA recommended to the BPSD that clean up of each
room should be conducted if the concentrations of asbestos in settled dust exceeded
a benchmark we had set way back in 1998. By way of background, Region | was
quite involved in an enforcement-related isgue in Hartford, CT, in 1996 .... Since it
was an EJ [Environmental Justice, meaning that it invoived exposures of citizens who
were in a raclal minority, e.g., African American] issue and none of these folks had a
whole lot of money ... we needed to establish a *benchmark” by which the need for
remediation should be judged. This temporary, de facto, unenforceable benchmark
is the source of some the most stinging criticism Region | raceives...even by one very
vociferous critic at EPA HQ (read on)!

The "Numbar” (i.e.. 45,000 slem(superscript: 2))

In order to try and make SOME correlation of asbestos airborne concentrations to the
amount of structures found in settled dust, we contacted Mika Beard, of RTI, and Eric
Chatfield of Chatfield Technical Consuiting in Toronto for assistance. For this 1896
compliance case ONLY, it was decided on thig conference call (note: representatives
of the condo complex, the real estate management firm, and the company who
performed the energy upgrade project (all named Respondents in the complaint)...as
well as their respactive attorney's...were ALL on board that conf. cail) that we would
use Chatfield’s 1883 ambient air study which looked for background ambient
asbestos air levels in Toronto, a city whose demagraphics were somewhat
comparable to Hartford. Chatfieid reported in this published study that airborne fiber
concentrations ranged from a iow of 0.000 tice{superscript: 3) or "none
detected"...which were most of the sample results..to a high of 0.045
flec(superscript: 3).
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To relate this to the probability that any these fibers in settled dust could be
expected to become airborne under nermal or routine occupant traffic conditions, we
used k-factors published by Jim Miliette which attempts to make that correlation,
Millette reported that there appeared to be a reasonable linear relationship (or "k-
factor”) of asbestos fibers in settled dust to airborne concentrations in the range of
about 10{superscript: -5) to 10 (superscript: -7) depending on activity in that
immediate area. Therefore, we proposed...and EVERYONE AGREED.. that we
waould use the medlan k-factor (10(superscript: -6)) and set a benchmark of 45,000
s/cmz by which necessary clean-up at that compiex woukd be determined and built
that into the consent agreement.

Although we used the highest end of the published Chatfield study to set this
benchmark recognizing that this was going to be fairly costly to people who may least
afford to pay for these services [this was the CT condo Toland describes as being an
"Environmental Justice™ issue above, i.e., involving African Americans), we felt that
was fair and all agreed. ...

® hitp://www.epa. gavlej
The first two sentences on EPA's EJ web page read as Jollows:

Environmental Justice is the fair treatment and meaningful involvement of all people
regardless of race, color, naticnal origin, or income with respect to the development,
implementation, and enfarcement of environmental laws, regutations, and policies.
Fair treatment means that no group of people, including a racial, ethnic, ora
socioeconomic group, should bear a disproportionate share of the negative
environmental consequences resulting from industrial, municipal, and commercial
operations or the execution of faderal, state, local, and fribal programs and policies.

Less than two weeks ago, the EPA Inspector General issued a report on EPA's failure to
institute EJ requirements at EPA:

EPA (March 1, 2004) Evaluation Report EPA Needs to Consistently Irnplement the Intent of the Executive
Order on Environmental Justice Report No. 2004-P-00007.
hnp://www.cpa.gov!oigeanhlrcports/2004/20040301-2004-?-000{)7.pdf

Y F itzgerald, Margaret (September 15, 2002) Margerct Fitzgerald, music teacher, untitled letier to Toland
disputing Toland's 9/10/02 email

Hulce, Kathy (September 23, 2002) letter from corcerned parent sddressed to EPA Region 1 Administrator.
Ms. Hulee subsequently distributed this letter widely by email with the subject line reading "Summary of
Asbestos in Brookfield from Joan of Arc' "

Keiley, Melinde (September 27, 2002) letter addressed to EPA Region 1 Administrator registering formal
compleint against Wayne Toland.

2 EPA (November 1,2000) EPA Region 1 Mary Rosenstein, Associate Director, Office of
Ecosystems Protection, Letter with attached risk assessment to CT Dept. of Public Health,
"United States Environmental Protection Agency, Technical Appendix, Brookfield School
System, Brookfield, CT."

* Jenkins, C. (May 30, 2002) email to Eric Chatfield with subject line: " Dr. Chatfield, EPA is misquoting you
in one of these two documents, but WHICH ONE IS IT?777"
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“ Chatficld (May 27, 2002) "RE: Huckleberry Hill Elementary School, Brookfield, CT.” Letter provided to
Margaret Fitzgerald, teacher, Brookfield school system, addressed to "Whom it May Concern.”

* EPA (November 1, 2000) EPA Region 1 Mary Rosenstein, Associate Director, Office of
Ecosystems Protection, Letter with attached risk assessment to CT Dept. of Public Heaith,
"United States Environmental Protection Agency, Technical Appendix, Brookfield School
System, Brookfield, CT."

The results ... of the fiity-one (51) Method D5755-85 samples were compared to the
benchmark chosen by EPA based on the asbestos fiber lavels found in ambient
(outside) air measured by Transmission Electron Microscopy (TEM), within the range
0.01 - 0.045 fibers/structures per cubic centimeter (Fce) [this is the same as
structures per millifiter, or s/mL]... In order to compare the benchmark levels from
cubic centimeter(cc) 1o settled dust levels in square centimeter (cm™) and allowing for
the aerodynamic properties of these fibers, a K-factor must be applied. Afer the
application of the appropriate K-factor we calculated a benchmark of 45,000
structures per square centimeter (s‘cm2). ......

EPA established benchmark levels of ambient (outside) air measured by
Transmisgion Electron Microscapy {TEM) within the range 0.01 - 0.045
fibers/structures per cubic centimeter (f/ce) ...

More recent studies in which asbestos air and surface dust levels were measured by
TEM have been used fo calculate additional K-factors. Based on these controllad
studies for reentrainment of settled fibers into air, the K-factor of 10-6 [ten to the
minus six, or 0.000001] was used. As shown in Section 7.0, the D.045 ficc
corresponds to 45,000 s/cm2 after the application of the K-factor.

# ATSDR (2000} Section 5.4 — Levels Monitored or Estimated in the Environment, Toxicologicat Profile for
Asbestos, Agency for Toxic Substances and Disease Registry, Centers for Disease Control, ATSDR. Available
by calling 1-888-42-ATSDR, www.atsdr.cde.gov/toxprofiles/tp6 1. htm!

47 Jenkins, C. (June 9, 2002) TESTING CARPET, THE ASBESTOS RESERVOIR: Best test for carpets;
EPA ultrasonication method; No consultants needed; only cost is the lab fec ; EPA shows HEPA vacuuming
does not remove asbestos; EPA and other asbestos dust benchmarks/safety levels, Memorandum from Cate
Jenkins, Ph.D., Hazardous Waste Identification Division, OSW, EPA addressed to Affected Parties and
Responsible Officials.

See page 12 and following. Posted at: http://91 ldigitalarchive.org/objects/109.pdf

ltis unconscionable for Region 1 to have used the 0.045 s/mL highest outlier value
from the study. At a minimum, it should have used the mean {average) for all of the
measurements, most of which showed no asbestos at all.

Since 1983, however, much more definitive studies with increased sensiifvity have
become avallable for background air levels. Region 1 should have used the peer
reviewed level for amblent outside air from these more recent studies established by
the Agency for Toxic Substances and Disease Registry (ATSDR) of the Centers for
Disease Control (CDC). The ATSDR is an authoritative source for this information for
EPA, and is funded through EPA statutes to develop this information in a
Toxicological Profile for Asbestos. The early 1983 [Chatfield] study used by Region 1
was not even mentioned by the ATSDR.
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ATSDR's findings ... for rural areas is 0.00001 s/mL, and urban air is 0.0001 s/mL %
... Gompare 0.00001 s/mL and 0.0001 s/mL with the level of 0.045 s/mL used by
Region 1 for the Brookfieid schoois! ..,

Region 1 also falsely claimed that 0.01 to 0.045 s/mL asbestos in air is the EPA
benchmark for ambient air. The fact is, EPA has no benchmark or ambient air
standard for asbestos. This is made clear in EPA statutes, regulations, and
publications. As stated earlier, EPA does not consider any exposure leve! to
asbestos to be safe. The only benchmark is zero asbestos levels, zero exposure. ...

Region 1 needed to do more than use an incorrect value for background air in order
to make its risk level for settied dust high enough to cover existing contamination
levels in the Brookfield School System. To do this, Region 1 also intentionally chose
an inappropriate, low K-factor for its caiculations.

There was no reason for Region 1 to have gone through any calculation process to
project background dust levels from air levels, Typical background dust levels are
well established, just like typical air levels.

Region 1 chose to ignore the fact that the same reference they used for K-factors
also contained real world data for typical dust levels, which are widely recognized by
industrial hygienists and other asbestos abatement specialists. See Table 2 for
typical dust levels for bulldings with or without asbestos contamination problems,
Compare 200 s/cm’, a real worikd background level for buildings that do not contain
asbestos materials, with Region 1's calculated level of 45,000 s/cm?,

Even if Region 1 did not want 1o use this published data on typical dust levels, it had
it own data, developed during the testing of the Brookfield schools, that showed that
clean surfaces and clean schools had much, much lowar background dust levels.

# Chatfield, E. (1983) Measurement of asbestos fibre concentrations in ambient atmospheres. Prepared for the
Canadian Royal Commission on Matters of Health and Safety Arising from the use of Asbestos in Ontario by
Eric Chatfield, Manager, Optics Research Centre, Ontario Research Foundation, Mississauga, Ontario.

® Jenkins, C. (June 9, 2002) TESTING CARPET, THE ASBESTOS RESERVOIR: Best test for carpets;
EPA ultrasonication method; No consultants necded; only cost is the lab fee ; EPA shows HEPA vacuuming
does not remove asbestos; EPA and other asbestos dust benchmarks/safety levels. Memorandum from Cate
Jenkins, Ph.D., Hazardous Waste Identification Division, OSW, EPA addressed to Affected Parties and
Responsible Officials.

Scc page 12 and following. Posted at: http://91ldigimlarchive.orglobjcctsll09.pdf

* Health Effects Institute (1991) Asbestos in public and commercial buildings: A literature review and
synthesis of current knowledge. Report of the asbestos literature review pancl. Cambridge, MA: Health Effects
Institute.

%1 Health Effects Institute-Asbestos Research (E9910 Asbestos in Public and Commercial Buildings. A
Litcrature Review and Synthesis of Current Knowledge. "HEI-AR is organized to gather and to generate
reliable and objective information, and is supported jointly by the Environmental Protection Apency and a
broad range of private partics that have an interest in asbestos. The congressional mandate under which HEI-
AR now operates specifies that the HEI-AR research "effort shall in no way be construed to limit or alter EPA’s
authority or obligation to proceed with rulemakings and to issue rules as necessary.” 141 Portland St., Suite
7100, Cambridge, MA 02139,
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2 port Authority of New York and New Jersey v. Allied Corporation, et al., United States District Court,
Southern District of New York, 91 Civ. 0310 (CLB) (MDF). Defendants include: Allied Corporation
(individually and as a subsidiary of Allied-Signal, Inc.); Armstrong World Industries; Tishman Realty and
Construction Co., Inc.; U.S. Minerals and Products Co.; W.R. Grace and Co.; and GAF.

G. The next one is the Health Effects Institute Asbesios Research report, What
opinions do you expect to render regarding that report?

A. That's a rather broad question. There's evidenca in the summaries of the main
report concerning the effects of direct and indirect analysis. There is evidence of low
concentrations in public commercial buildings, airborne concentrations, and overall
discussion of the — of the topic of airborna concentrations in buildings, and { think - |
can't say — point to any specific items until such time as 'm questioned on a -
Specific questions may be raised, and those questions are likely to be addressed in
here. ... [pp. 2219-20]

*# Jenkins, C. and Beard, M. {March 21, 2002} Email interchange in 4 parts. Subject: "Mike, a question for
you-—"

[Beard to Jenkins]
... The EPA "Silver Book" cites TEM airborne asbestos levels of 0.0 fo 0.045 f/cc

found in urban and rural ambient samples. | don't think we have any epidemiology to
state that there is widespread disease associated with a level of 0.045 ¥cc. .

[Jenkins to Beard]
Thank you, Mike,

| also agree that the 0.000004 #mL level is not relevant to be imposed on one
particular exposure scanario. But it is the EPA risk level, and thera it stands. We
cannat question It at this point.

Also, for urban and city air, we have to accept what ATSDR says about average
values. | agree that you do not use a "non-detection” as equivalent to zero. Either you
assign the detection limit itself as the value, or 1/2 the detection limit. That is what |
did in my 3/11/62 memo for the Libby data.

| do not know any scientist, even the ATSDR, who would assign a zero value to a
detection limit value. We actually do have epidemiologist saying that there is definite
risk at the 0.045 ficc level. They do not say *widespread disease” of course. Inslead,
they say based on human studies and a linear model, that the increased risk would
be 1in 100. That is what

ATSDR said in their final review in 2001, and what EPA saysin IRIS.

We have no evidence that urban air even approaches 0.045 /mL for a 70 year
exposure pariod. Until you can establish that you have a large population actually
exposed at these levels for 70 years,, you cannot claim that this level is safe or there
is no evidence of widespread disease at this level. ...
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[Beard to Jenkins)
Thanks Cate,

Can you give me the reference for the ATSDR data on ambient air so | can keep up
to date???

Thanks

Mike

{Jenkins to Beard)]

Mike, the reference is to: Table 5-2, ATSDR (2000} Toxicological Profile for
Asbestos, Centers for Disease Control, ATSDR. Available by calling 1-888-42-
ATSDR. Currently, only the final draft version is posted at
www.atsdr.cdc.govitoxprofiles/tp61.html |

[Beard to Jenkins)

Thanks Cate! | now have a copy. Maybe someday | will begin to understand risk
assessment. But for now, I'll leave that to experts like you!!!

54 Heather Barr (2003-06-01) Clearing the air Sources of school asbestos remain & mystery. THE NEWS-
TIMES. http:lfwww.newstimes.oom/cgi—bin!dbs.cgi?db=news&vicw_records=1&id=50925

In the beginning, some environmental officials said that a level of 45,000 structures
{or bits of asbestos) per square centimeter was an acceptable level for dust
sampling.

But some parents wondered about that feve. Kathy Hulce, wha has two children in
the district, researched asbestos by requesting information from state and federal
sources. She came to the conclusion that the original 45,000 structures standard was
"scandalous.”

In fact, when the school system formed an advisory committee of officials and
parents to assist with the asbestos clean-up, members adopted & much lower
threshold of 5,000 structures per square centimeter for dust sampling, Brookfield
adopied a level that was 25 times less than a benchmark leval used for sampling air,
said Granvilte.

Heather Barr (2002.06-29) Ashestos removal outlined ~Residents to vote on $900,000 to start cleanup. THE
NEWS-TIMES,

High Jevels of asbestos contamination were found in some rooms of Hucklebery Hill
School in the middle of May. After that school was closed, testing revealed high
levels of asbestos in all four town schools.

No source of the contamination has yet been pinpointed.
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Vernon Rohde of S&B Environmental, who was hired by music teacher Margarat
Fitzgerald to test Huckleberry Hill School, said in recent results, Brookiield High
School showed the worst levels of all four schools. He said consultants found high
levels of ashestos contamination ih some radiators and rooms.

Rohde said some readings were in the millions. He said the 5,000 structures per
square centimeter standard is being used, and that more than half of the high
school’s rooms, around 50, must be cleaned.

Granville said he does not endorse using the 45,000 structures per square centimeter
level either.

Rohde agreed. *(The school system is) going against my advice,” said Rohde if the
45,000 standard is used.

** Robert Miller and Heather Barr (February 11, 2004) State no help on asbestos, THE NEWS-TIMES,,
htip://www.ncwstimes.com/cgi-bin/dbs.cgi?db=news& view_records=1&id=59549

First Selectman Jerry Murphy — who was not in office in 2002 — said Tuesday that
the town now has an indoor air quality program “that's way ahead of the pack.”
Brookfield uses a much stricter standard than the one the public health department
adopted for the fown in 2000 — a standard that does not exist in either federal or
state regulations.

% Jenkins, C. (July 4, 2003} Comments on the Office of Inspector cral’s 1/27/03 interim report titled:

“EPA's Response to the World Trade Center Towers Collapse” A DOCUUMENTARY BASIS FOR

LITIGATION , op cit. See earlier citation for web address.

7 ERIC 1. CHATFIELD (August 20, 2002) CURRICULUM VITAE, CURRENT AT 2002-08-20. Submitted
1o EPA’s contractor Versar as part of process for selection to EPA's peer review panel for the EPA ORD NCEA
WTC human health risk assessment.

[The following were listed as expert consultancy services involving the defense of asbestos
companies against suits brought by school boards]

1991 Mar 07 Deposition on behalf of U.S. Mineral Products Company (Defendant):
U.5. District Court for The Eastarn District of Pennsylvania, No. 830268: Asbestos
School Litigation. Attorneys Stephen J. Imbriglia and Carl H. Delacato, Jr.; Hecker
Brown Sherry and Johnson, 1700 Two Logan Square, 18th and Arch Streets,
Philadelphia, PA 19103,

1892 Mar 18 Deposition on behalf of U.S. Mineral Products Company (Defendant):
U.S. District Court, Eastern District of Texas, Beaumont Division, Case No. B-87-
00507, Dayton Independent School District, et al vs. U.S. Mineral Products
Company, et al. Attarneys Peter C. Kennedy; Hecker Brown Sherry and Johnson,
1700 Two Logan Square, 18th and Arch Streets, Philadelphia, PA 18103, and David
A. Livingston; Livingston & Markle, 200 Waugh on the Bayou, 55 Waugh Drive,
Houston, TX 77007.

1983 Apr 13 Expent Witness Testimony at Trial on behalf of Fibreboard Corporation
(Defendant). The Court of Common Pleas, Hamilton County, Ohio, Case No.
AB405380; Cincinnati Board of Education vs. Armstrong World Industries, Inc., et al,
Attorney Thomas L. Eagen, Jr.; Cash, Cash, Eagen & Kessel, 1000 Tri-State
Building, 432 Walnut Street, Cincinnati, Chio 45202.
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1894 Jun 15 Deposition on behalf of United States Mineral Products (Defendant):
State of Michigan in the Circuit Court for the County of Wayne, No. 84-420634-NP:
Board of Education of the School District for The City of Detroit vs. The Celotex
Corporation, et al. Attorney Carolyn Sullivan, Esquire; Melick & Porter, One Joy
Street, Boston, Massachusetts 02108.

1995 Aug 15 Deposition on behalf of Union Carbide (Defendant), and on behalf of
United States Mineral Products Company (Defendant): State of llinois, County of
Cook, $8: in the Circuit Court of Cook County, illinois, County Department - Law
Division, No. 92 L 9934: Board of Education of the City of Chicagovs. A, Cand S.,
Inc., et al.; No. 82 L 8933: Evanston Community Consolidated School District No. €5,
etal,vs, A, Cand$S, Inc., etal; No. 92 L 9832: Board of Education of High School
District No. 211, et al., vs. Abitibi Asbestos Mining Co., Ltd., et al.: No. 82 L 8927:
Board of Education of Township High Schools, et al,vs.A,C&S,Inc., etal
Attorney, on behalf of Union Carbide, Matthew E. Norton; Burke, Weaver & Prell, 55
West Monroe Street, Chicago, Iinois 60603, and Attorney, on behalf of United States
Mineral Products Company, Peter C. Kennedy; Hecker Brown Sherry and Johnson,
1700 Two Logan Square, 18th and Arch Streets, Philadelphia, PA 19103,

1986 Dec 15 Deposition on behalf of United States Mineral Products Company, Inc.
(Defendant): U.S. District Court for The Western District of North Carolina,
Greensboro Division, C-85-1256-G; Burlington City Board of Education v. United
States Mineral Products Company, Inc. Altorneys J.A. Gardner, Il and G.C. York:
Hedrick, Eatman, Gardner & Kinchelos, 741 Keniworth Avenue, Suite 300, Charlotte,
North Carolina 28204.

1886 June 25 Deposition on behaif of U.S, Gypsum Co. (Defendant): Circuit Court of
Jacksan County, Missouri, Case No. N/A; School District of Independence, Missouri,
No. 30 v. U.S. Gypsum Company. Attorney J.D. Pagliaro; Morgan, Lewis & Bockius,
2000 One Logan Square, Philadelphia, PA 19103,

1885 Dec 11 Deposition on behalf of U.S. Gypsum Co. {Defendant): U.S. District
Court of the Eastem District of Tennesses, Eastern Division, No. 2-83-328; Shernry
Wolfe et al. (Washington County Board of Education, Tennessee) v. U.S. Gypsum
Co., National Gypsum Company and W.R. Grace & Co. Attarneys J.D. Pagliaro and
D.J. Valenza; Morgan, Lewis & Bockius, 2000 One Logan Square, Philadalphia, PA
19103.

* Huice, Kathy (October 2, 2003) letter to EPA Inspector General Nikki Tinsley requesting an investigation on
Region I's reliance on Chatfield and their continued use of the 45,000 s/em? standard for asbestos in settled
dust.

% Hulee, K. (tuly 7, 2002) ictter addressed to EPA Region 1 Administrator Vamey concerning the Region 1
risk assessment for the Brookfield schools.

“ EPA {September 4, 2002) Letter from EPA Region 1 Stephen 8. Perkins, Office of Environmental
Stewardship, addressed 10 Ms. Kathy Hutce conceming the Region 1 risk assessment for the Brookfield schools,

*' EPA (August 21, 2003) Evaluation Report EPA’s Response to the World Trade Center Collapse:
Challenges, Successes, and Areas for Improvement Report No. 2003-P-00012. See page 114.
http://www.cpa.gov/oig/reports/2003/W TC_report_20430821.pdf

“ EPA (May 30, 2003} Report on the Peer Consultation Workshop to Discuss a Proposed Protocol to Assess
Asbestos-Related Risk Prepared for: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Office of Solid Waste and
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Emergency Response Washington, DC 20460 EPA Centract No. 68-C-98-148 Work Assignment 2003-05,
Prepared by: Eastern Research Group, Inc. 110 Hartwell Avenue Lexington, MA 02421 FINAL REPORT.,
hitp://www.epa.gov/superfund/programs/risk/asbestos/

% The issue of asbestos fiber type and "short” fibers (those less than 5 microns in length) has become a central
issuc in product liability litigation where asbestos companies deny that their short fiber chrysotile asbestos can
cause disease in workers (this is primarily the defense of friction products manufacturers (brakes/clutches),
gasket and packing manufacturers, and Union Carbide (its Calidria-brand chrysotile had an average length of 5
microns). Thus, the asbestos industry has & huge interest in the outcome of these scientific panels. If the
asbestos industry and their lawyers can convince the EPA to change is current position (all types of asbestos are
dangerous) to assigning little or no risk to chrysotile asbestos, the industry would have a huge new weapon in
defending themselves.

® Dr. Yasunosuke Suzuki and others found that the predominant form of asbestos found in and around
asbestos-related mesothelioma tumors was short (less than 5 microns) chrysotile asbestos. Dr. Suzuki
concluded:

The majority of asbestos fibers in lung and mesothelial tissues were shorter than 5 wm in length. Conclusions:
1) Fiber analysis of both lung and mesothelial tissues must be done to determine the types of asbestos fibers
associated with the induction of human malignant mesothelioma; 2) short, thin asbestos fibers should be
included in the list of fiber types contributing to the induction of human malignant mesothelioma; 3} Results
support the induction of human malignant mesothelioma by chrysotile,

Suzuki and Yuen, Asbestos Fibers Contributing to the Induction of Human Malignant Mesothelioma, Ann.
N.Y. Acad. Sci. 982: 160-176 (2002).

Dr. Ronald Dodson and others also published a peer-reviewed article which made clear that there clearly is not
enough data 1o exonerate fibers shorter than 5 microns as a hazard, Dedson, Atkinson & Levin, Ashestos Fiber
Length as Related to Potential Pathogenicity: A Critical Review, Am. J. Indus. Med, (2003). The EPA panel
inexplicably ignored these and hundreds of other works which suggest that chrysotile is a potent carcinogen.

 In his testimony before the Senate Judiciary Committee, Dr. Crapo indicated he had been an expert in
asbestos litigation “from time to time.” Under cath in litigation, Dr. Crapo admits that his consultation with
asbestos companies was 20-25% of his annual income and that he did not dispute that he’d eamed up o a
“couple of million dollars.”

* David France and Erika Check (September 14, 2001 ) Asbestos Alert. Newsweek,
http:I/msnhc.com/ncws/629268.asp?05p=w12b2&cp1=1

“We're getting in there and testing to make sure things are safe,” Whitman says.
"Everything will be vacuumed that needs to be, air filters {in area buildings) will be
cleaned, we're not going to let anybody into a building that isn't safe. And these
buildings witl be safe. The president has made it clear that we are to spare no
expense on this one, and get this job done.” . ..

Susan Ferraro (September 14, 2001) EPA chief says water, air arc safe. New York Daily News
"The President has said, 'Spare no expense, do everything you need to do to make
sure the pecple of this city and down in Washington are safe as far as the
environment is concerned,' * Whitman said. . . R|

7 See specific statements of White House changes to EPA press releases after 9/11 in the following report:
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EPA (August 21, 2603) Evaluation Report EPA's Response to the World Trade Center Collapse: Challenges,
Successes, and Areas for Improvement Report No. 2003-P-00012. See page 114.
http:/fwww.epa.gov/oig/reports/2003/WTC_rcport_20030821.pdf

9 Full text of legal brief available at the publication "Inside EPA" (subscription).

See press articles at:

Lower Manhattan residents and workers sue EPA over air quality, David New Yotk Newsday, March 10, 2004
hittp:/fwww.newsday.com/mews/local/wire/ny-be-ny--groundzerolawsuit03 [0mar| 0,0,332607 story?coll=ny-ap-
regional-wire

EPA Sued Over Sept. 11 Contamination, Reuters, March 20, 2004 Wed Mar 10, 2004 07:18 PM ET
hutp:/fwww.reuters.com/newsA tticle. jhtmI?type=topNews& storyl D=4 542138

Lower Manhattan Residents Sue EPA Over Air Quality, AP Says, David M. Leavitt & Richard Rosen,
Bloomberg News, March 10, 2004
htip:/fquote.bloomberg.com/apps/mews?pid=10000103& sid=alq4 YBzD.wnO&refer=us#

Group Is Suing Federal Agency Over Post-9/11 Health Hazards, by Anthony, DePalma, New York Times,
March 11, 2004
http://www.nytimes.com/2004/03/1 /nyregion/11 epa.btm]?ex=1080012807& ci=1 &en=6bd7654708d2dafc

Dowatowners Suing Feds Over Toxic Lies, by William Neuman, New York Post, March 11, 2004
htep/iwww.nypost.com/news/regionalnews/20482 htm
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Calidaa; e JOAC
PO BOK K + XKING GITY, CA, 82930

TEL (408 305596}
FAX 4O 385 115

June 3, 1991

Alan 3. Gerson, Esq.

Kelley, Dryc & Warren

101 Park Avanue

New York, NY 10178

Dear Alnn:

Enciosed I3 » copy of the final autopsy reporc ior
Paul Whitlock. 1 wm surs you will ba ax pleazed as
[ wm to note that asbestoscs was not involved in his
death, nor is thete cven any mention of at,

Very truly yours,

J&f‘:’qn

imby
Engt.

ct: Frank M. Brown

05, Sen mpreiety p.
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTI!, EDUCATION, AND WELFARE

WASHING " QM, B.C. 2tmxn

April 25, 1978

OF THE
PUBLIC BEALTH SERVICE

PHYSICIAN ADVISORY - HEALTH EFFECTS OF ASBESTOS

The results. of recent studies of shipyard workers have increased concern
about the health effects associated with previous occupational exposure
to asbestos. This advisory notice will assist you in dealing with
inquiries- from your patients and other members of the public.

Asbestos refers 1o a group cf widely used fibrous minerals. Significant
exposure of men and women employed in shipyards is known to have occurred,
gven among those not directly working with ashbestos. Exposure to asbestos
can also occur in many settings, such as, direct mining and manufacturing;
construction: insulation: roofing; demoplition; brake Tining: and the
manufacture and installation of asbestcs pipe, sheets, panels, paper
‘products, friction materials, textiles, fidor tiles, paints, and gaskets.
The risk has been documented extens1ve]y for certa1n occupational expasures,
and there are reports that asbestos-associsted disease also occurs in
household contacts of asbestos workers.

_ The primary effects of past asbestos exposure are ashestosis, a lung
disease, and certain types of cancer, primarily lung cancer and pleural
‘and peritoneal mesothelioma and, less frequently, gastro-intestinal and
other cancers. It is now known that the health effects of asbestos -
appear after a long latent period (15, 25, 35 or more years) after the
initial exposure. Exposures as short as a month may result in disease
many years later, because the inhaled dust. he1ng mineral, tends to
.remain in the tisswes. e 1ot tuddes of: heavity exposed:
workense-that approximately (20 to-26 of each 100 |deaths among asbestos
“workers 20 or more years from onsel of exposure are found to be from

~lung cancer, 7 to 10 from mesothelioma, 4 from cancer of the esophagus,
stomach, co1on/rectum, and 50me-excess~eancensmef other sites (oropharynx,
sharynwy, and kidney). In additien, in some groups, as many as 7 percent

of workers 'die of a form of pneunonoconiosis, asbestosis, Cigarette
smoking significantly increases the lung cancer risk of asbestos exposure
and-aggravates asbestosis.
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In dealing with your patients or ather individuals who worked in shipyards
or believe that they were otherwice exposed to asbestos, you may wish tp
consider the following issuves:

1. Occupational or Exposure History -- A detailed, lifetime history
must be obtained. 15 15 time consuming, but important because

significant exposures may have been brief {one month} and may have
occurred many years ago (i.e., during World War I1). Becavse the
World War 11 work force was comprised of many women as well as men,
the potential for female patient involvement should not be overlooked.

2.  Careful Management of Lung Disease -- A detailed history for
. symploms such as shortness of breath or exertional dyspnea, physical

examination, chest x-ray, and pulmonary function tests may be

helpful in diagnosing the pneumoncconipses associated with asbestos.

Early x-ray changes are o6ften subtle SO x-rays must be reviewed

carefully by experienced readers. Such readings .should include a

thorough search for pleursl changes. Careful attention to and .
aggressive treatment of respiratory- infections may be important in .
patients with asbestosis, The use of currently effective influenza- :
and pneumgcoccal vaccines shoyld be considered,

3.  Emphasis on Smoking Cessation -- Discontinuation of smoking is an

"~ mportant step Tn the control of the sequelae of asbestosis and

.+ w1l assist ia the prevention of Tung cancer. Individuals who
smoke and who have been exposed to asbestos have 30 to 90 times the:
risk of getting tung cancer of individuals who neither smoke nor
have been exposed to asbestos and 7% to 30 times the risk of the
non-smoking asbestos workers. . Dats are available which show that
cessation of smoking will significantly diminish the risk of ‘
developing lung cancer among asbestos workers, .

4. Cancer Surveillance -- The' usefulness of screening asymptomatic,

© exposed individuals for lung, gastro-intestina) and other cancers
‘s now under study in elinical trials. “Individuals, however,
should be carefully questioned regarding possible symptoms which '
_could be related to cancer: chest pain, hoarseness, hemoptysis, '
weight loss, melena, etc. If such symptoms are present, an appro-
priate diagnostic workup should be undertaken. -

It is important to note that many people exposed to asbestos -- perhaps
a majority -- suffer no apparent 111 effects, ‘It is hoped that most of
your patients will be in this category.

Current use of asbestos is regulated, but attention must be given to
proper ventilation and engineering controls and the use of respirators --
all measures of primary prevention. In the past the dangers of asbestos

.exposure were not fully 3ppreciated; much exposure occurred in previous

{
!
2
decades, particularly in shipyards, where individuals often werked in E
confined quarters, . ) - : {;
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- A discussion of asbestos and 1ts health effects appears in the March/Apri
issue ‘of Ca, The Cancer Journal for Clinicians and is available through
the American Cancer Society, 777 Third Avenue, Mew York, Mew York
10017. A more detailed physician information alert will be distributed
by the National Cancer Institute through a number of medical journals
‘Wwithin the next two or three months including the Journal of the American
Medical Association. Additiona) informstion fncluding a more.detalled
series 'of questions and answers can be obtained by writing to Asbestos,
National Cancer Institute, 5000 Rockville. Pike, Bethesda, Maryland 200%4.

s‘i"care'lys

J in QEZJi;pqazcé? -
ulius B, Richmond, #.D. ' _

urgeon Genera -
Assistant Secretary for Health
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T CHEMICALS AND INDUSTRIAL PRUCESSES
ASSOCIATED WITH CANCER IH HUHANS
.o . IARC MONCOGRAPHS VOLUMES 1-20

ABSTRACT

A S An incernationsl ad hee Morking Crump of experts in
. . cancer research met at the Internatlona) Ageney for Resensch
' - ’ on Cancer (IARC) in January 1979 to evaluate tha data on
: : human and experimental animal carcluogenlcity for 54
chemicala, grovpas of chemicals, and lmlustrlal processes.
Hotiographs for these chemicala wers pubilahied in Volumas
1-20 of the IARC Monogruphs on- the Fealuwation of Lhe
Carcinogetiie Risk of Chemicals to lwnmwmin.  Un the basis of
sevidence from human studles, 18 of the 54 chamicaln and
industrial processes are human carcinegens. A further
18 chemitals are probably cnrclnogenic for humans,
although tha data wers considered not adequats to estobllish
: o a caussl associacdon. To reflect JlFfering degrees of
- . evidence of carcinogenicity wichin this group, it wam

A E furthar subdivided; for aix chemlcals there was a3 high
degree of evidence, and for LI there was o lower
degres, Data on the remaining 18 chemlcals were consider-
¢d ihsufficiont to allow any evaluvatiun of carcinugenfcley.
The report summarizes the background, purpuse, and overall
conclusions of the Working Group, The evidence supporting
the avaluations is given in the Appendix.

* This volume includes a cumulative lixlax of chemicals for
Volumes 1=20 of the IARC Monographs, as woll as an fndex by
possible target organ in humans. A cowdensed veraion of this
report will appear in the Dogember 1979 issue of Cancer
Research,
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CHEMICALS AID rwvi CANNCER 1

1

14, Limiéted evidanen of carclinopenielty indicates a possible
carciugpenic alffect in lumwms, aithough the Jdata nce not - -sufficicent

tv demoustrate a causal associatlon,

LLL. Lnwdepuiate evidouer of carciovgeniclty Ludlcates that the
data are-ymalltatively or quantitatively insui{licient to allow any
cancluglon‘_tngardlng carcinogenicity for iumans.

} LI P—
I Dividing lines were by no means firmly drawvn between sufficient 2
: gvidence and limited evidince from anlmal studies and between inadequate e
evirignce and limited evidence Exom both human and snimsl studies. When !'l',i“
l differences of oplnlon occurced among the members of the Working Group, ’.'i_:;“
| the classificatlon was made by majority vote. 7
o
[ =

Evaliettion ol the cavetumgatic risk to Mhmang ° -
fresently, no objectlve criteria axist to iuterprat the animal data e b
directly tu terms of huwsu tisk. Thus, ln the absence of sufficiet F“ -
. avtdonce from huwan studles, evaluation of the carcinogenle risk to
M humans was hased on couslderacion of both the epideniclogical and expar=- ) F
inental cvidence.  Furthermore, the breadeh of the categories for humsn -
and animal evlidence deflned above allows substantianl variation within 1
each, amd the decisluvas reached Ly the group regarding overall risk R
incurporsted thesc JLlflerences, cven though they could not always be *
adequately reflected Ln the placement of a chemical into a particular

T m e e et i —————  —

category lo the Tabled. The evidence in support of thess decisions
is sumnarized In the notes for each chemical Iin the Appendix. Fq';'\.‘.'-.
The chemicals, proups of chemicnll. or ipdustrisl proceuu uero ‘ o . v

. placed Lnto one of chree groups: R - fae -

! Gepup 1 . ‘ . ;

! The clemical, group of chemicals, or industrial procoes is carcins- - .

: gonie Jor hummm. Thls category was used only when there wageufficient - . W
eirhuze to mupport a cousal assoclaclion between the axposure 3 L
cancer. it =

Group 2 -{:'-c

fect The cinmical or growp of chemicals is prebably caretnogenic for
lusmevia.  Thls categucy lnciudes chiemicals for which the evidence of
hunan carcisogenicity Ls alwost 'sufflelent' as well as chemicals for
n which it is only suggestlve. Ta reflect this range this cacegory has
’ been divided inte higher (proup A) or lewer (proup B) degrees of evidence.
The data from experimental animal studies played an impoctant role in
assiguing cliemicals to category 2, and particularly to those in group B.

; Group 3
The chumienl or growr of cheiicala cannot be classified as . to its
vareinagenceily for o,

s s "o ..b...-.-.-.:.I'&‘:«'-buw\mw:;;-r.u.u ThatI v
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- T APPENDIX: DESCRIPTIVE EVALUATIONS 23

llowisver, the Llnflucuce. of vther coustltuents of the working envicoument
. : cammot be excluded in these studies. Case reports have suggested an \
ng asaoclation between oxpogure to arsenie compounds and blood dyserasias !
nary and liver tumours'"
ST . R
MR I
W oa o '

6. ASBESTOS (Group 1)

All types of commarcial asbestos Eibres that have been tested ara
carcinogenic in mice, racts, hamsters sud rabbits, producing mesotheliomas
and lung carcinomas after inhalation, and after intrapleural, latra=-
trachcal and intraperltoneal sdministration

ind . Occupntional expunure to chrysotile, amosite, snthophyllite, and
mixturea contalning <rocidolite hom resulted in & high incidence of
~ldes Jung cancer. A predominantly tremolitic material mixed with antho-
when phyllite and emall amvunts of chrysotile has sleo caused an increased
asgd to incidence of lung cancer.  Ploural and peritoneal mn:hcll.onu have been
" observed after dccupattonnl exposure to crocidolite, smowité and chrysotile
bﬁntou. Gantrofntestinal tract cancers were increased in groups exposwd
occupn:louully to amsite, chrysotile or mixed fibres containing croci-
delite. An excess of cancer of the larynx was also observed in exposed '
workers.  Hemothellomas lave eccurred in ind{vidusls living id the
neiglibourhood of osbestos foctories and crocidolite mines, and in persons
living with nshestos workers. Both cigarette smoking and occupational
exposure to ashostos flbres increase lung cancer anidence indepsndantly.
When present together, they act multipli:lthlly »
Inor=
-aal
n, ’ ! Kjeldsberg, C.R. & Ward, H.P. (1972) Leukemis in arsenic peisoning.
. Aunn. Entern, Med,, 77: 935-937.
2 Kyle, R.A. & Pease, G.L. (1965) llematologic aspects of arsenic
ana intoxlentlon. He Fnpgl. J. Hed., 273: 18-23,
3 prady, J., Liberatore, F., llacpec, I's, Greenwald, P., Bumett, ¥.,
Davics, J.N:l'., Gisiiop, M., Polan, A, & Vianna, K. (1877}
Anrlosarcomn of the liver: an epidemlologic survey. J. Natl
Cancer [ust., 59: 1383-1385.
w=Lil- “ Lander, J.J., Stanicy, R.J., Sumser, H.W., Doswell, D.C. & Anch. R.D.
11-8G4, . (1975) Anplosarcuma of thic liver associnted with Fowler's
solution (pgtaslinm arsenice). Gastroentexclogy, 68: 1582-1586.
ay Y., $ 1ARC Mouographs, 141 1-106, 1977,
from
at. J.
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10 [ARC Mxm:w-‘ns, SUPPLEMENT
lv. Meyative evidence menna that within the limits of the toesty

dﬁ-i used, the chewical inm nor eatcinopenle, The numbey of twepative

R I Ftudica |s amall, since Lg keneral, atwlles that show ne ellece age
e Y . less likeily to be pubkIshed than those suggesting corcinogenleiry,
an)

h% . ¥+ Mo Jata indicates that data vere not available te the Horking
ey Lroup, '
Ty Tl .

o © T The categorden suffieient guidence

and limiied evidence refer only

to the strength of tia experimental evidence that these chemicgls are

. {or are nor) carelnogenic and not to ch
actlvity. Tue clussiflceciun for any

Aosspoment of svidence for carcinogenicity from luman stwiias .
,ﬂi: : Evidence of careinogenicity from human scudies comes from three
- 1 I . main sources:
ey
o . 1. Caso reports of individual cancer patients who vers expoged
N . - te the chemical or précess, '
R
.- 2. Descriptive epidemiological studles in wlileh the {incidunce
ﬁ'_ , of cancer in human populations wns found to vary spatially «
Wt v temporally witl, exposiure to tho apgenta.
. (A
—l ; 3. Aunlytinnl'cpidcnlolcgicul (ceae-control amd cobiore) studies
L In which individual eXpOBuUre to the chemicol or gréup of
L] chemlcals was found co ba Bazociated with an locreased rigk
- i of cancer, .
wrT] -
. ' Three celterin muat be mee for a causal assoclatlon to be i{nfecrad
B B between exposure nud human cancer (3):
:ii : 1. Thera is no ldentified bias which could explain the association,
: 2. The possibility of confounding has been consldered gud ruled
! 9ut as exploining the asgociation.
— : " 3. The nssoclation is unlikely to be due to chance.
RIS In gereral, although a single atudy may he indlcatlve of a cause-cffect
. ralaticuship, conildence in Inferring o caumal associntiva 18 fnercosed
=1 - vlien several independent studies are concocdant In showing the assocls-
Fau tion, whea tha asacciatlon 1s strong, wlhen thete im a dose-tresponuse
- . . relntionshfp, vt when a reduction iy exposure is [olloved by a reducticn
i in the incldence of caucer. .
e . The diegroes of avidences

for carclnogenicity in human studies wars
.1 categorized as ;

L. Suffivient evidence of earcinogenleity indicates a causal
. . assoclation botwecn exposure and human cancer.
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WASHINGTON, D.C. 20460

k& § UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

MEMORANDUM

DATE: April 16, 2004
SUBJECT: Bruce Case, MD, EPA consultant for asbestos:

TO:

¢C.

COl misrepresentations and slander against other scientists

EPA IG WTC Team: Nikki Tinsley, Chris Dunlap, Sarsh Fabirkiewicz, Dana
Gilmore, Jim Hatfield, Geoff Pierce, Stove Schanamann

Affected partios and responsible officials

FROM:  Cate Jenkins, Ph.D.” Q Yy
Environmental Scientist, Waste Idcatification Branch

Hazardous 'Waste Ideatification Division (Mail Code 5304W)
Office of Solid Waste

This memorandum documents evidence of substantial misrepresentations to the US.
government by Bruce Winston Case, MD. Case served as 8 consultant for an EPA peer panel
on asbestos risks,' an issue directly related to EPA'S response to the World Trade Center
disaster.

Case provided false and misleading information regarding his wock history and sources of
real and perceived COI on a detaited COI form?® peior to his selection to the EPA panel, as
well as to myself.

In addition, in & recent cmail interchange between Case and miyself, he slanders other
scientists who were not selected to serve on the EPA peer panel. This was to justify his
contention that they were unfit to servo, In my 3/11/04 memorandum to the EPA Offico of
the Inspector General {O1G), 1 suggested scveral other scientists whom I believed shoukd
have been included so s to achieve belance and & broader spectrum of scientific views. The

* The concluslons and opinions in this memarsadum are those of the suthoc snd do sot necessarily reflect thoso
of the U5, Environmental Protection Agency.
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panel EPA had chosen was heavily weighted to scientists who served as expert witnesses and
consultants to the asbestos industry.

The credibility of Case's writion statements and input into this EPA panel are also sexiously
in question, because they fall to consider all relevant evidence. There is a documented record
mmmmmmmmvmmmmhn&mmmu
obﬁgaﬁmmddmgewﬂwpmelmembmmpmvideEPAwiﬂunmbiuedmdyshofaﬂ
this data. However, Case chose to utilize only those studies which supported the financial
interests of the asbestos industry.

Legal basis, allegations regarding EPA consuitant Bruce Winston Case, MD

The documentstion provided herein relates to concealment and covering up relovant
information, misrepresentations, false writings, false and fraudulent statemeats, etc. by a
particular EPA consultant. These offensas fall within the criminal statutes at Title 18,
Chapter 47, Section 1001 of the U.S. Code: CRIMES AND CRIMINAL PROCEDURE.?

On 7/4/03, 7/16/03, and then on 3/1 1/04, 1 provided your office documentation of EPA's
failure to investigate and mitigate consultant COJ-issuss, especially as related to asbestos and
Warld Trade Center (WTC) toxic fallout. These problems fall under EPA's obligations to
insure the integrity and impartiality of its decisions by preventing, investigating, and
mitigating COl iasues, whether real or perceived.

Case served on EPA's Peer Consultstion Workshop on'a Proposed Asbestos Cancer Risk
Asscssment. EPA published the proceedings of this wotkshop on 5/30/03.¢ Case not only
contributed to the joint conclusions of the panel, but he also wrote a separate section by
hirself, consisting of his personal "Premecting Comments” which were incorporated without
any changes into the final EPA published proceedings.

This panel wxs convened afier the collapse of the WTC with no possible desired outcome
other than to downgrade the carcinogenicity status (and thus degree of protection) for
asbestos. This association is supported by the fact that the pancl was requested and funded
by EPA's Superfund Program under the Comprehensive Environmental Respouse and
Liability Act (CERCLA), which is the same statutory authority under which EPA responded
to the WTC diszster. .

Attached are a series of email interchanges between Case and myself from 3/15/04 through
3/23/04. Case was critical of my portrayal® of him in my 7/4/03 report to the OIG® as well as
my 3/11/04 report’ to the OIG. My 7/4/03 report documented that Case has previously
published statements that chrysotile asbestos, the predominant type found in WTC fallout,

2
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does not cause cancer and made false claims that the scientific community agreed with him.
My 7/4/03 and 3/11/04 reports both documented his history on behalf of defendants in
m:mmmmmmmmWMonmmmww
asbamsminingm(hnludimﬂleQIMAsbeSmhﬁnEgAmhﬁmmmoﬂy
known as the Asbestos Institute).

In these crnails, Case also defends his selection to the EPA peer pencl over the other
scientista I had recommended, namely Ronald Dodson, PhD); David Egilmen, MD; Phillip
Landrigan, MD; and Yasunosuke Suzuki, MD. Caso slanders these scientists, both directly
and by innuendo.

Misrepresentations of funding sources, consultancies, and work history

As a prerequisite foc serving on the EPA peer panel, Casc was required to provide a detailed
Conflict of Interest (COT) centification form and answer spocific questions rolating to real or
pereeived COL On 12/16/02, Casc provided a 9-page COI certification form and
questiomnaire® to Eastemn Research Group; Inc: (ERG); the EPA contractor who was selecting
the individual panc! members a3 subcontractors. Case’s COI certification/questionnaire
contained the following response to a question sboir involvement in court cases:

Hawve you contributad 10, or been invoived in any asbesios-related cases (including
the cument case batween EPA and YW.R. Grace relsted 10 the Libby, Montana mine
she)? I yes, ploase be spacific as to your involvement.

{Case’s response) o
The question implies but doss not stabe “legal” cases; if 30, the snawer is no. ...
mmmndMMMMMbm,mmm
Rigation.")
There are several instances, listad below, where | know that Case was an expert witness for
the asbestos industry in fitigation. Thus, his response to the COI questionnaire and
Export witness for ACSS defending against (igation brought by John Hance, et oL’
Expert witness for US Gypsum in Alber va. U.S. Gypsum.*
Expert witness for Garlack In the ltigation Donald Cipov, ot al, va. ACAS, Inc."
Expert witnaes for asbestos defendant ¢ in Broaux v. ACES, Inc. st al”
Expert witness for ssbestos defandant ¢ in Plummer v. ACAS, Inc.”
Expert witness for Mobil in Mass Action Tort againat Defendant Mobil Gorporation™

Export witnees for Georgis-Puciic in Flowers, at &i. v. ACAS, st al."”
K}
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Expart witneas for Anchor Packing Company in Vandenberg, et al. v. ACSS, etal™
Expert withees for Greene Tweed & Co., Inc. in Allen v ABCO industries, inc, otal”

1 have been told there are many other instances, $00 numerous 1o justify the time tracking
them down. 1t was EPA/ORD's job to have specifically solicited and investigated this
information before choosing Case as a consultznt. However, even this limited list lends the
liehoCase'sconmﬁonmmﬂnthchupeNhisﬁﬁghelphgubumvlcﬁm:

W.HY«:M@H”W‘MW
abillty %o help victims both here in Canada and slsswhere. | gling to the parhaps
naive bojief hat we are on the same "side” in wishing to help victims and prevent
both exposure and disease, which | have spent my professional kfe doing.

Potential misrepresentations of asbestos industry funding in CV Case supplisd to EPA

Casc‘sbiopphiulsmmy.pubﬁﬂnduputofﬁtpmwdingsofﬂuﬂ%pﬂndon
ashestos, 'Y did not admit 1o any asbesios industry or other private party clients, but did
mention govemmental sources of reacarch funding. This biographical summary is identical
to the biogmphical summary Case included as part of his full CV which he posted o his
personal website. ¥ Thus, it is highty probable that the full CV he providod to EPA is also
identical to the one he postcd on his personal web site.

There is a scparate section in Case’s CV on his personal website titled "Rescarch Grants™
where he makes the direct claim thet he has never received funding from the asbestos
industry:

Only pear revicwad grants and scholarship grants included: Dr. Case has never
received, or applied for, grants from privels indusiry. .

Case's full CV on his web site is exhaustive in listing governmental consulting and grants.
However, it inteationally omits any mention of his asbestos industry or other peivate party
funding. This is deliberatcly mislcading and s misrepresentation. If he had never mentioned
any rescarch funding or consultancy work whatsoever for any party, whether governmental
ot private, he might have been able to justify his CV. Howover, he did not, giving a biased,
misleading account of his consultancies and grants.

False claim by Case to Jenkins that research not funded by asbestos industry

Case also claimed in an email to me that his research was not funded by the asbestos
industry, at least not in cases where his name appeared as the first author. The followiag is
fror his first email to me on 3/16/04:

Are you sware that all McGill University studies of which | am the first author wore
financed by peer -reviewed graniing committees (of EPA, among othen) at arm-
lsngth from government, and that none of my resaeich has received 3o much as
ONE PENNY from "sshesatos companies”, or for that matter, any privets industry at
all fwhich pratty much makes me unique in academia, don't you think)?

4



Document hosted at JDSU PRA
http://www.jdsupra.com/post/documentViewer.aspx?fid=0fe89408-a94a-44ca-b441-15h9fdcac914

Hischimsueunmevenwhcnhewuthcﬁmuhoroum,umn'ﬁ'om&e
acknowledgement section of a few of the papers T had available, 33 well as his own
courtroom testirnony.

Case's published studies document funding by the asbestos indsstry

The foliowing ished studies by Case indicate that the source of funding comes eatirely or
inpll:frunugm-nhtedoompmiu. Thore could well be others, but I have not had the
time to investigate.
YEBZADEH, ATAOLLAH; DUFRESNE, ANDRE; CASE, BRUCE; VAL,
HIOJATOLAH, WILLIAMSJONES, A E.+ MARTIN, ROBERT; NORMAND,
CHARLES: CLARK, JAMES (2001) Lung Mineral Fibars of Former Miners and Millars

from Thetford-Mines and Asbesios Regions: A Comparative Study of Flber
Concentration and Dimension. Archives of Envionmente! Health, 56(1): 85.

mwmauudhmbnmmmmomm
Corporation and the Natural Sciences and Engineering Research Councll of
Canada.”

McDonald, A., Cass, B., Chrug, A, Dufrssne, A, Gbbs, G., Sébastien, P.,
w?‘nmmhmmmmhmmmnz
epidemiology and astiology. Ann. Cecup- Hyg. 41(8) 707.

mmmeMmhwmuwﬂmN
since 1985 and mede possible by the heip of pecple and agencies too
numerous to mention ..."

Note that the "cohort ... since 1965” in the second paper refers to & group of expased workers
followed in McDonald's rescarch funded by the Quebec Mining Association, Case denies
any association between himself and/or his institution, McGill University, in his 3/24/04
email to me: " 'QAMA" has'no velstion to McGill University nor bas it during my tonure
(literad and figurative) here (82-88 and 92-prosent).” This is untrue, becanse it clearly funded
the work of McDonald st McGill. QAMA is on record as actively sought "friendly”™
scientisty st McGill, and Case worked with the same data, cohort, and scientist funded by
QAMA st McGillL See pages 354-358 of my 7/4/03 repoxt to the EPA OIG for further
documentation.

Court tastimony where Case admits to research being funded by asbestos industry

hwmuﬁmy.Cmﬂnhmﬁmdhsofhhmhbyﬂuuh«gahduﬂy.
namely WR Grace and the Quebec Asbestos Mining Association (QAMA). © Case testifi
as follows:

Q. Did you do a study in which it was funded by W. R. Grace?

A. No, Dr. McDonald did s shady that was funded by W. R. Grace.

Q. And were you involved with that study?

A | participatad In the anslysis of sputum from peaple who workad in a vermicuilts

mine in Libby, Montana and bacause of thet | think W. R. Grace had gone bankrupt.
5
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Q. Doctor, the study and peper thet came out of that study, did your name appesr cn
thet papar?

A Yes. &t certainly didn't help W. L. Graca any, did 7

Q. You siso ware invoived in a study with Dr. McDonsld that was spanssred by
individuals who were involved with the Quebec Mining Companiee?

A. You mean the 1889 paper?
Q. Yes, oir.

A Yes.

Q. And they were mining chrysotiie fibers up in Canada; len't thet true?
A Yes.

Q. In the sarly 15808 you lectued ic defense attomeys on the issua of chrysotile,
isn't that comect?

Case also misrepresented his work history in a court of law, claiming that be worked for EPA
directly. The following is trial estimony that took place on #/19/01:

... and then | was working with soma folks at the Univensity of Pittsburg, snd that led
o my moving o Piltsburg in 1988, and | steyed there unill 1992, and Pitteburgh |
wonked full Sima as an spidemiciogist for the United Stetes Environmenta! Protection
Agency. | was director of the United States Envimoomental Protaction Agency's

Centar for Environmental Epidemiciogy which s at the University of Pittsburgn. ...
| have sisa consuted for NIOSH and EPA, as | heve sald.

Caso was making a false statement designed to impress the jurors that he was  ful]l EPA
cmployee. He was not. He only worked for the Univ. Pittsburgh under & grant that the
university had received from EPA. He was on the faculty of Pitt, but certainly not an EPA
cmployee in any way. He was merely a consyltant to EPA.

Note how Case tries to further distinguish his work as being that of a full EPA employee by
saying that he ALSO consulted for EPA as well. This was intendod to clearly differentinte
his earlier staternent as working directly for EPA from "being merely a consultant to EPA "
Thus it was no slip of the tongue by Case when he claimeod that he worked for EPA.

It is noteworthy that Case’s CV that be himself posted on his personsl website, Case
desctibes his work at Pitt differently. On his CV, Case describes the work correctly, as being
under an EPA grant to Pitt, stating that he was only on Pitt faculty during the time period in
question, not in any way an "EPA anployee."3



Document hosted at JDSU PRA
http://www.jdsupra.com/post/documentViewer.aspx?fid=0fe89408-a94a-44ca-b441-15h9fdcac914

Case's slanderfinnuendo for excluding other sclentists from EPA panel

In my 3/11/04 mmlmnendﬁuddiﬁonﬂnmahmﬂdmm%mw
onr:i‘iE?Apuplms:uw achieve balance and to mitigate any COI by the heavy weighting of
scientists who served as paid expert consultants to'the asbestos industry.

Instead lcoming the input of additiona! scientists, Case attacks them. He first claims
ﬂwyw&gs::dsmd&swhgmahOW wmttoMa&niavelli,nmu.tocimumvem the
established peer review process of the journals. Hnthmclnnutheymledtoropmﬂn
soumuofd:eir:u«mhﬁmdinsuﬂofﬁekpnblishodmdu,mmmmmmly
circumventing journal policy.

But, as seen below, it is instead Case who is guilty of these alleged offenses, failing to report
funding sources on his publications

Cuc’smwmmmmmmmwuﬂwmﬁvmbebw:

[Gase fo Jenking, 315004 arpall] | was taken sback In the attached 10 ses mysell
mmmwmmmmmmmm

anbymmamauuoauwwrk(mmdomm
tham this Is of course not your fault }.

All of the Iatier ara publishing in the AJIM, which itself has serious CO} problema in
bath the parson of its editor and some members of its editorial board, which preciude
citing thie joumel as “peer-reviewed” when it comen to mbesios matiars . Unless the
mmmwwmmmwamm
voluntarily, which would help.

Your sole source for attacks on my own objectivity sppears o be “Never Agein
cnsul '-mm%m-mmum.mmmum
thelr paying cients and GUi; and my citizenship and Univeraity (which is pubic, and
does NOT receive funding from the "QAMA”, nor has I since | began work there in
1862).

; {COl) document bearing dmm;idﬁduuﬁﬁ
had %o do with the cther your .
2004 and ths CO1 of those on whom you rely (specifically Dodson, Suzukl, and

Egliman ). ...

Now, whan will thosa you clte in your documant reveal thek conficta? Plaase
address my questions, K you can.

(Jenidna to Case, emel £2 of ¥18/04] | guess | am not understanding the pait where
mmmmmmmlmhwmmmmma
intmrest.

-

[Cage to Jenking, emeli #2 of 3/16/041
Storuki

Dodson
Egilman
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) O “R
bans 1or CXCIOAIRE SCIEI LIRS LU Lt 4

AMWWM&MW&WWMC&WW%MM .
mmmmwmcimm.mmmmﬁwwmsmw
to obtain or provide pecr review. This was in onc article in the American Jounalof
hdmwmdhhu(mmmmmmdbymMsW)Mﬂwme
ofawnfambeldbyﬂmNmYorkayofScimoumYAS)bukinlm.

M‘schhwmmMcmmdhmwwmviwmfmm
wbﬁmmmmnlmﬂdmmﬂmm«oﬁujomhhwiﬂlmm
All onc necds to do is answer the following question: Is this a peer reviewed journal? Ifthe
mwerisyu,d:mwem\atamﬁmdwsmdimeoﬂnimdﬂuwinminﬁctpﬁ
reviewed prior to publication. Wiﬁnutevi&uwﬂoﬁwmry.wenmtqmmcﬁmh
editors of these journals did nol somehow circumvent their own journal policy. These
allcgationsbyCmmtlnmfmabnnﬂmdslmdm.

Mﬁrhdﬁof:%otmmﬂh&emmmmmm
fuﬂwnllmatomfmpmcwdiupmmtpeerreviewdpﬁawwbﬁuﬁom Scientists
amiwhad&pmtmmdwhﬂim{ypiullymlywbmhmmafﬂwplpupdor
mﬂwirmﬂpummtiomnﬂwoonm:mimlf. Then, after the speech is delivered, -~
mumhmmawﬁtemofﬂnirpmmnﬁmﬁxpubﬁuﬁm |kt would be imposaible
blhen'wwdwhim”furaprmuimthnhdnhudybmdelivuadbymm
review process.

Case also claimed that these scieatists wero uafit to serve on the EPA panol because they,
unlike himsolf, failed to report their funding sources ss part of their published studics. This..
is equally false and slanderous. It is always up to the journal cditor and/or journal policy .
whether sources of funding are reported.

Omjomdwbm&nﬂlmdlﬁmﬁuﬁibdbnwuquimnmﬂwmw
of Industrial Medicine, did niot have any absoluts rule on repotting funding. The policy, as
qmbymwnmm&mﬁﬂm&nghmh“wmwﬁmh
wasupwﬂwdimuionofﬂwedimrwhwuwnotmindudnihpmb‘blydcpudm“
space concems, ¢ic.

Casuhodredgednpmmmmaphinﬁﬂ'hwyuﬁmdpddmepubﬁuﬁnnmfor
an ashestos conference procoedings. The conference itsslf was convened by the peestigious
NlﬁonllAcldanyofSciemeSMinl”O.whﬂcinoneofﬂwlﬁmﬁﬂCuewu

. . sttacking participated. This is ludicrous snd would be hurorous if it were not for Case's

slanderous intont, The Science Magazine articie™ that Caso himself sent me explalned that
mismf«mwmlywmmwulﬂsmmmdhymm
industry, where scientists with opposing views had been excluded.
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While attempting to find fault with other scientists for their alleged failure to repost the
source of funding =s part of publications, Case himself have done the same. By saying this, I
am in no way agreeing with Case that this is a professional offensc or misconduct. As stated
earlier, the reason for not including funding sources as part of publications is undoubtedly the
cxercise of discretion by the editor. A few examples arc given below wheee Case cither
failed to report his furnding sources, oc the joumal did not chooss to include this information.
Case, B. and Dufresne (1947) Asbesios, ssbesiosls, and lung cancer; chaecrvations

in Quabec Chuysatile workens, Environmantal Health Perspactives, 108, Supp, 5:
11138

Hufl, M., Abraham, J., and Case, B. (2002) Mssothelloma among workera in
ashasiiform fiber-baaring talc mines in New York State. Annals of Occupational
Hytrene, 46, Supp. 1, 132-8,

Well, H., Abrsham, J., Baknes, J., Case, B., Churg, A, Hughes, J., Schenker, M.,
Sebastien, P. (1690) Howith effects of tremoilte. Amnerican Review of Respicatory
Disaasa, 142, 1453

Becklake, M., Case, B, (1994) EdRorial: Fiber burdon and asbsstos-relatsd king
mm1wm1m of dose-response reistionships. Am, J. Respir. CAt. Care

Case, B. (2001) Lung-retained fber as & markar of snvironmerts! dass. Corflerance
Procesdings,

Case, B. (19985) Latters 008; Nonmmd'hndapounbﬁlmmm
the Risk of Lung Cancar, New England Journal of Medicine, and 000, The New ... .
England Joumsl of Medicine, Voluma: 339, Number: 14, Page: 599-1002.

m@mmgmmm.&uhwummmmmm
funding sources, because the editor of this prestigious jouma) was forcad w add the
following statement at the ead of Case's letter:

Editor's note; Dr. Case has served as an wilnass in asbestos ¥
the past fve expert in Kigation during

Credibilitylomissions in Case's contributions to EPA panel

npmmmwmmmmmw&hmmm@w
wuhcm.mypeuuvicwmdpuhﬁshodbyEPAhﬂnﬁmlpmeudinpofﬂwwprh
Appor:::l!:pmelm 'Prameﬁng&m'.” Casc's written stetement should be
expunged as it knowingly misreprasents set of relovant dats notwithstanding
EPA’s disclaimer about these statements from individus! peor pnl:y.s(’:‘m

! ' 10
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Cauwuvuyfmﬁﬁnwiﬁ:mdpcwdoﬁhiu@dyﬂuthuhoutoomitﬁwnhisEPApml
document. Cmmdedxefouwhxgmminlwmafhwmmhzomlndywhid:
showod that fiber leagth had no effect on lung discase.™ Case mentioned the study of his
own volition, calling it his most recent wock. This was during the testimony where the
hwyafordefmdmtubeMwmpmy.ﬁorwhanhcwuapddooMMAwn_uhbmg

the expettise of Case. Case was sot in any way disowning the study or discrediting it.
Q. Dr. Case, | want to show you this document. Are you familiar with this docurment?
A Yas. That is my curiculum vilae.
Q. Is that true and comect as of todey?

A. His not up to data. it i misaing four or five recent publications, and & is missing
some of the journals that | reviewed for, 1 would say it is two or three years old,

Q. The four or five additional publications, do they have anything to do with
asbestos?

A. Most of them do, yes.
Q. Do you recall the Bes?

A Yeah. The most recent one was on fiber burden in mining workers. That wes in
the Archives of Environnmontsl Haalth in Februsry of 2001,

Case also included this particulsr research study in his list of publications in his CV posted
on his website.™ In fact, Case lists five papers and confevences wherein he was the co-author
and/or presenter with Dr. A. Naycbzadeh, the lead suthor of this 2001 paper in the Archives
of Environmontsl Health. This again establishes his close professional relationship with the
principal investigator of the study he Ignored/omitted for the purposes of the EPA panel.

Cuenﬁuﬂyouﬁmdmofhbvcryownmdiuwhichmmdiaadhishdm-ﬁwnﬂz
conclusions, he also omitted and ignored all the other studies which demonstrate that fibers
less than 5 um arc carcinogenic.

On 2/21/03, I submitted a compilation of additicna) studies to be cvaluated by the EPA panel
on which Case served. ® These studios had not previously been reviewad and ovaluated by
ATSDR pancl on asbestoa toxicity, snd I belioved that it was importent for EPA to now
formally evaluate them, whether accepting the conclusions ot oot I included sbatracts and
extended excerpts, as well as the full text of 16 studics that also showed that asbestos fibers
less than 5 microns were associated with cancer. I wanted the EPA panel to formally
evaluate these studies as part of their deliberations, including Dr. Case.

The studies T had compiled were in fact officially offered by the EPA chwirpetson-te the other
pmlistfogfunsidemionmdmiew,afnawhlchisswndhﬁloﬁmlSBOIOZimponofEPA
poer panel.

{Page 1-3] 1.1 - Background ... 1.2 Scope of the Pser Consuttation Workshop ...
1.2.1 Activities Prior to the Peer Consultation Workshop ...
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Distribute review documents and other relevant information. Sevaral weoks prior
1o the pear consultation workshop, ERG sant every panalist copies of the charge and
the proposed risk asssssment methadology (Berman and Crump 2001). These Rems
formed the basls of the technical discussions at the workshap. In addition, ERG
mmmmmmm(mrm1 lihoand
ofﬂsbudiu\.h;‘indﬁ-p::hﬁu-).m:upp:umhl
provided iargely in reeponse 1o panaliate’ requests Wbﬂmm
onnohd-dluuu.'mopuullm*o publications amongst themzalves on
hﬁuMmdﬂnmchahmhdbrhMMmm

However, Cmmdﬂxeod\erubutos-indusuymdummﬁwEPApmlchontoim
these studies, neither agreeing with their conclusions nor giving any rationale for disagreeing
with the findings.

Cuem-dnhedonlyonhuhighlyukeuwlmghndmmdm,mdmwhmhlmkedn

the asbestos had died of mesothelioma. As stated in my
7/4/03 repot, burden studics are irrelevant to mesotholioma, which is a cancer that

occurs in the pleurs (chest cavitios). The studies Casc omittad looked at the asbesios burdens
{deposits) in the pleura itself where the cancers occurred. -

My 7/4/03 report to the EPA OIG® documented that these key studics were being ignored by
Case and the other panel members:

{TIhe attached report addresses ... viokations by EPA of the Federal Advisory
Commiitas Act, which hes mesultsd In & subversion of the piinciples of the
Administrative Procedures Act upon which & was based .. As a result of the WTC
colinpss, EPA’s Office of Salid Waste and Emergency Response indiated a re-
avahiation of the Agency's risk and carcinogeniclly classifications for asbesios. ...
oxpeits drafting the ressssssment heve apparent conficis of interest, and key
ressarch appearing in peer reviewed pubfications have been omithed and ignored In

Neither the EFA nor the ATSDR pubiished full informetion on the panelsats, and
did not aggresaively sk the necassary quastions of the paneliats to
detamnine whether thars waee confiicis of inlerest and bias. Looking at a scientist
curriculum vitas is In no wey adequaite to determine whether 8 scientiste serves
solsly and frequently e an export witness for the ssbasios industry, or whether a
sciontists university departmant is funded by the ssbesios industry, eic. Nelther the
EPA nor the ATSOR included experts who had tonducted ressarch and had
deveicped indepandent evidence published In prestigious peer reviewad jcumals
which supportad sitemative conclusions than those of the panelisis who wers

Case's omission of studies showing pure chrysotile causes mesothelioma |

In his "Premeeting Comments® staternents, Case also responded to EPA's questions on
whether chrysotile ashestos was carcinogenic. Case contended in his comments to EPA as
well as elsewhere that pure chrysatile ashestos will never cause mesothelioms uniess

13
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extremely improbabie high sxposures occur, difficult to achicve even in industrial settings.
However, Case omitted from his deliberations any consideration of the many published
shudies showing a relationship to pure chrysotile asbestos to cancer, where the usbestos was
not contaminated with amphibole asbestos

For example, ammdymmgwﬂmumm”ummdby&u:bowedﬂmm
chrysotile amphibole-free asbestos caused[micsothelioma] There are undoubtedly many other
shudies, lfﬂmamdxenremvdudhmw:y.ﬂmﬂ:npun!lm,mmdmgc:u.h-dﬂn
obligation of discussing themn and poiating out the reasons for not accepting their
conclusions.

Case's false claims that there is a scientific consensus that chrysotile asbestos is not carcinogenic

Asdocthedinmy'ﬂthpmtwtthPAOIG Case made a clearly fnlye statement in
ﬁmNmEnzhndJoundofMedlcme, commdtintthaemmwumwufc
consensus that chrysotile asbestos did ot cause|mesothelioma i
have given any refcrences in his statements hhnNewEnghndJmumlofModicimleﬂuto
support his claim of this alleged consensus. Case’s letter elicited several rebutnals, abstmacted
below:

[Letter from Bruce W. Case, M.D. McGlI University of Montraal, QC H3A 2B4,

To the Edilor: Landrigan is wrong In conciuding thet ~a morm than savenfold mortaity
refe... from pleural cancer in mining areas, as companed with non mining areas,
corroborsies an enarmokss body of litarature showing thet Canadian chrysciile..is a

potant carcinogen.” mmm(mm)hmuwwbyum
mmmhhmwmmw amphiboles in
the menufacture of gas masks, (Ref. 1) the repak of burlap Lags that contained

Editor's note: Or. Case hes served as an expect winess in sabestos ftigation during

mmm:.wmuo.msmwmm New York, NY

Cuse is inaccurate in his claim that chrysolile asbestos from Canadu is not = cause of
mesothhelioma, and his sseertion that there is s sclentific consensus on this point is
not true. (Retf, 5) Also, he s disingsnuous int his one-sided queet for factors other

14
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mhm&om&.hn&ig:nmkukclwﬂmau'lcldmof:mmchymﬁh
being non-carcinogenic is not true,

In addition, in 1999, the Burapean Union banned chrysotile asbestos. * Clearly, if Case's
chimdmdamwu&:iullepdmwmmismldmluvehmpmd_ Thers
wouldhavebaenaeommpﬂlofxim&bwwkingmﬂnBmedmhing
1998, agreoing that chrysatile asbestos was carcinogenic. The opposite is obviously true.
(Earlierinl”l,ﬂleEUblnnedothcfam:ofM) The EU aiso reaffirmed in the year
2002 its earlier findings that chrysotile asbestos is carcinogenic. ®
mmm,mwmmwﬁmmmgmmmddmom
Tigren, MD and E. Chatficld, PhD in their published studies’ which concluded that Union
Cubido&duysoﬁleubuhsmno:c-cimgeniqudimmodingrwdemﬂnmyylw
roport.)

Conclusions

The problems noted in this report to the EPA OIG indicate serious problems not only with
this particular consultant, but also indicts the integrity of the pane] warkshop on ssbestos -
toxicity as a whole. The;:oeeedinglofﬂlisEPApeerpmelonubm&oxici!y.pubﬁM
on 5/30/03, should be withdrawn by EPA, as it is icrevocably tainted.

I also believe that the OIG should actively investigate all of the other scientists wito
putticipated on the EPA pancl on asbestos toxicity. Depending on self-certification by the
scicntists is obviously ingufficient,

As recommended in my 3/11/04 report 1o you, EPA should post the full CV's and COI
cectifications of all contractors, subcontractors, and consultants in & central locstion oa the
EPA web site, m&enmidwinmhhmgrﬁynfEPA%docisimmkingm )

Anmmn&lpmofﬂﬁawm]websiwﬂorﬂlEPAmthmnmctouluboonm
sh?uldbem ivaihﬁonwﬂwpubﬁ_ctodut&wH’AOIGofmominiomor

Counsultants are willing lo risk the improbable scrutiny of a few motivated individuals such as
myself, There arc not too many who would go to this level of offort. But consultants would
be more leery of being exposed to all of America on 2 centra] EPA web sige. If they knew
that the price of providing EPA with their expertise was to have their COI certifications,
uedeminhmdﬁulworkhimrypoﬂed,dleynﬁwhuhwwobﬁm.
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guppowd!rhvuﬁpudmeircmnmm. Obviously, Eastern Research Group failed to
insure the integrity of the EPA panel on asbestos toxicity, the panel on which Bruce Casc
served. It is probable that they have again failed for this other EPA panel, The living victims
ot'theWuiddeeCeuﬂdiam.&muﬁllupondtowﬁcﬁllou;needwbegivmln
;;;p:mmgonlhcirmwhveﬁpunymlmbkmmdﬁlﬁﬂaﬁmbythisom

pa

.
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ENDNOTES

! EP H
AM::.F?O:I)F?IW EPA‘:MWWMNIWMCMM

* Case, B, W. (Docombar 16, 2002) "Raply $ots Dr. Bruco Wiaston ¢ questions posed Schaik
. . Caso t0
hmMMMMFMDAWdMMm&mA

along mmuhh&h“mmnﬁudmnaﬂiudhw.‘

This 9-page form i
mﬂmmﬁﬁmm

Ymmhwbdﬁhhcmnmmmbmmm in "TFF" format,
the fist page if you altempt 1o view it froan the web site direcsly, sy ot il cly show

: TITLE i3~CRIMES AND CRIMINAL PROCEDURE, ~CRIMES. CHAPTER AND
[/
FALSE STATEMENTS. Sec. (001, SMGmFA:TﬂlIy 47-FRAUD

(axgw-wmmmmhmm._m rwtter
jurisdiction of the exactive, legisiative, or Judicia! branch dﬁ"égmﬁ.mm“

United States, knowingly and wiklly-
(1)mundqummbywmm.ordm|m

 {2) makes
::qmwumamm«
(S)Moruuuwhhmﬁngwmmunmbm

wiiy materially false, fictitious, or fraxduient statement enkry; wnder
NoliﬂoorhuMdmtmﬂmSmorm?: T ¥hat 20 fied

— - S
Mmudm EPA'IMWWMNIMMQ““

3
WM“WMW:Mm&Mﬁmmw
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7 Jenicins, C. (March 11, 2004) Meomorsadum titied: Additions! docurnentation, EPA, Inapector Geaearsl
investigation ito failure 1o prevest consultant coaflicts intcroat in: 1. Extwrnal peer review panel for

EP&ORDMA&MM&M&&MM&WEMZE‘AWI
mmhﬂmh-ﬁmmawmmxmum
MAMRmmmpthhMﬁbwﬁnndmﬁvm
Addressed 10: EPA IQ WTC Toam: Nikki Tinsley, Chwis Dmh,Suathlkiewiu,D‘nGﬂml’-
Hatfiold, Geoff Picros, Steve Schansrasan

' mn.w.mmmmwmmmmc-mqmmwmm
for Eastern Rescarch Grong " mrﬁuyEPAmivqof-bmﬁ*mmdﬂl),
Mwhmﬂmﬂmhhﬁﬁu“tmmmwmadh'

You mmbmhdﬁhdmnﬂhmhdﬁwbmnﬂm Kis in *TIF" format, and will only show
the first puge if you atscmpt 10 view it from the web sits diroctly.,

* Case, B. (April l9.Wl)TﬂhuuyhhmofI&n!hognd.v.A.Cmds,h Consolidicd Case
No. 2-X-00000374, in the w&mhwm.

_‘l'_ DomldCipw.dlLuACIﬂs,lnc..dll..pMiq‘-hI4Illu&ddD'ﬁiﬂCm‘thTmCuw.
L 1

** Breaux v, ACXS, Inc. ot of, CAUSE NO. 00-08721, IN THE DISTRICT COURT DALLAS COUNTY,
TEXAS, 162ad JUDICIAL DISTRICT

" Plumemer v. ACKS, Inc. CAUSE NO, 00-07604-H, IN THE DISTRICT COURT DALLAS COUNTY,
TEXAS, 160th JUDICIAL DISTRICT

COURT OF KANAWHA COUNTY WEST, IN RE: ASBESTOS PERSONAL INJURY LITIGATION,. Clvil
Action No. 02-C-9004, qu:hmicDm'lioﬂsofBlew.CAs&bLD

> Flowees, atal. v. ACAS, et al., Civil Action No. 01-VS-014334-D, IN THE STATE COURT OF FULTON
COUNTY, STATE OF GEORGIA.

“ Vandenberg, stal. v. ACKS, stal, Cause No. A020373.C, IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF ORANGE
COUNTY. TEXAS, 125TH RUDICIAL DISTRICT,



" Allen v ABOO Industries, Inc., et al., Cause no. B-169628, IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF JEFFERSON
COUNTY, TEXAS, 60TH JUDICIAL DISTRICT.

** EPA (Maxy 30, 2003) Piaal report: EPA's Poer Coussltation Werkshop on a Propased Asbestos Cancer Risk
Assessment. hitp:fiwww.cpa gov/superfund/programe/risi/sbestos/  or specifically st
oA

mﬂinw.iziﬁﬁiugguﬂgg.égfﬁgﬂ
llows:

Dr. Case it & psthalogist and epidamiologiet st MCGIE University in Montreal,
Canads. Following his residency in pathology st McGlil Univarsity he obiained the
Diploma in Occupational Hygiens at McGill, and worked as a post-docioral feliow and
Instructor at the Mount Sinal School of Medicine, New Yok, from 19801883, Whie
theve, he perfumed some of the first stixdies on ashestos-medisted free radical
l!.t&.&ogis.<§§->slnﬁso§ﬁi
Association, On his retum io MeGill he joinad the Dusi Dissese Ressarch Unit. Tha
focus of this group wes the epidemiciogical study of diseases relsled to minerl flber
sxposure using lung-retained fber in mpasure assessment. In 1686, he received the
National Haalth Scholership of NHRDP (Canada) for his work in the fleld. in 1988, he
moved to the University of PRtshurgh, whars he succeeded Dr. Phillp Enteriine as
Director of the U.S. EPA Center for Environmental Epiderniclogy, through their
ggiiggﬁggigg
whers he was aleo associats professor uf epiderniciogy. Ha retumed o McGHl in
d-c‘ A

o
and other mineral fiber snd particls exposures and reistad diseases has bean fundad
Egigﬁgggq}ggﬁ
NHRDP (Canada). 9.0!3?&[!3483533!%
" Case, B. Curriculum vitac, posted at www.asbeeton et

..Qs.u.?__-.n _o.us_vagr?!%rrm.fa-ps?n-&ﬁ?.nB.oE_.Enr:
No. 24-X-00000374, iix the Clrouit Court for Baltimore City. See pp. 3413 - 3417,

Q. Did you do & study in which & was funded by W. R, Grace?
A Zn.cn.gﬂizﬁn.gnﬁige«i.x.mg.
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A Yes. R cortainly diin't help W. R. Grace sy, dii 7

Q. Ywahomhvoludhnmmmwmntwm
individuals who were involved with the Quabec Mining Companies? >

A You maan the 1969 paper?
Q. Yes, sir.

A Yes.

Q. And they were mining chrysatia fibers Up in Canada: isn't that true?
A Yos.

Q. mmw1mmmbmmmmmum
st that comect?

A Yes,

¥ Case, B. (April 19, 2001) Testimony in the ase of Jobin Hamce, o ai. v. A, Cand S, Inc. Cousolidated Case
No. 24-X-00000374, in the Circuit Court for Baitimare Cly.

™ Bruce, C. (undetod) Curriculums vitse. See coline at: heip:/www.ssbestosnet/ . You will neod %0 soroll
down the web pags to find it.:

1988 + 1991 Universlly of Piltsburgh Director, Center for Environmental idemiclogy
Graduste School of Public Heallh Pittsburgh, Pennsyhvania ... =

I.thm&.m“w«www....m1m-
$1 “Center i Environmental Epidemiclogy” Uniied States EPA  $1.08 miliion US
{Cooperative Agreemen} (continued x 1) (st Univ. of Pittaburgh)

¥ Stouc, R (1990) No meeting of the ntinds on sibestos. Scisnce, 254: 928,

* Stone, R. (1991) No meeting of the minds on asbesios. Sciences, 254: 928,

B EPA (May 30, 2003) Final EPA's Poar
Impjm)w report: WWMPMIWAMMM

Soe Appendix B, pages B-7 1o B-41,

“mmmhpofﬁepupndhdﬂdthmmmwnhwﬂn
wmﬁmmmmqm«wwummmmm

mmMWMMMMm!Ma
ththumth'w
summary statemants in the order thay were given:

” NAYEBZADEH, ATAOLLAY: DUFRESNE, ANDRE; CASE, BRUCE; VALL HOIAM
mmnmmmmmnmm,mmmmms (2001 ) Luag
Minecal MMFWMMWMWMMWA

Srudy of Fiber Conceatration and Dimension, Archives of Eaviroamontal Health , 56(1); 65.
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No. 24-X-00000374, in the Clrcuit Court for Balti %m;:a;}?:cus,mcwwc..

® Jenkine, C. (Pebruary 21, Email © Ri iact "
RISK REASSESSMENT » Mivtn Gnonzn:h‘mm, o WER, Subject: * EPA drat ABESTOS

WHMEPAmehEPAMdenMWM

lmmambmiﬂuﬁgam«mm

EPA IRIS asbestos risk resssessmaent. address mbh

|mmmmmdmmm attachment

other EPA staff on the ‘o b
“wlhg. IRIS reasssesment as weil as 1o the peer consultant

Thank you,

Cate Janking

[MEMORANDUM ON EFA LETTERHEAD AND ATTACHMENT LIST OF STUDIES)]

22103

Avihbhﬁmamh«ulukium@qgmumnﬂu tollowing web addresses:
btp/farww.myenvirolaw.ocg/POF/) onkine-74-03-docunewtary-d2 pdf |

WJMWWTHW
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™ Eiji Yeno,1 Zhi-Ming Wing,2 Xlao-Roag Wang, 1-3 Mim-Zheng Wang 2 and Yo-Jis Lan? (2001) Cancer
Mortality among Workors Exposed 1o Amphidole-fes Chrysotils Astwstos, Aw. J. Epi., an.liu:oﬂl.ﬁ.ﬂl.

Available full ot onliee at

batpe/fono. nilac, jp/joamalEimiIndicat
260575/ARTO000260575.pdf

™ Letters 006 and 009, The New Eagland Joursel of Mediclae , Oct 1 , 1998 , Volume: 339 , Nucber: 14,
Page: 999.1002, Nosoccupstiona] Exposars 0 Chrysotile Asbestos and the Risk of Ling Caocer
i...mcw...?.,v....n.’... Authwir M_; Case, Bruce W mx;mw Goodtaa, Micheel;
Commes, Michsk; Siemlatycki, Jack: Landrigan, Phifip J. ; N

¥ EPA (1999) Web page: European Usion Brosdens Asbestos Ban,
Rip2/yoscmite.con. gov/RIVOWCM NSFAN283bd9 1 4549a363382367000 59430 1 70penDocument

¥ European Union (Decernber 17, 2002) SCIENTIFIC COMMITTEE ON TOXICITY, BECOTOXICITY AND
THE ENVIRONMENT (CSTEE) Opinion oa Risk % lsamen heaith from chrysotile asbestos sad organic ™
Substitutes Opinion axpressed of the 35tk CSTEE plenary monting.

http-/feuropa.cu. intcommvhonith/ph_risk/committess/sciidocumentyout169_en.pdf

7 Ngren, E. snd Chatfisld, E. (1997) Coalinga e — A amphibole-free cheyzotile. : Bvidenco
-uofwm.mmm&mhmma rat ke

Iigren, E. wvd Chtficld, E. (1998) Coalinga fibre - A scuphabolo-froe chrysotile. Part 2: Evideance
hekoflmdnnlcluﬁvity.hdou+m&vhlu::l;':l&3l. s

M&MWEWMIM&W&MMM&M“W‘ i
Indoor Built Exvirosment. 1998;7:94-109, :
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ATTACHMENT: 3/15/04 to 3/23/04 email intercha‘nge between
Bruce Case, MD and Cate Jenkins, PhD

Bruce Case
<bwcaseQvideotron To: MJHWEPMA
Lo

cc 4
CN2Z2004 08:35 PM Subject: Re: Ervora in your COI document

| have testified against JM Asbestos -
JM Is Joltrey Mine, not Johns

Manvilie (although | have siso estifled
agninst that company; perhaps | am
older than you think}l Your confusion
though is undersiasndable given that

JM Asbestos was when it wee still
solvent (banknupt in October of last year)
the operaior of the samae mine which
was previously owned by Johne Manville
‘I “colontal days™. tHiamel ot al. v,

JM Asbestos was M. Hamel and six other
chiysotile miners and millers with

lung cancer va. JefTrey Mine Asbestos
(1896-07, 20 | am handly too young).

You or your associates can get the
documents from officlsl Quebec judicial
sources; the case summary containg
quite a cogent description for lny persons
of the sclentific arguments on

both sides of the lssus. Even the summary
however (the case tnok well over

a yoar} is quits long, und entirely In the
official Withesess for

the Union and the CSST (compensation
boand, an intervenor as this was
challenge to their awards o workers)
mw-::iwmm
Dufresne &t or previously st McGl.
Withesses for the company wers
Churg, Craighead, Weiss, Welll, and Browne.

Outcome: vendict for the workers.

It sppears you are confusing the 1948
asbastow stytke detalled by our former
Prime Minlster (Trudeau, P.E.} in hia
classic book (s stifke which waa in
many ways the beginnlng of modern
Quebec) with the more recent lagal
case in which we succeeded in proving
that asbestosls Is Not & necessary
precondition for the sttribution of lung
cancer to asbestos sxposure. This



was further documented (the sclence, not

(BMJ preas, sacand adition 2000).
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Yom aleo stute in yoar emalls to me

that yea provided EPA with » full disclosure
of all your prefcsienzl cients, But
axfertunataly, the EPA regert of the peer
pasal on which you served

Have you sver tastified for J-M iteell?
Or other campanies such as Cary, Nicolat,
or evem QAMAY

It really would clear up snce snd fora
;giii_!._.l.l!&
coxflict of interant if you previded to
I.Enllnnlnﬁ-uvnﬂlii_

panel. You did tell ms that full disciorars
was important, asd that yeu did provide
thls nformation to EPA.

This would supply the "missing Muk™
i my respeass te you, and constitutes
tha wnamrwered quastions which came
#» mind today whem 1 started tha project.
Thank yox very much for your time.

" Best regurts,
Cate Jeakins
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Cate Jonking To: Bruce Case <bwoase@videctronce>
031772004 1120 AM e
Sutject: Re: Errors int your COl documentd

Dr. Case,

B_efore answering your other coxcerns directly, I would

like to give you another opportunity to clarify your innwendos
about Drs. Egilman, Landrigsn, Dodson, Suzuki and otbers,
You are claiming their published articles did not follow the
guidelines of the American Journal of Industrisl Medicine, and
that the editor rejected peer review, claiming this was documented
At some unknown place in the magazine Science. You also
claim that there are depoditions that are public docements that
also support your conteation, and imply that I should figure out
w!dch and Gind them myself. But you really naed to supply me
with all this alleged, kighly Suapect documentation directly

to sapport yosr serious claims.

Thank you very much,
Cate Jenkins, Ph.D,

You appear disingenuous in aot respondiag to
nty requests

Bruce Caze <bwease@videotron.ca>

Bruos Case \ .
<Dwcmse@rideckon ce 1;: Cate Jenking/DC/USEPA/USQEPA
gsnwmea:ﬁpu Subject: Re: Enors In your COt document

Ywanmmm
mm-‘ﬂﬂcm“:‘..
Landrigen’s sccaptance of $ 50,000 for
publicalion costs from “a fund for
m"hdlunudhswnm



Is in fact acknowledged on the tie
fiap of the Ann NY Acaad Sel non -peer-

a paper o the imvitation of Dr.

funded antirely by stiorneys for

for pleintitfa. To the best of my



as | am fairly cartain the procesdings wers

ey with dfferent ideas sbout fiber type

is
| understand, by NIOSH and EPA: NIOSH for
agniﬂltg;;!
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Cate Jankine Te: Bruce Case <tweasa@videciron.ca>
V1872004 01:56 PM o
ot Subject Re: Erors in your COf document()

Dr, Case,

Thank you again. Now you have identified the parties
that concern you. But there i still a problem in that

you ask questions sbout thetn, iastead of Informiing

me specifically. You obviously know the nnswers, but

1 am aot in the position to answer myself. My 3/11/04
document contained my analysis of research into specific
individuals only, and mot, for exampls, into Landrigan who
was not serving as a panelist oa any of the EPA panels
that were subject of iny 3/11/04 memo.

Please enlighten me about your concerns about these
individuals,

Cate Jemrkins, Ph.D.

Bruce Case <bwcase@videotron.co>

Bruca Case Ti .JUWSEP

- eg(.?lh AIUSQEPA
0182004 01:47 PM Subject: Re: Ervors in your CON document
[

Suzukd
Dodeon
Eghiman
Landigsn

Their conflicts of interest, or
apparent COI, or possibie COI.

Who pays them?
How much do they pay them?
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Cate Jonkine To: Bruce Case <bweato@videowun.ca>
&2004 01: e
2” 01:10 PM Subject Ra: Emory in your COI document
Dr. Case,

I guess [ ara not understanding the part where

you are asking me sbout others I cite in my

document not revealing their conflicts of interest.

Cate Jenking, Ph.D,

Bruce Case <bwease@videohon.ca>

Bruce Cane

0371822004 01:03 PM
|l

. - To: Cate Jenking/DCASEFAUSQEPA
<hwosse@videoton . o
Subject Re: Emors In your CO1 document

Dear Ox. Jankins:

i have road your documentary report
previously, plesse respond to my
W%ﬁlﬂthﬂbdn%
signeture and deled Mench 11,!3?:#
the COI of those on whom you rely

(spacifically Dodson, Suzuid, and Egiiman ),

| hatve never stated that there

are no percelved conflict of intereet
{usues, msetming you identify thoss a3
taaiifying for law firme which represent
both corporations end plaintifts,
inciuding unions and sick indviduals;
have submitted them in writing as per
EPA requirements, snd have stalad them
publicly at the San Francisco -
mh‘wmwm M.
Irq-ahidumgnom
kreconciiable conficty of interest,
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Cate Jonkins Ta: Bruce Case <tmcsse@videotron .c>
ON18/2004 11:05 AM o
- Subject: Re: Errors in your COI documentEl)
pc
Dr. Case:

In response to your claims that you bave no

conflict of interest issnew, please see page 354 and following
of my ttt;::ud ms report for additional documentsation
on poteatial con of interest, appearances of i y
and predjudicial statements as they would relate mpropriety
to your fitness to serve om any EPA or ATSDR peer

review panel.

Cate Jonkins, Ph.D.

Bruce Case <bwoase@@videotron.ca>

" Bruce Case To: Cate JanknawDCUSEPAUSE
<owosseQ@videotron.ca> Joma:msoemm Coe

OV 152004 00:43 AM <
Subject Emars In your COF document

Oear Dr. Janidns:

Although | agres with much of what you heve written In
SOMe | vans taken abeck in the ettached to
800 mywelfl attacked whils professional pald withesses
mmumwmnmwyw
wihout mantion of sald COI for thelr work {since
donudadmmmhdmumtmu).








